&

RHONDDA CYNON TAF

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL

RHONDDA CYNON TAF
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

GWYS | GYFARFOD O'R CYNGOR

C.Hanagan

Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf

Y Pafiliynau

Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian

Cwm Clydach CF40 2XX

Dolen gyswilit: J Nicholls (scrutiny@rctcbc.gov.uk)

DYMA WYS | CHI i gyfarfod rhitwir o PWYLLGOR CRAFFU - ADDYSG A
CHYNHWYSIANT gynnal ar DYDD IAU, 14EG RHAGFYR, 2023 am 5.00 PM.

Caiff Aelodau nad ydyn nhw'n aelodau o'r pwyllgor ac aelodau o'r cyhoedd gyfrannu
yn y cyfarfod ar faterion y cyfarfod er bydd y cais yn &l doethineb y
Cadeirydd. Gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i Wasanaethau Democrataidd erbyn Dydd
Mawrth, 12 Rhagfyr 2023 trwy ddefnyddio'r manylion cyswllt uchod, gan gynnwys
rhoi gwybod a fyddwch chi'n siarad Cymraeg neu Saesneg.

AGENDA
Tudalennau

YMCHWIL A CHRAFFU

Mae cyfleuster ymchwil craffu ar gael yn Uned Busnes y Cyngor i
gynorthwyo Aelodau &'u cyfrifoldebau craffu a'u rolau'n Aelodau
Etholedig. Mae ymchwil o'r fath yn cryfhau rhaglenni gwaith y
Pwyllgorau Craffu er mwyn sicrhau bod pynciau sy'n seiliedig ar
ganlyniadau yn cael eu nodi. Os oes gyda chi unrhyw ymholiadau
ynghylch gwaith ymchwil, e-bostiwch: Craffu@rhondda-cynon-

taf.gov.uk

1. DATGAN BUDDIANT
Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau, yn unol a'r
Cod Ymddygiad.
Nodwch:

1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm y mae eu
buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol
hwnnw; a


mailto:Craffu@rhondda-cynon-taf.gov.uk
mailto:Craffu@rhondda-cynon-taf.gov.uk

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu
buddiant sy'n rhagfarnu, rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd
pan fyddan nhw'n gadael.

2. COFNODION

Cadarnhau'r cofnodion o gyfarfod hybrid y Pwyllgor Craffu — Addysg a
Chynhwysiant a gynhaliwyd ar 16 Hydref 2023, yn rhai cywir.

ADRODDIADAU'R CYFARWYDDWR GWASANAETH - GWASANAETHAU
DEMOCRATAIDD A CHYFATHREBU

3. DOLENNI YMGYNGHORI

Gwybodaeth mewn perthynas ag ymgynghoriadau perthnasol i'w
hystyried gan y Pwyllgor.

4. TREFNIADAU CYN Y CAM CRAFFU AR ADRODDIAD DRAFFT O'R
CABINET

Craffu'r argymbhellion i'r Cabinet ymlaen llaw mewn perthynas &'r Cynnig
i gau Ysgol Gynradd y Rhigos gyda disgyblion yn trosglwyddo i Ysgol
Gynradd Hirwaun.

ADRODDIADAU'R SWYDDOGION

5. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL - GWAHARDDIADAU O'R YSGOL YN
YSTOD Y FLWYDDYN ACADEMAIDD 2022/23

Aelodau o'r Pwyligor i dderbyn dadansoddiad o ddata gwaharddiadau
o'r ysgol y flwyddyn academaidd 2022/23.

6. DATA PRESENOLDEB MEWN YSGOLION

Aelodau o'r Pwyllgor i dderbyn yr wybodaeth ddiweddaraf ar ddata
presenoldeb mewn ysgolion ledled yr awdurdod lleol a chamau
gweithredu'r Gwasanaeth Presenoldeb a Lles a'r Gwasanaethau
Addysg a Chynhwysiant ehangach i gynyddu lefelau presenoldeb.

7. ADOLYGIAD Y CADEIRYDD A DOD A'R CYFARFOD | BEN

15 - 82

83 -112

113 - 122


https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/CY/Council/Scrutiny/InformationReports/ConsultationInformation/ConsultationInformation.aspx

Myfyrio ar y cyfarfod a'r camau gweithredu i'w dwyn ymlaen.

8. MATERION BRYS

Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn 6l doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn faterion
brys yng ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig.

Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu

Cylchreliad:-

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol Y Cynghorydd S.Evans a Y Cynghorydd S Emanuel
— Cadeirydd ac Is-gadeirydd, yn y drefn honno

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol:

Y Cynghorydd M Ashford, Y Cynghorydd J Brencher, Y Cynghorydd J Cook,
Y Cynghorydd J Elliott, Y Cynghorydd R Evans, Y Cynghorydd S Hickman,

Y Cynghorydd C Lisles, Y Cynghorydd M Maohoub, Y Cynghorydd C Preedy,
Y Cynghorydd J Smith, Y Cynghorydd K Webb and Y Cynghorydd D Wood

Aelodau Cyfetholedig

Mr P Booth, Cynrychiolydd Awdurdodau Esgobaethol &'r hawl i bleidlais

Mr M Cleverley, Cynrychiolydd Cymdeithas Genedlaethol yr Ysgolfeistri ac Undeb yr
Athrawesau a'r Panel Athrawon

Ms A Jones, Cynrychiolydd UNITE

Mr C Jones, Cynrychiolydd GMB

Mrs R Lydon, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol

Mr L Patterson, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol

Mr D Price, Cynrychiolydd UNSAIN/UNISON

Mr M Thomas, Cynrychiolydd NEU

Mr M Veale, Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-Lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol



Tudalen wag



Agendwm 2

&

RHONDDA CYNON TAF

Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a Chynhwysiant CYNGOR RHONDDA CYNON TAF
Cofnodion cyfarfod ar-lein y Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a Chynhwysiant a gafodd ei gynnal ddydd
Llun, 16 Hydref 2023 am 5pm
Cafodd y cyfarfod yma ei recordio ac mae’r manylion i'w gweld yma.

Cynghorwyr y Fwrdeistref Sirol —
Roedd yr Aelodau canlynol o'r Pwyligor Craffu - Addysg a Chynhwysiant yn bresennol ar-lein

Y Cynghorydd S Evans (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorydd K Webb

Y Cynghorydd J Brencher
Y Cynghorydd J Elliott

Y Cynghorydd S Hickman
Y Cynghorydd M Maohoub
Y Cynghorydd J Smith

Y Cynghorydd M Ashford
Y Cynghorydd J Cook

Y Cynghorydd S Emanuel
Y Cynghorydd C Lisles

Y Cynghorydd C Preedy
Y Cynghorydd D Wood

Aelodau Cyfetholedig oedd yn bresennol:-

Mr P Booth — Cynrychiolydd Awdurdodau Esgobaethol &'r hawl i bleidlais
Mr M Cleverley — Cynrychiolydd Cymdeithas Genedlaethol yr Ysgolfeistri ac Undeb yr Athrawesau
a'r Panel Athrawon
Mr R Lydon — Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol &'r hawl i bleidlais
Mr L Patterson — Cynrychiolydd Rhiant-lywodraethwr wedi'i ethol &'r hawl i bleidlais
Mr M Thomas, Cynrychiolydd NEU

Swyddogion oedd yn bresennol:-

Ms G Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant
Ms C Jones — Pennaeth Materion Mynediad a Chynhwysiant
Mr C Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth — Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu
Daniel Williams, Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Mynychu'r Ysgol a Lles
Ms Hayley Jacobs, Arweinydd Ysgolion Bro
Mrs S Daniel — Blaen Swyddog Materion Democrataidd a Chraffu

Cynghorwyr y Fwrdeistref Sirol oedd yn bresennol:-
Y Cynghorydd Rhys Lewis, Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Addysg, Cyfranogiad Pobl Ifainc a'r
Gymraeg
Y Cynghorydd J Edwards, Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu
Wedi'u gwahodd:-

Ms E Lewis - Cydlynydd ADY
Mr R Macauly-Lane - Cydlynydd ADY

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb
Mr M Veale - Aelod Cyfetholedig

Tudalen 5


https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=404&Year=0&LLL=1

24

25

26

27

DATGAN BUDDIANT

Yn unol &'r Cod Ymddygiad, cafodd y datganiadau o fuddiant canlynol eu
gwneud ynglyn a'r agenda:

Y Cynghorydd C Preedy, "Buddiant personol gan fod un o'r Ysgolion Arbennig
sydd wedi'u nodi yn Eitem 7 ar yr agenda yn fy ward i"

Y Cynghorydd C Lisles "Buddiant personol gan fod Ysgol Uwchradd y Ddraenen
Wen wedi'i nodi yn Eitem 6 ac rydw i'n Llywodraethwr yn yr ysgol hon"

Y Cynghorydd S Hickman "Buddiant personol mewn perthynas ag eitem 6, rydw
i'n Llywodraethwr yn Ysgol Gymuned y Porth"

Y Cynghorydd S Evans "Buddiant Personol mewn perthynas ag Eitem 6, rydw i
wedi fy nghyflogi gan Brifysgol De Cymru"

Ms Rebecca Lydon "Buddiant personol mewn perthynas ag Eitem 7, mae fy
meibion i'n awtistig"

Y Cynghorydd Sera Evans "Buddiant personol mewn perthynas ag eitem 7, mae
gan fy mab ddatganiad”

Mr L Patterson "Buddiant personol mewn perthynas ag eitem 7, mae gan fy mab
ddatganiad ac mae e'n derbyn ei addysg yn RhCT"

COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD: Cadarnhau cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 14 Medi
2023 yn gofnod cywir o'r cyfarfod.

DOLENNI YMGYNGHORI

Cafodd Aelodau wybod am yr ymgynghoriadau agored diweddaraf sydd wedi'u
rhannu ag Aelodau, gan nodi bod modd i Aelodau gysylitu &'r Garfan Graffu os
oes unrhyw ymholiadau gyda nhw.

Ymgysylitu ag Aelod o'r Cabinet ddwywaith y flwyddyn

Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth — Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a
Chyfathrebu yr adroddiad i Aelodau er mwyn rhoi cyfle iddyn nhw graffu ar y
penderfyniadau a gafodd eu gwneud gan yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion
Addysg, Cyfranogiad Pobl Ifainc a'r Gymraeg yn ystod y cyfnod a nodir yn yr
adroddiad, a sicrhau bod y mecanweithiau priodol yn eu lle i graffu'n effeithiol ar
yr Adain Weithredol.

Gofynnodd Aelod am y cynigion sydd wedi'u nodi yn y Cynllun Strategol
Cymraeg mewn Addysg i sicrhau bod yr Awdurdod yn annog y defnydd o'r
Gymraeg. Roedd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet wedi ateb drwy nodi mai un o
flaenoriaethau allweddol yr Awdurdod Lleol yw cyflawni targedau'r Cynllun
Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg. Esboniodd fod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi
pennu sawl targed ar gyfer yr Awdurdod Lleol mewn perthynas & chynyddu nifer
y siaradwyr Cymraeg yn y Fwrdeistref ac yn ein hysgolion. Dywedodd fod yr

Tudalen 6



Awdurdod wedi buddsoddi Adnoddau Cyfalaf mewn ysgolion cyfrwng Cymraeg,
er mwyn gwella adeiladau a chyfleusterau yn ogystal ag adeiladu nifer o
ysgolion cynradd sy'n addas ar gyfer yr 21ain Ganrif. Ychwanegodd fod yr
Awdurdod yn gweithio gyda darparwyr y Blynyddoedd Cynnar er mwyn
buddsoddi mewn cyfleusterau y Blynyddoedd Cynnar i wneud y Gymraeg yn fwy
deniadol o oedran iau, yr uchelgais yw y bydd y plant yma'n parhau i fynychu
lleoliad cyfrwng Cymraeg trwy gydol eu haddysg.

Gofynnwyd i'r Aelod o'r Cabinet roi sylwadau ar y Buddsoddiad Cyfalaf sydd
wedi'i nodi yn yr adroddiad gan Estyn a gofynnodd Aelod a oes unrhyw
wybodaeth mewn perthynas a'r deilliannau gwell ar gyfer disgyblion a
argymhellir. Nododd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet fod y Cyngor wedi ymrwymo i adeiladu
tair ysgol gynradd newydd yn y Fwrdeistref, ac mae gwaith eisoes wedi cychwyn
ar y safleoedd yma. Ychwanegodd fod y Gweinidog dros Addysg wedi ymweld
a'r safleoedd ac roedd yn falch o weld y cynnydd sydd wedi'i wneud ar gyfer ein
plant a phobl ifainc. Esboniodd fod blaenoriaethau allweddol yr Awdurdod yn
cynnwys sicrhau bod y cyfleusterau gorau ar gael ar gyfer ein dysgwyr, mae'n
hollbwysig ein bod ni'n parhau i adnewyddu ein hysgolion presennol i wella
cyrhaeddiad, yn ogystal ag adeiladu cyfleusterau newydd. Nododd fod ein plant
yn haeddu'r cyfleusterau gorau ar gyfer eu haddysg.

Cyfeiriodd Aelod at yr argymhellion sydd wedi'u nodi yn yr adroddiad gan Estyn,
a gofynnodd i'r Aelod o'r Cabinet am ei farn e mewn perthynas & sut y bydd
modd gwella'r rhain yn RhCT.

Roedd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet wedi ymateb drwy ddweud bod y rhan fwyaf o'r
adroddiad gan Estyn yn cynnig adlewyrchiad cywir o safon uchel yr Addysg sydd
ar gael ledled yr Awdurdod, gan gydnabod bod cyfleoedd i wella. Nodwyd bod
modd gwella'r trefniant o weithio mewn partneriaeth &'r Consortiwm, a bydd y
meysydd sy'n ymwneud & hunanwerthuso hefyd yn cael eu hadolygu er mwyn
gwella effeithlonrwydd. Ychwanegodd fod yr adroddiad yn rhoi pwyslais ar
Arweinyddiaeth llawn pwrpas a bod hyn yn adlewyrchu safon yr uwch
swyddogion a'r dull arweinyddiaeth strategol sydd ar waith yn RhCT. Mae'r
adroddiad yn adlewyrchu sut rydyn ni'n blaenoriaethu cynorthwyo'r dysgwyr
sydd fwyaf agored i niwed yn y Fwrdeistref, a'r sylwadau mewn perthynas a'n
strategaeth hir dymor ar gyfer cynllunio olyniaeth.

Gofynnodd Aelod am eglurder ynghylch faint o amser y bydd modd i'r ysgol
arbennig newydd gwrdd a'r galw o ran lleoedd.

Roedd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet wedi ymateb drwy ddweud bod tri lleoliad bron yn
llawn neu eisoes yn llawn, mae hyn adlewyrchu'r galw cynyddol sy'n wynebu'r
gwasanaethau arbenigol sy'n cael eu darparu gan yr ysgolion yma.
Ychwanegodd fod y safle ar gyfer yr ysgol arbennig newydd yng Nghwm
Clydach yn safle mawr, a bydd yn darparu'r cyfleusterau gorau ar gyfer ein
dysgwyr ac yn cynorthwyo'r Cyngor o ran cwrdd a'r gofynion mewn perthynas a
chapasiti. Daeth yr Aelod o'r Cabinet &'i gyfraniad i ben drwy ddweud y bydd y
Cyngor yn parhau i edrych ar gyfleoedd i ddarparu capasiti ychwanegol ar
safleoedd presennol er mwyn parhau i gwrdd a'r galw.

Gofynnodd Aelod am ragor o fanylion am y buddsoddiadau i faes Addysg yn
RhCT yn y dyfodol. Roedd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet wedi ymateb drwy ddweud bod
yr Awdurdod Lleol ymhlith yr awdurdodau arweiniol o ran manteisio ar gyllid
Llywodraeth Cymru i fuddsoddi mewn Ysgolion yr 21ain Ganrif. Mae ein
perthynas agos gyda swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ein galluogi ni fel

Tudalen 7



Cabinet i gyflawni ein blaenoriaethau. Aeth ati i gydnabod bod yr Awdurdod
wedi parhau i flaenoriaethu a diogelu gwaith darparu'r gwasanaethau addysg er
gwaetha'r pwysau economaidd a'r cyfyngiadau ar y gyllideb. Mae Addysg yn
parhau i fod yn flaenoriaeth allweddol, yn ogystal & sicrhau bod ein cyfleusterau
addysg hefyd yn cynnig cyfleusterau ar gyfer ein cymunedau, a hynny tu hwnt i'r
cwricwlwm a'r diwrnod ysgol.

Gofynnodd Aelod sut mae'r Cyngor yn ymgysylltu & phobl ifainc y Fwrdeistref i
sicrhau eu bod nhw'n effro i unrhyw gynigion a bod cyfle gyda nhw i ddweud eu
dweud cyn i unrhyw benderfyniadau a fydd yn effeithio ar eu dyfodol gael eu
gwneud. Roedd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet wedi ymateb drwy ddweud bod barn pobl
ifainc yn allweddol a'i fod ef, ar y cyd ag uwch swyddogion, yn ymgysylltu &
Fforwm leuenctid y Sir, y Gwasanaeth leuenctid a Chynghorau Ysgol yn
rheolaidd i geisio'u barn a'u hadborth nhw ar faterion sy'n effeithio ar ein Plant a
Phobil Ifainc. Un enghraifft o'r gwaith ymgysylltu yma yw'r broses o enwi ysgol
newydd, mae'r disgyblion yn rhan bwysig o'r gwaith yma, sydd ar waith i sicrhau
eu bod nhw'n teimlo’'n rhan o'r broses.

Holodd Aelod a fydd gan y Pwyllgor unrhyw gyfleoedd pellach yn y dyfodol i
graffu ar benderfyniadau'r Aelod o'r Cabinet, er enghraifft y cynnig i gau Ysgol
Gynradd y Rhigos, sy'n destun ymgynghoriad ar hyn o bryd, lle nad yw
penderfyniad wedi'i wneud mewn perthynas a'r mater yma.

Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a
Chyfathrebu wybod y bydd cyfle i Aelodau graffu ar y mater yma yn rhan o
sesiwn ymgysylltu gyda'r Aelod o'r Cabinet neu yn rhan o waith rhag-graffu cyn i
benderfyniad gael ei wneud.

Holodd y Cadeirydd a fyddai modd it Aelod o'r Cabinet wneud datganiad ar
daith yr Awdurdod i sicrhau bod digon o gyfleoedd ar gael i ddysgwyr a phobl
ifainc ag anghenion addysgol arbennig, i sicrhau bod modd iddyn nhw gael
mynediad i'r cymorth gorau posibl trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg. Rhoddodd yr Aelod
o'r Cabinet wybod bod un o flaenoriaethau allweddol yr Awdurdod yn cynnwys
datblygu'u cyfleusterau Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol ledled y Fwrdeistref Sirol
yn unol &'r ddeddfwriaeth i sicrhau bod y cyfleusterau gorau posibl ar gael i'n
dysgwyr. Ychwanegodd fod yr Awdurdod wedi buddsoddi £1.2miliwn ym maes
ADY a dosbarthiadau cynnal dysgu yn y flwyddyn ddiwethaf. Ychwanegodd fod
yr Awdurdod yn awyddus i barhau i fuddsoddi yn y maes yma gan darfu cyn
lleied & phosibl ar addysg plant. Rhoddodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet wybod eu bod
nhw'n parhau i ddatblygu'u dosbarthiadau ADY yn y lleoliadau cyfrwng Cymraeg,
yn unol a'r uchelgeisiau sydd wedi'u nodi yng Nghynllun Strategol Cymraeg
mewn Addysg, mae hyn yn destun ymgynghoriad ar hyn o bryd.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth, dymunodd y Cadeirydd ddiolch i'r Aelod o'r Cabinet am
fynychu'r cyfarfod ac am ateb cwestiynau'r Aelod, roedd y Cadeirydd yn edrych
ymlaen at wahodd yr Aelod o'r Cabinet i gyfarfod arall yn y dyfodol.

PENDERFYNWYD:
1. Craffu ar yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Addysg, Cyfranogiad Pobl Ifainc
a'r Gymraeg mewn perthynas & materion sydd wedi cael eu trafod gan y
Cabinet, a'u cymeradwyo gan y Cabinet, ac unrhyw benderfyniadau sydd
wedi’u gwneud yn ystod y cyfnod rhwng 11 Mai - 16 Hydref 2023

2. Nodi unrhyw feysydd sy'n codi o'r materion hynny a bennwyd yn ystod y

Tudalen 8



28

29

cyfnod yma y mae'r Pwyllgor yn dymuno cynnal gwaith craffu pellach
arnyn nhw, a hynny'n rhan o'r diwygiadau i raglen waith y Pwyllgor,
mewn perthynas ag Addysg a Chynhwysiant.

Enwebu Aelodau — Tlodi Plant

Yn dilyn cyfarfod o'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu a gynhaliwyd ar 27 Medi,
gofynnwyd i'r Aelodau enwebu dau Aelod o'r Pwyllgor Craffu - Addysg a
Chynhwysiant i dderbyn gwahoddiad i fynychu cyfarfod y Pwyligor Trosolwg a
Chraffu i gyfrannu at drafodaethau ar y Rhybudd o Gynnig — Tlodi Plant

PENDERFYNWYD enwebu'r Cynghorydd S Emmanuel a'r Cynghorydd C
Preedy i fynychu cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu er mwyn cyfrannu at
drafodaethau am y Rhybudd o Gynnig - Tlodi Plant.

Y Diweddaraf - Tlodi Plant ac Ysgolion Bro

Cyflwynodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Mynychu'r Ysgol a Lles adroddiad i
Aelodau mewn perthynas &'r Dull Ysgolion Bro yn RhCT. Mae'r adroddiad yn
cynnig diweddariad pellach yn dilyn yr adroddiad a gafodd ei rannu ag Aelodau
ym mis Rhagfyr 2022. Mae'r adroddiad yn trafod y dull o ran ymgysylltu &
theuluoedd a defnyddio cyllid Liywodraeth Cymru a'r Cabinet yn y maes yma, yn
ogystal & rhywfaint o'r Grant Cyfalaf y mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi'i ddarparu i
RCT. Aeth y Swyddog ati i egluro bod yr adroddiad hefyd yn trafod y gwaith
sydd wedi'i wneud i liniaru effaith tlodi ar ddysgwyr a'u teuluoedd fel bod modd
cael gwared ar unrhyw rwystrau i addysg.

Yn dilyn y cyflwyniad, rhoddodd y Cadeirydd gyfle i'r Aelodau ofyn cwestiynau.

Cyfeiriodd Aelod at y dull ymgysylltu &'r gymuned gan holi a yw'r
gweithgareddau a'r gwasanaethau sy'n cael eu cynnig tu hwnt i oriau ysgol yn
hawdd eu cyrraedd ar gyfer plant sy'n byw mewn tlodi, e.e. does dim angen
cadw lle ar-lein, talu ar gyfer gweithgareddau a threfnu cludiant i/o'r
gweithgareddau.

Roedd Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Mynychu'r Ysgol a Lles wedi ymateb drwy
ddweud bod y Gwasanaeth Ymgysylltu a Chyfranogiad leuenctid yn gweithio'n
agos gydag ysgolion i wneud yn sir bod cludiant yn cael ei ddarparu ar gyfer y
disgyblion fel bod modd iddyn nhw fynychu'r gweithgareddau a theithio adref yn
ddiogel. Fodd bynnag, roedd e wedi cydnabod bod gwaith dadansoddi data yn
dangos bod angen cynnal gwaith a gwaith datblygu pellach yn y maes yma i
weld a oes modd goresgyn y costau uchel sy'n gysylitiedig & chludiant.

Nododd Aelod nad oes modd i rai rhieni sy'n byw mewn tlodi fynychu
nosweithiau rhieni gan fod eu plant yn dal y bws i'r ysgol a dydy'r rhieni ddim yn
gallu teithio yn 6l i'r ysgol ar gyfer yr apwyntiadau gyda'r nos. Nododd yr Aelod
fod cynnal y cyfarfodydd yma yn y gymuned fel bod modd i bob rhiant fynychu
wedi bod yn llwyddiannus yn y gorffennol. Cytunodd y Cadeirydd a nododd fod
llai na 50% o ysgolion yn cynnig gweithgareddau ar 6l ysgol a bod angen
gwneud rhagor i fynd i'r afael & Thlodi Plant a'r rhwystrau y mae'r teuluoedd
yma'n eu hwynebu. Cyfeiriodd y Cadeirydd at y gostyngiad (61.5% i 59.3%) yn
nifer yr ysgolion sydd ag aelod dynodedig o staff sy'n gyfrifol am ddatblygu a
gwella gwaith amlasiantaeth, a nododd fod angen ymchwilio ymhellach i'r
gostyngiad yma.

Tudalen 9



Wrth ymateb i ymholiad gan Aelod am waith amlasiantaeth a chymorth trydydd
parti mewn perthynas & materion mynychu'r ysgol, rhoddodd y Pennaeth
Mynychu'r Ysgol a Lles wybod bod llawer o waith yn cael ei wneud yn y maes
yma, er bod llawer o waith eto i'w wneud. Ychwanegodd fod y gwasanaeth yn
cynnal trafodaethau strategol gyda sefydliad lechyd Cyhoeddus Cymru mewn
perthynas & darparu cyfleoedd cyd-leoli mewn ysgolion e.e. cymorth iechyd
meddwl ac ymwelwyr iechyd ochr yn ochr & gwasanaethau addysg canolog,
mae'r trafodaethau yma yn y camau cynnar ar hyn o bryd.

Gofynnodd Aelod a yw'r fenter Big Bocs Bwyd yn cysylltu & banciau bwyd i
sicrhau bod gwasanaeth cofleidiol ar gael wrth i deuluoedd gael eu hatgyfeirio i'r
Banc Bwyd. Roedd Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Mynychu'r Ysgol a Lles wedi
ymateb drwy nodi bod Big Bocs Bwyd fel arfer yn cael ei weithredu gan
Swyddogion Ymgysylltu & Theuluoedd sydd & chysylltiadau agos &'r banciau
bwyd ac sydd yn y sefyllifa orau i ddeall anghenion y teulu. Ychwanegodd fod y
fenter hon yn rhoi cyfle i deuluoedd fanteisio ar adnoddau, megis gwisg ysgol
drwy'r cynllun ailgylchu a nwyddau glanweithiol, yn ogystal & bwyd - mae'r rhain
yn cael eu hariannu gan yr Awdurdod Lleol.

Cyfeiriodd Aelod at fodel Llywodraeth Cymru mewn perthynas ag Ysgolion Bro,
yn enwedig erthygl 31 o Gonfensiwn y Cenhedloedd Unedig, sy'n rhoi'r hawl i
Chwarae, Addysg, lechyd, Tai a Bwyd i blant. Mynegodd yr Aelod bryderon am
y ffaith nad yw'r cynllun Prydau Ysgol am Ddim yn cael ei lansio tan fis Medi
2024, felly a oes modd gwneud unrhyw beth yn y cyfamser i sicrhau nad yw
unrhyw blentyn yn RhCT yn mynd heb fwyd, a hithau'n Aelod o'r Awdurdod
Lleol, roedd hi'n poeni am y mater ac roedd hi wedi cael gwybod bod hyn yn
digwydd, yn enwedig lle nad oedd gan deuluoedd atebolrwydd i gronfeydd
cyhoeddus.

Rhoddodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Mynychu'r Ysgol a Lles wybod bod cyfarfod
wedi'i gynnal gyda'r Gwasanaethau i Blant y mis diwethaf i drafod y mater gyda
Cholegau a Phrifysgolion yn ardal RhCT, gan fod nifer o'r teuluoedd sydd heb
atebolrwydd i gronfeydd cyhoeddus yn fyfyrwyr & theuluoedd sy'n dewis dod i'r
DU gyda'r myfyriwr. Ychwanegodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau
Cynhwysiant fod y mater yma eisoes wedi'i godi gyda'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a
Chraffu, a phwysleisiodd y dylai Ysgolion sy'n poeni bod plant yn mynd heb fwyd
gyfeirio'r mater at y carfanau Diogelu ar unwaith. Daeth &'i chyfraniad hi i ben
drwy nodi bod yr Awdurdod ar hyn o bryd yn gwneud cynnydd da o ran
cyflwyno’r cynllun Prydau Ysgol am Ddim i Blant Ysgolion Cynradd yn gynt na'r
disgwyl.

Gofynnodd Aelod arall am ddadansoddiad pellach o'r arolwg sydd wedi'i nodi ym
mharagraff 15.2 o'r adroddiad, a hynny oherwydd y nifer bach o ymatebion a
derbyniwyd yn ogystal &'r posibilrwydd bod yr un bobl wedi ymateb yr ail dro.
Roedd Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Mynychu'r Ysgol a Lles wedi nodi bod yr arolwg
yn cymryd 20 munud i'w gwblhau ac roedd pob cwestiwn yn cynnwys blwch
atodol sy'n cael ei ddadansoddi i fesur anghenion cymorth, felly mae cyfradd
ymateb o 83% yn uchel iawn. Derbyniodd yr ail arolwg cyfradd ymateb o0 51%
sydd, unwaith eto, yn uchel ar gyfer arolwg.

Cyfeiriodd Aelod at ddefnyddio cyfleusterau yn y Gymuned a dywedodd y dylai'r
awdurdod fod yn ymgynghori &'r gymuned sy'n byw yn yr ardal gyfagos pan
fyddan nhw'n ystyried agor neu ymestyn oriau agor y cyfleusterau, gan y byddan
nhw'n cael eu heffeithio gan y penderfyniad. Cadarnhaodd Pennaeth y
Gwasanaeth Mynychu'r Ysgol a Lles y bydd unrhyw gynigion yn destun gwaith

Tudalen 10



ymgynghori &'r gymuned a bydd cyfle i ddarparu adborth am unrhyw gynigion yn
unol a'r trefniadau cynllunio arferol.

Nododd Aelod y byddai wedi bod yn dda gweld cyfres o ddeilliannau cadarn
mewn perthynas a sut mae llwyddiant yn edrych a sut y bydd llwyddiant yn cael
ei fesur wrth fynd i'r afael & Thlodi Plant ac Ysgolion Bro. Ychwanegodd yr Aelod
y byddai'n wych gweld dull strategol yn cael ei fabwysiadu, sy'n cynnwys
cynlluniau gweithredu manwl yn ogystal ag adolygiad o'r canlyniadau i asesu'r
effaith. Cytunodd y Cadeirydd y byddai hi hefyd yn hoffi gweld cynllun
gweithredu sy'n cynnwys Dangosyddion Cyflawniad Allweddol a chyfle i'r
Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu roi gwybod am y gwaith sy'n cael ei gyflawni yn
rhan o'r Strategaeth Tlodi Plant. Dywedodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth Mynychu'r
Ysgol a Lles mai'r bwriad yw defnyddio'r Strategaeth sydd wedi'i chynnwys yn yr
Atodiad fel y ddogfen strategol, mae yna ddogfen fframwaith/pecyn cymorth sy'n
cyd-fynd a'r ddogfen yma ac mae'r ddogfen yma'n cael ei defnyddio ar gyfer
dulliau gweithredol, sy'n cynnwys Dangosyddion Cyflawniad Allweddol yn dilyn
gwaith mapio cymunedol.

Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant wybod eu bod
nhw'n trio symleiddio'r cynlluniau strategol a'u cynnwys nhw yn ein Cynllun
Cyflawni Blynyddol. Pwysleisiodd y Cyfarwyddwr fod gan y Cynllun Cyflawni
Blynyddol meini prawf llwyddiant gyda mesurau pellach yn ystod y flwyddyn
academaidd hon, ac mae Tlodi Plant yn tanategu'r hyn y mae'r Cyngor yn ei
wneud. Mae'r mater yn cael ei drafod ar lefel corfforaethol ac ar draws y
Cyfarwyddiaethau i sicrhau bod y gwaith sy'n cael ei wneud yn cael ei werthuso
ac yn cyflawni'r effaith a ddymunir.

Nododd y Cadeirydd ei bod hi'n falch o ddarllen bod hyfforddiant wedi'i gynnig i
Lywodraethwyr mewn perthynas a'r agenda Ysgolion Bro, mae hi'n bwysig bod
yr hyfforddiant yn cael ei gynnig ym mhob ysgol. Ychwanegodd y byddai hi'n
hoffi gweld yr eitem yma'n cael ei thrafod gan y Pwyllgor eto, gan gynnwys
manylion am faint o bobl sy'n manteisio ar y mentrau gwahanol, megis Big Bocs
Bwyd a sut mae modd gwella darpariaeth y gwasanaethau yma i roi cymorth i'r
teuluoedd sydd eu hangen fwyaf. Dylai'r adroddiad gynnwys data am yr
ymatebion i'r arolwg. Estynnodd y Cadeirydd wahoddiad i'r Swyddogion
Ymgysylltu & Theuluoedd i gyfarfod o'r pwyligor yn y dyfodol gan nodi y byddai'n
wych clywed ganddyn nhw.

Awgrymodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant eu bod nhw'n
trafod yr eitem yn dilyn yr ymgynghoriad ar y Cynllun Corfforaethol fel bod modd
cymryd camau mewn perthynas & sut bydd y Gyfarwyddiaeth yn bwrw ymlaen
a'r Cynllun Cyflawni yn ystod y flwyddyn academaidd ac yna bydd modd darparu
hunanwerthusiad i Aelodau. Cytunodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth -
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu, a nododd mai'r Pwyligor Trosolwg
a Chraffu fydd y cyntaf i gael cyfle i lunio'r cynlluniau penodol mewn perthynas &
Thilodi Plant, a hynny yn rhan o Rybudd o Gynnig a gyflwynwyd i'r Cyngor.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth, PENDERFYNWYD:

1. Nodi effaith gadarnhaol y gwaith sydd wedi'i gynnal ynghylch Ysgolion
Bro a'r agenda Tlodi Plant yn ogystal &'r camau nesaf.

2. Trafod yr eitem yma unwaith eto yn ystod cyfarfod arall o'r Pwyllgor
Craffu - Addysg a Chynhwysiant, a hynny er mwyn ategu trafodaethau'r
Pwyligor Trosolwg a Chraffu.

Tudalen 11



30

DIWEDDARIAD AR AIL FLWYDDYN GWEITHREDU DEDDF ANGHENION
DYSGU YCHWANEGOL A'R TRIBIWNLYS ADDYSG 2018 YNG NGHYNGOR
BWRDEISTREF SIROL RHONDDA CYNON TAF

Cyflwynodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant yr adroddiad i'r Aelodau,
sy'n cynnwys diweddariad ar weithredu'r Ddeddf Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol
a'r Tribiwnlys Addysg Cymru (2018) a'r Cod ADY yng Nghymru (2021) yn
Rhondda Cynon Taf (RhCT) yn ystod blwyddyn academaidd 2022/23.

Croesawodd y Cadeirydd y Cydlynwyr ADY i'r cyfarfod, gan ddiolch iddyn nhw
am gyfrannu at y trafodaethau.

Yn dilyn y cyflwyniad, rhoddodd y Cadeirydd gyfle i'r Aelodau ofyn cwestiynau.

Gofynnodd Aelod a yw'r swyddogion o'r farn bod unrhyw fylchau yn y
ddarpariaeth yn RhCT. Dywedodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant fod
gwaith adlinio dosbarthiadau cynnal dysgu yn cael ei gynnal yn aml ac rydyn ni'n
ceisio sicrhau bod y dosbarthiadau cynnal dysgu yn cael eu dosbarthu'n deg
ledled y Fwrdeistref Sirol. Rydyn ni o hyd yn ceisio gwella'n cyfleusterau i

sicrhau eu bod nhw'n addas ar gyfer cwricwlwm yr 213N ganrif. Ychwanegodd
nad oedd hi o'r farn bod unrhyw fylchau ar hyn o bryd, ond roedd hi'n cydnabod
bod angen adolygu'r ddarpariaeth yn rheolaidd.

Gofynnodd Aelod a yw'r porth sy'n cael ei ddefnyddio gan staff ysgol wedi'i
wella. Cadarnhaodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant fod newidiadau
wedi'u gwneud i wella a symleiddio'r broses yn dilyn adborth gan y Cydlynwyr
Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol. Ychwanegodd fod swyddogion wedi ymchwilio i
achosion o wrthod ceisiadau ac mae’r wybodaeth yma wedi cael ei defnyddio i
wella'r broses o gyflwyno cais. Nododd y Swyddog fod y ffurflen Gwneud Cais
am Leoliad Arbenigol hefyd wedi cael ei hadolygu a does dim angen i'r
Cydlynwyr Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol gyflwyno cynifer o ffurflenni erbyn
hyn. Roedd hi'n cydnabod bod y broses yma'n broses newydd arall - ond
nododd fod y broses wedi'i symleiddio.

Rhoddodd y Cydlynydd Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol wybod bod y porth wedi
cyflwyno rhai heriau ac er bod rhai heriau bach o hyd, mae'r Awdurdod Lleol
wedi gwneud llawer o waith i wella'r broses. Ychwanegodd fod gweithgor wedi
adolygu ac asesu pa welliannau y mae modd eu gwneud ac mae'r rhain wedi'u
gweithredu erbyn hyn.

Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd a yw'r Cydlynwyr Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol yn
teimlo bod ganddyn nhw'r amser a'r adnoddau sydd eu hangen i sicrhau bod
modd iddyn nhw gyflawni'u dyletswyddau.

Roedd y Cydlynydd Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol o'r farn ei bod hi mewn
sefyllfa ffodus, mae ei Phennaeth hi'n darparu arweinyddiaeth gadarn ac roedd
hi'n angerddol dros gynhwysiant ac yn rhoi amser i sicrhau bod modd i'r garfan
wella'u sgiliau. Roedd hi o'r farn bod ei hysgol hi wedi ymrwymo'n llwyr i
anghenion y myfyrwyr ac yn canolbwyntio ar gymorth ADY, maen nhw'n cael eu
cefnogi gan gynorthwywyr ac yn derbyn cymorth gweinyddol hefyd.
Cadarnhaodd Cydlynydd Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol arall ei bod hi mewn
sefyllfa debyg, eleni mae ganddi rél sydd ddim yn cynnwys addysgu fel bod
modd iddi ganolbwyntio ar ADY. Yn ogystal & hyn mae ganddi Ddirprwy

Tudalen 12



Gydlynydd Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol. Nododd hefyd fod ceisio addysgu yn
ogystal & chyflawni rél y Cydlynydd Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol yn heriol.

Rhoddodd y Cadeirydd wybod y byddai'r Pwyllgor yn hoffi trafod yr eitem yma
eto yn rhan o'u Rhaglen Waith, a bydden nhw'n hoffi gweld canfyddiadau, data a
deilliannau'r dasg Sicrhau Ansawdd ac Arferion sy'n Canolbwyntio ar yr
Unigolyn.

Cadarnhaodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant y bydd gwaith Sicrhau
Ansawdd yn parhau dros gyfnod o dair blynedd, fodd bynnag bydd adborth yn
cael ei ddarparu drwy gydol y broses. Esboniodd i'r Pwyllgor eu bod nhw wedi
rhyddhau Arweinwyr Clwstwr Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol am 12 diwrnod yn
ystod y flwyddyn ddiweddaf, a hynny gyda chymorth cyllid grant. Maen nhw'n
gweithio'n agos gyda Chydlynwyr Darpariaeth Ddysgu Ychwanegol i sefydlu
proses Sicrhau Ansawdd & haenau gwahanol. Cadarnhaodd y bydd deilliannau'r
broses yn cael eu defnyddio i roi adborth i'r fforymau i Gydlynwyr Anghenion
Dysgu Ychwanegol. Aeth ymlaen i ddweud eu bod nhw'n gweithio gyda
Chonsortiwm Canolbarth y De i ddatblygu cyfleoedd dysgu proffesiynol ar gyfer
y Penaethiaid, Cydlynwyr Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol a Swyddogion Gwella
a byddan nhw'n datblygu sesiynau hyfforddiant sy'n trafod arferion cynhwysol,
dulliau hunanwerthuso ADY effeithiol a sut mae modd defnyddio'r deilliannau
hunanwerthuso er mwyn cyfrannu at gynlluniau datblygu ysgolion.

Holodd y Cadeirydd am y cyfnod pontio ar gyfer y dysgwyr yma wrth iddyn nhw
symud i addysg 61-16 - ydyn nhw'n parhau i fynychu'r ysgol neu'n symud i'r coleg
neu'n dod o hyd i ddarpariaeth amgen?

Darparodd y Cydlynydd Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol yr ymateb ysgrifenedig
canlynol o ganlyniad i broblemau technegol:

¢ Rydyn ni'n gweithio'n agos gyda'r coleg, mae nifer o fyfyrwyr wedi
penderfynu astudio cyrsiau ymarferol, fel arlwyo.

¢ Mae gyda ni system bontio gadarn ar gyfer y myfyrwyr hynny sy'n parhau
i'r 6%4 dosbarth. Weithiau mae hyn yn broses well ar gyfer ein myfyrwyr
gan eu bod nhw eisoes yn gyfarwydd a'r safle a'r staff.

¢ Rydyn ni wedi profi llwyddiant mawr yn y gorffennol gyda myfyrwyr sy'n
symud i astudio ym Mhrifysgol Caerdydd yn dilyn y prosiect.

Gofynnodd y Cadeirydd am ragor o fanylion am yr archwiliad o'r gweithlu ADY a
gynhaliwyd yn y Gwasanaeth Mynediad a Chynhwysiant a lleoliadau arbenigol
yn RhCT yn ogystal & gwaith datblygu cyfle datblygu proffesiynol ar y cyd ar
gyfer Penaethiaid, Cydlynwyr Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol a Swyddogion
Gwella Consortiwm Canolbarth y De er mwyn sicrhau bod yna dealltwriaeth a
rennir mewn perthynas a phroses hunanwerthuso ADY.

Rhoddodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Cynhwysiant wybod bod y Cod ADY yn
nodi bod angen datblygu system ddwyieithog gyda Llywodraeth Cymru, gan
gydnabod bod cryn dipyn o waith i'w wneud o hyd. Esboniodd fod nifer o
awdurdodau lleol yn wynebu'r un heriau ar lefel genedlaethol. Roedd y
Pennaeth Gwasanaeth yn cydnabod y diffyg o ran adnoddau cyfrwng Cymraeg
ac o ran y gweithlu ar lefel genedlaethol. Rydyn ni'n hyderus bod gyda ni
arbenigwyr sy'n siarad Cymraeg ym mhob un o'n gwasanaethau yn lleol, fodd
bynnag, mae angen i ni feithrin mwy o gydnerthedd yn rhan o gynllun
gweithredu'r Cynllun Strategol Cymraeg mewn Addysg er mwyn sicrhau bod

Tudalen 13



31

32

swyddi sy'n nodi bod sgiliau Cymraeg yn hanfodol ar waith ym mhob un o'n
meysydd gwasanaeth.

Esboniodd y Cadeirydd y byddai'r Pwyllgor yn hoffi gweld yr eitem yma'n
dychwelyd i'r Pwyllgor yn y dyfodol, er mwyn rhannu data am y broses sicrhau
ansawdd, gan gynnwys deilliannau a'r effaith ar ein dysgwyr. Dymunodd y
Cadeirydd ddiolch i'r swyddogion am fynychu'r cyfarfod a dymunodd y Pwyligor
hefyd ddiolch i'r Cydlynwyr Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol am fynychu'r cyfarfod
a chyfrannu.

Yn dilyn trafodaeth, PENDERFYNWYD:

1. Craffu ar yr wybodaeth sydd wedi'i chynnwys yn yr adroddiad, a chyflwyno
sylwadau arni.

2. Cynnwys yr eitem yma yn rhan o agenda arall yn y dyfodol, ar adeg briodol, er
mwyn trafod data o'r broses Sicrhau Ansawdd, gan gynnwys deilliannau a'r
effaith ar ddysgwyr.

ADOLYGIAD Y CADEIRYDD A DOD A'R CYFARFOD | BEN

MATERION BRYS

Dim

Y Cynghorydd S Evans
Cadeirydd

Tudalen 14



Agendwm 4
2

RHONDDA CYNON TAF
B

Ve

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
MUNICPAL YEAR 2023-24
EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
14™ DECEMBER 2023
PRE-SCRUTINY OF A DRAFT CABINET REPORT: ‘PROPOSALS TO CLOSE
RHIGOS PRIMARY SCHOOL WITH PUPILS TRANSFERRING TO HIRWAUN
PRIMARY SCHOOL’
REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES AND
COMMUNICATIONS.

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1.  The purpose of this report is to provide the opportunity for Committee to pre-
scrutinise the recommendations of the Director of Education & Inclusion to the
Council’s Cabinet on the 18" December 2023, in consultation with the Cabinet
Member for Education, Youth Participation & Welsh Language in respect of the
‘PROPOSAL TO CLOSE RHIGOS PRIMARY SCHOOL WITH
PUPILSTRANSFERRING TO HIRWAUN PRIMARY SCHOOL'.

1.2  This report provides a mechanism for Committee to comment on the proposals
and to authorise the Service Director Democratic Services & Communications,
to present the comments and/or recommendations of Scrutiny Committee to
Cabinet.

2.  RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Committee:

2.1 Scrutinise and challenge the ‘draft’ Cabinet report and recommendations of the
Director of Education & Inclusion, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Education, Youth Participation & Welsh Language.

2.2 Following Members’ consideration of the draft Cabinet report, authorise the
Service Director Democratic Services & Communications to facilitate and
provide Committee’s comments, observations and/or recommendations to the
Cabinet in respect of the proposals prior to Cabinet’s consideration on the 18t"
December 2023.

Tudalen 15



3.1

3.2

41.

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

To provide Scrutiny with the opportunity to undertake pre-scrutiny of the
proposal to transfer pupils from Rhigos Primary School to Hirwaun Primary
School following its closure, in line with the requirements of the Welsh
Government’s School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018) prior to its
consideration by Cabinet.

The need to provide Members with information on the outcome of the recent
consultation in respect of the proposals, in order to make informed comments
and provide feedback to Cabinet.

BACKGROUND

At the meeting of Cabinet held on 18" September 2023, approval was given to
begin the relevant and required statutory school organisation consultation to
close Rhigos Primary School in line with the requirements of the Welsh
Government’s School Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011/2018); and to
extend the catchment area of Hirwaun Primary School to incorporate the
current catchment area of Rhigos Primary School.

Members are aware of the Council’s statutory duty to maintain the efficiency
and effectiveness of provision to ensure that all schools are well placed to
deliver high quality education that meets the needs of the community and
makes best use of public funding. In its report to Cabinet in September 2023,
it was proposed that due to the steady decline of pupils joining Rhigos Primary
School and with pupil numbers forecast to continue to fall in the next five
years, that Rhigos Primary School closes with pupils from the school moving
to Hirwaun Primary School. The consultation also stipulated that ‘in
accordance with the School Admissions Code (005/2013) this proposal will be
subject to parental choice’.

Members will note that the report also referenced that Rhigos Primary School
is also within the catchment of the Welsh medium provision at Ysgol Gynradd
Gymraeg Penderyn, and tailored and individual support is currently available
from the Council’s Welsh language Immersion Team for any pupils wishing to
continue their education, at YGG Penderyn, through the medium of Welsh.

The consultation in respect of these proposals was undertaken between 2"
October 2023 and the 17" November 2023 under the arrangements outlined in
the Welsh Government’'s School Organisation Code. These arrangements
stipulated that ‘the consultation must be undertaken when the proposals are at
a formative stage and that Consultation Documents must be prepared and
circulated to prescribed consultees, as well as being published on the Council
website.’

Attached at Appendix 1A, is the draft Cabinet Report, including

recommendations from the Director of Education & Inclusion, in consultation
with the Cabinet Member for Education, Youth Participation & Welsh Language.

Tudalen 16



4.6

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

6.1

7.1

The feedback from a wide range of stakeholders provided via the consultation
process has been incorporated into a Consultation Report (and subsequent
appendices) which is attached at part of the draft Cabinet report included at
Appendix A. The draft Cabinet report provides a summary of correspondence
received during the consultation, including the full response from Estyn,
feedback received from the online survey, and notes of the meetings held.

PRE-SCRUTINY

Members are reminded that the purpose of pre scrutiny activity is to influence
and scrutinise decisions of Cabinet before they are made, as ‘critical friends’.

This draft Cabinet report was identified for pre-scrutiny by the Chair of the
Education & Inclusion Scrutiny Committee, Clir Sera Evans. This request is in
accordance with the Council’'s Overview & Scrutiny Procedure Rules.

This opportunity has been facilitated for Committee, with the support of the
Director of Education & Inclusion, and the Cabinet Member for Education, Youth
Participation & Welsh Language.

In the absence of the opportunity for Overview & Scrutiny Committee to
determine the most appropriate mechanism for scrutinising this matter, the
Service Director Democratic Services & Communications, has facilitated this
report in consultation with the Chair of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee. This
approach will be reported for information, when the Overview & Scrutiny
Committee next consider the Cabinet Work programme.

The Education and Inclusion Services Scrutiny Committee continues to have
the opportunity to explore and comment on a number of reports in advance of
Cabinet’s consideration to bring a different perspective to the decisions made
and enabling Cabinet decisions to be more informed.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS/SOCIO-ECONOMIC DUTY

An Equality Impact Assessment (with Social-Economic Duty) was prepared in
respect of the proposal and was published on RCTCBC’s website together
with a Consultation Document that outlined the proposal in further detail in
accordance with the requirements of the WG’s School Organisation Code
(2nd Edition) (011 / 2018).

WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS

A Welsh Language Impact Assessment was prepared in respect of the proposal
and was published on RCTCBC’s website together with a Consultation
Document that outlined the proposal in further detail in accordance with the
requirements of the WG’s School Organisation Code (2" Edition) (011 / 2018).

CONSULTATION/INVOLVEMENT

Tudalen 17



8.1

8.2

9.1

10

10.1

11

11.1

11.2

12

121

12.2

The aforementioned proposals have been subject to a comprehensive public
consultation with a wide range of stakeholders, including Estyn’s full response
and the clarification to the response, for a minimum period of six weeks.

The involvement of the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee and public
participation in the pre-scrutiny exercise will contribute to the quality and
robustness of Cabinet decision-making.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications aligned to this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED

The following legislation / regulations are aligned to this report: The School
Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and the WG’'s School
Organisation Code (2nd Edition) (011 / 2018).

LINKS TO THE CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE
WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT.

There are links between RCTCBC’s Directorate of Education and Inclusion
Service’s School Modernisation Programme and RCTCBC's Corporate Plan for
the years 2020 to 2024, ‘Making a Difference’, as well as to the Directorate of
Education and Inclusion Services’ Strategic Plan for the years between 2022
and 2025 (as set out in the attached draft Cabinet report).

The proposal could contribute to the some of the seven well-being goals within
the Future Generation (Wales) Act 2015 and due regard has been made to the
Five Ways of Working, as contained within the Wellbeing of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015.

CONCLUSION

As the attached report sets out, ‘the Council has a statutory duty through its
approach to the organisation and leadership arrangements of schools to
maintain the efficiency and effectiveness of provision to ensure that all
schools are well placed to deliver high quality education that meets the needs
of the community and makes best use of public funding’.

The undertaking of pre-scrutiny by the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny
Committee in respect of the outcome of the recent consultation, will ensure that
the Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee fully evaluates the
recommendations of the draft Cabinet report, prior to consideration by Cabinet.

Tudalen 18



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

as amended by

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS:

EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION ON THE PROPOSALS TO CLOSE RHIGOS PRIMARY
SCHOOL WITH PUPILS TRANSFERRING TO HIRWAUN PRIMARY SCHOOL
14™ DECEMBER 2023

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES &
COMMUNICATIONS

Tudalen 19



Tudalen wag



Ve

=
RHONDDA%I:I;N TAF
APPENDIX 1A
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
DRAFT CABINET

18™ DECEMBER 2023

PROPOSAL TO CLOSE RHIGOS PRIMARY SCHOOL WITH PUPILS

TRANSFERRING TO HIRWAUN PRIMARY SCHOOL

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SERVICES IN

DISCUSSION WITH THE CABINET MEMBER FOR EDUCATION, YOUTH
PARTICIPATION AND WELSH LANGUAGE (COUNCILLOR R LEWIS)

AUTHOR(S):
Gaynor Davies, Director of Education and Inclusion Services
Andrea Richards, Service Director of 215t Century Schools and Transformation

1.

1.1

2.1

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to advise Members of the outcome of the recent
consultation in respect of the proposal to:

Close Rhigos Primary School with pupils transferring to Hirwaun Primary
School by no later than September 2024.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members:

211

21.2

213

214

Note the content of this report.

Note the information contained within the attached Consultation Report,
attached as Appendix A to this Cabinet Report, which includes a
summary of correspondence received during the consultation, including
the full response from Estyn, feedback received from the online survey,
and notes of the meetings held.

Note the feedback from Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee
which met on 14" December 2023 provided by the Service Director of
Democratic Services and Communication.

Agree to progress the proposals to the next stage of the consultation

process by issuing an appropriate Statutory Notice which will trigger the
start of the Objection Period.

Tudalen 21



3.1

4.1

411

41.2

41.3

41.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

To progress the proposal in accordance with the process outlined in the Welsh
Government’s (WG'’s) legislative guidance the School Organisation Code (2"
Edition) (011 / 2018).

BACKGROUND

Members will recall that, at the meeting of the Cabinet held on 18" September
2023, approval was given to begin a statutory process to formally consult on
the proposal to close Rhigos Primary School with pupils transferring to Hirwaun
Primary School by no later than September 2024. The justifications for doing
SO were:

RCTCBC has a statutory duty through its approach to the organisation and
leadership arrangements of schools to maintain the efficiency and effectiveness
of provision to ensure that all schools are well placed to deliver high quality
education that meets the needs of the community and makes best use of public
funding.

Rhigos Primary School is RCTCBC's smallest school and the number of pupils
joining Rhigos Primary School has been in steady decline and pupil numbers
are forecast to continue to fall in the next five years.

Allowing surplus places to remain high through inaction would directly and
negatively affect the future financial viability of Rhigos Primary School and
impact children’s education in the future. Rhigos Primary School’s budget, with
a diminishing income would have less money for staff salaries, curriculum
activities, equipment, running costs and maintenance of the school estate and
would therefore struggle to maintain their current good education offer.

To continue to effectively manage the education provision available in the
Cynon Valley area of Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT). The proposal would extend
and expand upon the positive outcomes delivered through the WG’s
Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme, enabling more pupils to
benefit from this significant investment which has included the provision of the
new Hirwaun Primary School building.

To continue to deliver on the objectives included within the WG’s Sustainable
Communities for Learning rolling programme, specifically:

Transforming learning environments and learner experience.
Meeting demand for school places.

Improving condition and suitability of the education estate.
Developing sustainable learning environments.

Supporting the community.

O O O O O

To continue to deliver the mission of RCTCBC’s Directorate of Education and
Inclusion Services’ Strategic Plan for the years between 2022 and 2025 to
ensure ‘Equity and Excellence in Education and Enhanced Wellbeing for All’.

Tudalen 22


https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s42703/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s42703/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/SchoolsandLearning/RelatedDocuments/Strategicplans/EducationStrategicPlan.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Resident/SchoolsandLearning/RelatedDocuments/Strategicplans/EducationStrategicPlan.pdf

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

An Equality Impact Assessment was prepared in respect of the proposal and
published on Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council's (RCTCBC'’s)
website together with a Consultation Document that outlined the proposal in
further detail in accordance with the requirements of the WG’s School
Organisation Code (2" Edition) (011 / 2018). This Assessment has been
updated following a review of the responses received.

The outcome of Equality Impact Assessment identified:

e Positive and neutral impacts, and no negative impacts, upon the protected
characteristics.

e Hirwaun Primary School is fully compliant with the Equality Act 2010 thereby
ensuring that no pupil, staff member, parent / carer or member of the wider
community is prevented from fully accessing the whole extent of the new
facilities.

e There would be positive impacts on the Welsh language as, despite Hirwaun
Primary School being an English medium primary school, it provides
improved facilities to assist with the delivery of Welsh as a key element of
the curriculum and in line with Cymraeg 2050 and RCTCBC’s WESP, as we
aim for the teaching of Welsh as a second language in English medium
schools, to be of the highest quality.

e Hirwaun Primary School has first class facilities that ensure that all families
who wish to access places at the school can be accommodated. The
excellent facilities on offer may encourage more parents / carers to choose
their catchment school, including the families of learners with ALN. The
capacity may assist armed forces personnel and carers who may move to
the area mid-academic year.

It was considered that no negative impacts were identified within the Equality
Impact Assessment which would prevent approval to be sought to continue to
implement the proposal. To confirm, the Action Plan included within the Equality
Impact Assessment would continue to be reviewed throughout the duration of
the proposal’s delivery period.

In accordance with the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duties,
RCTCBC has a legal duty to look at how its decisions impact on people because
they may have particular characteristics. So as part of seeking views on the
proposal, the consultation also included the following question:

1.How would RCTCBC'’s proposal affect you because of your:

Sex.
Age.
Ethnicity.
Disability.
Sexuality.

Tudalen 23



5.5

6.1

6.2

Religion/Belief.
Gender Identity.
Relationship Status.
Pregnancy.
Preferred Language.

Of those respondents that answered this question, the majority, 136 (92.5%),
gave no answer to this question. However, 4 (2.7%) commented that the
proposal could negatively impact them due to their age whilst 7 (4.8%)
commented that the proposal could negative impact them due to their disability.

WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS

A Welsh Language Impact Assessment was prepared in respect of the proposal
and was published on RCTCBC’s website together with a Consultation
Document that outlined the proposal in further detail in accordance with the
requirements of the WG’s School Organisation Code (2" Edition) (011 / 2018).
This Assessment has been updated following a review of the responses
received.

The outcome of the Welsh Language Impact Assessment identified:

e Hirwaun Primary School has recently benefitted from a £9.6M investment
via the WG’s Sustainable Communities for Learning Programme, delivering
a brand new school with a high quality, 215t Century teaching and learning
environment, enriching the teaching and learning experiences for both
pupils and staff. The school opened its doors to the English medium pupils
previously attending Penderyn Community Primary School in September
2021. It is a fully accessible school building which wholly complies with the
Equality Act 2010.

e Rhigos Primary school is also within the catchment of the Welsh medium
provision at Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Penderyn, and tailored and individual
support would be available from the Council’s Welsh Language Immersion
Team for any pupils wishing to continue their education, at Penderyn,
through the medium of Welsh.

e Although Hirwaun Primary School is an English medium primary school,
Welsh is taught as part of the curriculum and all pupils would benefit from
having the opportunity to be taught in brand new facilities fit for the 21t
century.

e RCTCBC aims to embed positive habits and attitudes towards the Welsh
language through purposeful planning to promote the informal use of the
Welsh language amongst pupils inside and outside schools. Facilitating the
use of the Welsh language across the curriculum and in wider contexts in
schools, to ensure a continuum of linguistic progression to support pupils in
the transition between key stages, offers all pupils the opportunity to
become fully bilingual and aligns with the Curriculum for Wales 2022. Pupils
attending Hirwaun Primary School would continue to be encouraged and
supported to do this through the achievement of the ‘Cymraeg Campus’
Welsh Language Charter, a framework to promote and increase the use of
Welsh.

Tudalen 24



6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

e Hirwaun Primary school is a fully accessible and fully integrated community
school. A dedicated area has been designed within so that the local
community are allowed to safely use the facilities, both during and after the
school day. The headteacher of the Hirwaun Primary School will continue
to be encouraged and supported to consider using these facilities to
increase participation in the Welsh language by offering the opportunity to
parents/carers and other members of the community to attend Welsh
medium learning classes for adults and/or other opportunities for community
engagement through the medium of Welsh.

e This could contribute towards the Welsh Government’s ambitious goal of
creating a million Welsh speakers in Wales by 2050 and the WESP.

It was considered that no negative impacts were identified within the Welsh
Language Impact Assessment which would prevent approval to be sought to
continue to implement the proposal. To confirm, the Action Plan included within
the Welsh Language Impact Assessment would continue to be reviewed
throughout the duration of the proposal’s delivery period.

In accordance with the Welsh Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015 and in
compliance with RCTCBC's statutory obligations, the consultation included the
following questions:

1. Do you think the proposal could impact opportunities for people to use and
promote the Welsh Language (Positive or Negative)?

2. Do you think the proposal in any way treats the Welsh Language less
favourably than the English Language?

3. How positive effects on the Welsh Language could be increased, or
negative effects be decreased?

A summary of the responses received in relation to these questions can be
found in the Consultation Report.

CONSULTATION/INVOLVEMENT

The consultation processes in respect of the proposal have been undertaken
under the arrangements outlined in the WG’s School Organisation Code (2"
Edition) (011 / 2018). These arrangements stipulate that a Consultation Report
must be prepared prior to the publication of any Statutory Notice which will
progress the proposal. It further states that Statutory Notices be published
within 26 weeks of the end of the consultation should a decision be made to
progress with the statutory process.

The Consultation Report, prepared in respect of the proposal contains:

¢ Information in respect of meetings held to discuss the proposal, with
copies of the notes taken at these meetings.

e Estyn’s response to the proposal and the clarification to the response.

e A summary of the responses received during the consultation period and
where required the appropriate clarification to any issues raised.

Tudalen 25



7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

e The response received by the ‘Save Rhigos Primary School’ action
committee established on behalf of the community of Rhigos.

As stated above, Estyn’s full response can be found within the consultation
report however, in summary, Estyn considered that the proposal is likely to, at
least, maintain the standard of education provision and outcomes for pupils in
the area. The response further states that the ‘local authority has set out a clear
rationale for its proposal. It outlines strongly the many advantages of closing
Rhigos Primary School, with all pupils transferring to Hirwaun Primary school’.

The ‘Save Rhigos Primary School’ action committee, established on behalf of
the community of Rhigos, undertook three separate petitions to the proposal. In
total, 784, 974, and 65 signatures were added to the petitions respectively by
the consultation deadline, these will be counted as three responses. In addition,
236 written responses were received, 89 in writing / or via email and 147 via
online survey.

Governing Body and staff meetings outlined in the Consultation Report were
held virtually face-to-face. Notes of the meetings were taken and are attached
as Appendix 2 (A to B) to the Consultation Report.

School Council meetings outlined in the Consultation Report were held in the
corresponding schools. Pupils were given a children and young people’s
version of the Consultation Document and Consultation Response. Notes of the
meetings were taken and are attached as Appendix 3 (A to B) to the
Consultation Report.

Two drop in sessions were also arranged so that members of the public could
discuss the proposal with Officers from RCTCBC's Directorate of Education and
Inclusion Services and provide any feedback at the session. They took place in
Rhigos Primary School and Hirwaun Primary School on Monday 6" November
2023 at 15:00 to 18:00 and Tuesday 7" November at 15:00 to 18:00
respectively. Attendees were asked to complete and submit a Consultation
Response Form.

Out of the 239 responses were received, 3 (1.3%) were in favour of the
proposal, 226 (94.5%) were against the proposal, 1 (0.4%) was unsure and 9
(3.8%) did not provide an answer. This is outlined in the table that follows.

Summary of Consultation Responses

Determination Number %

In Favour 3 1.3
Against 226 94.5
Unsure 1 0.4
Not Answered 9 3.8
Total 239 100.0

7.9  To confirm, all of the comments and issues raised during this consultation have
been reviewed by RCTCBC’s Cabinet Members.

Tudalen 26




8.1

8.1.1

8.2

8.3

9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

THE STATUTORY PROCESS

The Statutory Notice for the proposal would refer to the:

Closure of Rhigos Primary School with pupils transferring to Hirwaun Primary
School by no later than September 2024.

If agreed, and subject to the matter not being called in for consideration by
Scrutiny, the Statutory Notice would be published in January 2024, and would
allow for a minimum 28 day period for objections.

If any objections are received during this period, in accordance with the WG’s
School Organisation Code (2" Edition) (011 /2018), an Objection Report would
be prepared. This matter would then be reported to a future meeting of the
Cabinet for Members to consider.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There will be no capital funding implications should the proposal go ahead, and
revenue savings accrued from the closure of Rhigos Primary School would be
reinvested into supporting pupils’ education in Rhondda Cynon Taf.

Given the 2.8 mile distance between Rhigos Primary School and Hirwaun
Primary School, all pupils residing in the Rhigos catchment area would qualify
for home to school transport to Hirwaun in line with the statutory provision as
identified within Learner Travel (Wales) Measure 2008. Additional revenue
implications resulting as a consequence of the closure of Rhigos Primary
School, including the increase in home to school transport costs, would be
identified as the proposal is developed and incorporated into RCTCBC'’s
Medium Term Financial Planning arrangements.

Financial projections show that progressing with the proposals would have a
positive impact upon the budgetary position of Hirwaun Primary School. Further
information on the current and projected budgetary positions of both schools
affected by the proposals were included in the Consultation Document
presented to Cabinet on 18" September 2023.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED

Powers for Councils to develop school organisation proposals are governed by
the:

e The School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013.
e The WG'’s School Organisation Code (2" Edition) (011 /2018).

Council’'s must, when exercising functions under Part 3 of the School Standards
and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013, act in accordance with any relevant

Tudalen 27


https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s42703/Report.pdf?LLL=0

11.

11.1

11.2

11.3

requirements contained in the WG’s School Organisation Code (2" Edition)
(011 /2018) and must have regard to any relevant guidelines contained in it.

LINKS TO RCTCBC’S CORPORATE PLAN, NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND

THE FUTURE GENERATIONS (WALES) ACT 2015

There are links between RCTCBC’s Directorate of Education and Inclusion
Service’s School Modernisation Programme and RCTCBC's Corporate Plan for
the years 2020 to 2024, ‘Making a Difference’, specifically:

e People:
o Encouraging all residents to lead active and healthy lifestyles and
maintain their mental wellbeing:
= Delivering new indoor and outdoor sporting facilities available
for community use and enhancing existing sporting facilities
such as changing rooms and outdoor play areas.
o Improving services for children and young people and ensuring the
needs of children are considered in everything we do:
= Improving the social, emotional, and mental health and
wellbeing of children and young people by increasing the
range of specialist services available on our school sites and
within our communities.
e Places:
o Ensuring RCT is one of the safest places in Wales, with high levels
of community cohesion where residents feel safe:
= Supporting the voluntary, community and faith sectors to help
build active communities, creating the capacity for meeting the
needs of residents within their communities.
e Prosperity:
o Ensuring we have good schools, so all children have access to a
great education.

There are links to RCTCBC'’s Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services’
Strategic Plan for the years between 2022 and 2025, specifically:

e Strategic Priority 3:
o Ensuring equity and support for vulnerable pupils and their families.
e Strategic Priority 5:
o Delivering 21t century learning environments and innovative
services for our pupils and communities.

The proposal in this report would lead to a more efficient use of RCTCBC’s
education estate supporting RCTCBC’s Think Climate, Making RCT Carbon
Neutral by 2030, for the years 2022 to 2025. The closure of an energy inefficient
school would contribute towards achieving the overarching objective of
RCTCBC'’s carbon reduction targets to become carbon neutral by 2030. It also
aligns with the WG’s ambition of a carbon neutral public service by 2030 and
the wider goal of a net zero carbon Wales by 2050 as set out in the WG’s Net
Zero Carbon Strategic Plan: 2022. The investment at Hirwaun Primary School
has seen a number of sustainable technologies incorporated into the design

Tudalen 28



11.4

11.5

11.6

including a rainwater harvesting system, photo-voltaic panels, electric vehicle
charging facilities and biodiversity areas on the school site.

Due regard has been made to all seven wellbeing goals and the five ways of
working, as contained within the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act
2015 which requires RCTCBC to think about the long-term impact of decisions
on communities to prevent consistent issues such as poverty, health
inequalities and climate change.

The proposal could contribute towards achieving some of the seven wellbeing
goals by:

e A Healthier Wales — Accommodation at Hirwaun Primary School consists
of enhanced outdoor spaces and sports facilities. As well as supporting the
full range of curriculum activities these facilities are also available for
community use.

e A More Equal Wales — The wider catchment area for Hirwaun Primary
School and the way the school is used would bring neutral or positive socio-
economic impacts to all of the vulnerable groups over an extended
goegraphical area.

e A Wales of More Cohesive Communities — Hirwaun Primary School is a
fully accessible and integrated community school with a dedicated area
designed within so that the local community can safely use the facilities, both
during and after the school day.

e A Wales of Vibrant Culture and Thriving Welsh Language — Although
Hirwaun Primary School is English medium, Welsh is taught as part of the
curriculum and all pupils would benefit from having the opportunity to be
taught in brand new facilities fit for the 215t century (as is currently the case
there is also the option to attend Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Penderyn and
engage the support of the Welsh language Immersion Team to support
transition, subject to parent/carer choice).

e A Globally Responsive Wales — The new school at Hirwaun has been built
to BREEAM excellent standards and the school can use sustainability
features of the building, e.g., photo-voltaic panels, rainwater harvesting and
biodiversity, to further develop extra-curricular activities which encourage
healthy lifestyles for the school and wider community.

The proposal could contribute towards achieving some of the five ways of
working by:

e Long Term — The proposal forms a part of RCTCBC’s wider 215t Century
School Organisation Strategy and supports the better strategic
management of RCTCBC'’s education estate.

e Prevention — RCTCBC believes that the proposal represents the best
opportunity to safeguard and sustain educational standards for the future
and provides a platform for further improvement.

e Integrations — Hirwaun Primary School is a fully accessible and integrated
community school. A dedicated area is provided within the school so that
the local community and parents/carers can safely use the facilities, both
during and after the school day.

Tudalen 29



11.7

12.

121

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

e Collaboration — RCTCBC would continue to work effectively with internal
and external partners to ensure the changes brought about by these
proposals would meet the short and long term needs of pupils,
parents/carers, staff and the wider community.

e Involvement —-The proposal is made in accordance with the School
Organisation Code (2" Edition) (011 / 2018) and seeks the views of a
prescribed list of stakeholders including pupils, parents/carers, staff and the
wider community. As such face to face meetings were held with Governing
Bodies, staff and School Councils of both Rhigos Primary School and
Hirwaun Primary School.

As stated in paragraph 5.1 above, an Equality Impact Assessment which further
details the contribution of the proposal to the Wellbeing of Future Generations
(Wales) Act 2015 has been prepared.

STRATEGIC OR RELEVANT TO ELECTORAL WARDS

The proposal to close Rhigos Primary School with pupils transferring to Hirwaun
Primary School (subject to parental choice) is relevant to the specific wards
covered by these catchment areas.

CONCLUSION

RCTCBC has a statutory duty through its approach to the organisation and
leadership arrangements of schools to maintain the efficiency and effectiveness
of provision to ensure that all schools are well placed to deliver high quality
education that meets the needs of the community and makes best use of public
funding.

Rhigos Primary School is RCTCBC'’s smallest school and the number of pupils
joining Rhigos Primary School has been in steady decline, pupil numbers are
forecast to continue to fall in the next five years. To note, since the
commencement of the consultation period in relation to this proposal, the
number of statutory pupils at the school has reduced from 51 to 49.

Allowing surplus places to remain high through inaction would directly and
negatively affect the future financial viability of Rhigos Primary School and
impact children’s education in the future. Rhigos Primary School’s budget, with
a diminishing income would have less money for staff salaries, curriculum
activities, equipment, running costs and maintenance of the school estate and
would therefore struggle to maintain their current good education offer.

The proposal seeks to provide the opportunity for more pupils to benefit from
the significant investment delivered via the WG’s Sustainable Communities for
Learning programme in the Cynon Valley. Consultation outcomes suggest that
there is strong opposition to the proposals but the rationale for change
highlights many potential benefits.

Estyn confirmed that the proposal is likely to, at least, maintain the standard of
education provision and outcomes for pupils in the area. The response further

Tudalen 30



13.5

states that the ‘local authority has set out a clear rationale for its proposal. It
outlines strongly the many advantages of closing Rhigos Primary School, with
all pupils transferring to Hirwaun Primary school’.

It is recommended therefore, that Members consider the contents of the
attached Consultation Report, and to give officers approval to publish an
appropriate Statutory Notice in January 2024 which will trigger the Objection
Period and progress this proposal.

Tudalen 31



Other Information:

Relevant Scrutiny Committee:
Education and Inclusion Scrutiny Committee.

Contact Officer(s):

Andrea Richards, Service Director for 215t Century Schools and Transformation.
Lisa Howell, 213t Century Schools Business and School Organisation Manager.

Tudalen 32



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972

AS AMENDED BY

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

18™ DECEMBER 2023

ITEM: PROPOSAL TO CLOSE RHIGOS PRIMARY SCHOOL WITH PUPILS
TRANSFERRING TO HIRWAUN PRIMARY SCHOOL

Tudalen 33



Background Papers:

Appendix A — Consultation Report.

Tudalen 34



Appendix A

215T CENTURY SCHOOLS
‘ ;; | " _ jl‘ [ i 7

CONSULTATION REPORT

CONSULTATION ON A PROPOSAL TO CLOSE RHIGOS
PRIMARY SCHOOL WITH PUPILS TRANSFERRING TO
HIRWAUN PRIMARY SCHOOL

The Consultation Report and Appendices are also available on the ‘Get Involved’
page on Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council’s website.

Mae'r ddogfen yma ar gael yn y Gymraeg / This document is available in Welsh.

RHONDDA CYNON TAF

Tudalen 35



Content Page

1. Proposal 2

2. Purpose of the Consultation Report 2

3. Who Have We Consulted With? 2-3

4. Consultation Process 3-4

5. Summary of Consultation Responses 4 -

6. Response from Estyn gg —

7. Assessment of Consultation 31 —
22

8. Conclusion 22

Appendices

1 Response from Estyn.

2 (A) | Minutes of Meetings with Governing Body and Staff Members of Hirwaun Primary

2 (B) fA?:S’:)els of Meetings with Governing Body and Staff Members of Rhigos Primary

School.
3 (A) | Minutes of Meetings with School Council of Hirwaun Primary School.
3 (B) | Minutes of Meetings with School Council of Rhigos Primary School.

Tudalen 36



1. Proposal

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council (RCTCBC) wishes to seek the views of
stakeholders on the proposal to close Rhigos Primary School. The pupils of Rhigos Primary
School will instead attend Hirwaun Primary School.

It is proposed that Rhigos Primary School will close with pupils transferring to Hirwaun
Primary School by no later than September 2024.

The proposal is made in accordance with the Welsh Government’'s (WG’s) School
Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018). Section 2.1 of the WG’s School Organisation Code
2018 (011/2018) refers to elements of school organisation that require the publication of
proposals, including:

e The closing of a maintained school.

Details of the proposal and the rationale behind it are fully outlined in the Consultation
Document and Impact Assessments that were circulated to all the stakeholders. The link to
these documents is below:

Consultation on a proposal to close Rhigos Primary | Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough
Council (rctcbe.gov.uk)

2. Purpose of the Consultation Report

This Consultation Report is prepared in accordance with the WG’s School Organisation
Code 2018 (011/2018). Its purpose is to inform the stakeholders listed below of the outcome
of the consultation held between 2" October 2023 and completed at 17:00 on 17t
November 2023.

3. Who Have We Consulted With?

A copy of the Consultation Document, which fully outlined and explained our proposal, was
sent to the following stakeholders. The Consultation Document was also published on
RCTCBC'’s website.

We are seeking the views of the following stakeholders:

e The Governing Bodies of:
o Rhigos Primary School.
o Hirwaun Primary School.
o Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Penderyn.
e Parents / carers, prospective parents / carers (where possible), and staff members of:

Tudalen 37



https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/Consultations/CurrentConsultations/ConsultationonaproposaltocloseRhigosPrimary.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/Consultations/CurrentConsultations/ConsultationonaproposaltocloseRhigosPrimary.aspx

o Rhigos Primary School.
o Hirwaun Primary School.

e Pupils of:

o Rhigos Primary School.
o Hirwaun Primary School.

Welsh Ministers.

Neighbouring local authorities.
The Church in Wales and Roman Catholic Diocesan authorities.

Members of the Senedd for the area.

Estyn.

Mudiad Meithrin.
Menter laith.

Teaching and staff trade unions.
Central South Consortium Joint Education Service.
Police and Crime Commissioner for the area.

Childcare providers.

Early Years Development and Childcare Partnership.
Children and Young People’s Partnership.
Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health Board.
Welsh Language Commissioner.

Rhigos Community Council.

Hirwaun and Penderyn Community Council.

Members of the Senedd for the Rhondda, Cynon and Taf constituencies and regional

Members of Parliament for the Rhondda, Cynon, and Taf constituencies.

4. Consultation Process

All stakeholders identified were sent a link to electronic copies of the Consultation
Document, and those that requested paper copies received them. The table that follows
also outlines the meetings that were convened with the Governing Bodies and Staff
Members and School Councils of Hirwaun Primary School and Rhigos Primary School.

School(s) Affected | Group | Time/Date | Venue
School Council
Rhigos Primary | School Council Monday 6" | Rhigos Primary
School November 2023 at | School

13:30 to 14:30
Hirwaun Primary | School Council Tuesday 7t | Hirwaun Primary
School November at 13:30 | School

to 14:30
Governing Body and Staff
Rhigos Primary | Governing Body and | Thursday 26" | Rhigos Primary
School. Staff. October 2023 at | School.

15:30 — 17:00.

Tudalen 38




Hirwaun Primary | Governing Body and | Thursday 26t | Hirwaun Primary
School. Staff. October 2023 at | School.
15:30 — 17:00.

All Governing Body and staff meetings outlined in the previous table were held face-to-face.
Notes of the meetings were taken and are attached at Appendix 2 (A to B). These notes
record questions raised, comments and statements made during the meetings, with the
responses provided where appropriate.

All School Council meetings outlined in the previous table were held in the corresponding
schools. Pupils were given a children and young people’s version of the Consultation
Document and Consultation Response Form. Notes of the meetings were taken and are
attached at Appendix 3 (A B). These notes record questions raised, comments and
statements made during the meetings, with the responses provided where appropriate.

Two drop in sessions were also arranged so that members of the public could discuss the
proposal with officers from RCTCBC’s Directorate of Education and Inclusion Services and
provide any feedback at the session. The table that follows also outlines the dates and times
of the meetings.

Public Drop in Session

Parents/carers and members of the | Monday 6% November | Rhigos Primary School.
local community. 2023 at 15:00 to 18:00.

Tuesday 7" November | Hirwaun Primary School.
at 15:00 to 18:00.

At the two drop in sessions all attendees were requested to sign in so that the level of
attendance could be recorded. The attendance registers indicate that at the session held in
Rhigos Primary School a total of 69 people signed in, however it should be noted that
attendance was perceived to be higher than this number as some attendees did not sign in.
At the session held in Hirwaun Primary School 3 people attended. Attendees cumulatively
included Governing Body members, local Elected Members, local residents, parents /
carers, pupils and staff.

Where appropriate, attendees were asked to complete and submit a Consultation Response
Form.

5. Summary of Consultation Responses

Responses to the questions raised at the Governing Body and staff meetings and School
Council meetings are summarised in the notes of the meetings attached at Appendix 2 (A
to B) and Appendix 3 (A B) respectively.

The ‘Save Rhigos Primary School action committee, established on behalf of the

community of Rhigos, undertook three separate petitions to the proposal. In total, 784
signatures were added to an online petition, this has been classed as one response for the

Tudalen 39




purpose of this report and 974 and 65 signatures were added to two separate paper
petitions, these have been classed as two responses for the purpose of this report.

In addition to this, 236 written responses were received, 89 in writing / or via email and 147
via online survey. Where emails from individuals had been sent to numerous recipients
these have been counted as one response.

In total, 239 responses were received. 3 (1.3%) were in favour of the proposal, 226 (94.5%)
were against the proposal, 1 (0.4%) was unsure and 9 (3.8%) did not provide an answer.
This is outlined in the table that follows.

Summary of Consultation Responses

Determination Number %

In Favour 3 1.3
Against 226 94.5
Unsure 1 0.4
Not Answered 9 3.8
Total 239 100.0

In compliance with the WG’s School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018), a summary of the
written responses received during the consultation period are detailed in the table that
follows along with clarification (where required).

For completeness it should be noted that there were a number of responses received that
made statements and comments in relation to political issues, staff conduct, and wider
Council issues that are unrelated to the specific requirements of a school organisation
consultation, and as such these comments have not been included within the summary
below. For those respondents that wish to raise any further concerns on such matters then
there is the opportunity to do so outside of this consultation process, more information on
how to make your views known can be found on RCTCBC'’s website.

To confirm, all of the comments and issues submitted during the course of this
consultation have been made available and reviewed by RCTCBC’s Cabinet
Members.

Summary of Written Responses

Theme Clarification
Additional What support will | All pupils with ALN will continue to be supported. The
Learning there be for the | Additional Learning Needs Education Tribunal

Needs (ALN)

pupils with ALN?

(ALNET) Act provides detailed guidance on the duties
and responsibilities of local authorities (LAs) in meeting
the ALN of children and young people. Children and
young people have ALN if they have a learning
difficulty which calls for an additional learning provision
to be made for them.

The ALN Code for Wales (2021) recommends that
Early Years and school settings adopt a graduated
response to meeting ALN. A graduated response
means that progressively greater expertise and

5

Tudalen 40




Summary of Written Responses

Theme

Clarification

support can be brought in to address the difficulties a
child or young person may be experiencing. Additional
or different provision should be made depending on the
severity of the child/young person's level of need.

This duty and responsibility in this regard will be met
regardless of which school a child attends.

The pupils of Rhigos
Primary School will
get lost in a school
the size of Hirwaun
Primary School.

As detailed above, there is a duty and responsibility
placed on local authorities for all pupils to receive the
support they need regardless of the size of the school.

Creating larger schools can build capacity within
staffing structures and enable opportunities for
developing more specialist wellbeing and/or family
liaison posts which will clearly benefit more vulnerable
children and families.

Admissions

My child will not be
attending  Hirwaun
Primary.

What if | don’t want
my child to attend

Choosing a school is parent / carer choice.
Applications will be dealt with in accordance with the
School Admissions Code.

Hirwaun Primary
School?
Reports of issues | During the school application period between

with registering for a
place at Rhigos
Primary School for
September 2024.

September 15t to November 10t", RCTCBC received
on-line applications for pre-nursery, nursery and
reception places for Rhigos Primary School for the
September 2024 academic year.

To note there was a period of time during the
admissions period that all parents across RCT were
unable to apply online due to essential works being
undertaken on the system from October 2nd to
October 3rd. This message was posted on RCTCBC'’s
web site.

The admissions team have confirmed that they did
receive a phone call from a Rhigos parent requesting
a hard copy of the admissions form, however it
transpired that the parent had already successfully
applied for a place online. The parent was informed of
this at the time.

Is fulltime nursery
provision available
in Hirwaun Primary
School.

Hirwaun Primary School currently offer full time
nursery provision.

Tudalen 41




Summary of Written Responses

Theme Clarification
Extra- How will pupils’ | The provision of after school clubs are the
curricular access after school | responsibility of the individual schools and whilst these
activities clubs? provisions are considered to be important, it should be
noted that post school activities are not a statutory
requirement.
As is the case across RCT, there will be no home to
school transport provision available purely to access
these activities, transport will be provided at the start
and end of the normal school day only.
The consultation | This is in reference to the multiple accessible spaces
document states the | available in Hirwaun Primary School, internally and
proposal will provide | externally, that can be utilised for such purposes. The
more opportunities | fully accessible facilities at Hirwaun Primary School by
for  extracurricular | their very nature do provide more opportunities.
activities but given
the transport issues | The transport provision is as stated above.
this will be reduced.
There are lots of | Thisis not disputed; the Consultation Document states
extracurricular that the view of RCTCBC is that Rhigos Primary
activities already on | School is a good school. It is noted within the
offer in Rhigos. Community Impact Assessment that after school clubs
run at both schools.
Will the range of | This was confirmed in the Community Impact
after school clubs | Assessment where it states, ‘There are after school
still be available at | clubs being run at both Rhigos and Hirwaun Primary
Hirwaun? School, and clubs currently running at Rhigos Primary
School can continue at Hirwaun'.
Breakfast How will  pupils | The provision of breakfast club is the responsibility of
Club access breakfast | the individual schools and whilst this provision is
club? considered to be important, it should be noted that pre-

school activities are not a statutory requirement.
Therefore, there will be no home to school transport
provision available purely to access this provision,
transport will be provided at the start and end of the
normal school day, as is currently the case for all
schools across RCTCBC.

However, if any child travelling on the school bus
wishes to have a breakfast once they get to school
then arrangements will be put in place to ensure that
they receive one.

The breakfast club operating in Hirwaun Primary
School is very popular with an average of 53 pupils
receiving a breakfast every day. The average daily
number for pupils accessing a breakfast in Rhigos is
13 so there will be plenty of space available for any

7

Tudalen 42




Summary of Written Responses

Theme Clarification
pupils wishing to have a breakfast to do so. These
figures have been calculated as a daily average of the
attendance of the first half term of the 2023/24
academic year.
Rhigos was voted RCTCBC are aware of this impressive achievement
Best Breakfast Club | and rightly the school community are very proud. A
in Wales 2022. statement of congratulations was provided by the
Director of Education and Inclusion Services at the
time the award was received. Catering Services in
Rhondda Cynon Taf have responsibility for delivering
breakfast clubs in partnership with schools.
Building Why was the | Property condition surveys are carried out cyclically on
Condition property  condition | a five yearly basis which aligns with an industry
survey used four | standard timescale, so the survey used is still valid.
years old?

The WG’s School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018)
states that:

‘Information about the quality of accommodation at all
existing schools likely to be affected by the proposals
including reference to the Local Authority’s most recent
(property) condition survey using the categories of the
original 215 Century Schools Survey’.

This information has been included in compliance with
the WG’s School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018).
The 2019 property condition survey was the most
recent undertaken and so this was used accordingly.

To note, a copy of the condition survey was shared
with those who requested it during the consultation
period.

How much work has
been undertaken at
Rhigos Primary
School since the
property  condition
survey was
undertaken?

Lots of work has been undertaken at Rhigos Primary
School since the property condition survey was
undertaken in 2019. Works include, but are not limited
to:

Replacement windows and doors.
New fencing and gates.

New drainage and resurfacing.
Repairs to roof areas.

¢ Mechanical and electrical upgrades.

How much money
has been spent at
Rhigos Primary
School since 20197

Including the cyclical maintenance checks over
£180,000 has been spent at Rhigos Primary School.
This can be broken down as follows:

Tudalen 43




Summary of Written Responses

Theme

Clarification

e Works funded through the Service Level
Agreement (SLA) for repairs and maintenance —
£94,084.

e Works funded directly by RCTCBC — £79,736.

e Works funded by the school’s delegated budget —
£7,876.

Why hasn’t the work
identified within the

property  condition
survey been
undertaken?

Some work of the work identified in the property
condition survey has been undertaken, as listed above.
Works are undertaken proactively and reactively
across all 116 school sites, and as such have to be
prioritised within the budgets available.

In addition, lots of work has also been undertaken that
was not identified in the property condition survey,
including health and safety and safeguarding works.

The property condition survey identifies the condition
of a building at a point in time and is used as a tool for
RCTCBC to manage its estate. In total, RCTCBC has
115 schools across 116 sites to manage, regular visits
are undertaken by RCTCBC'’s Corporate Maintenance
Team and issues are flagged up on a priority basis and
undertaken when required. Rhigos Primary School has
been in regular contact with, and has been visited
regularly by, the RCTCBC’s Corporate Maintenance
Team.

Why hasn't the
RCTCBC looked
after its buildings?

RCTCBC has an obligation to ensure that its buildings
are safe, watertight and warm, and that’s what it has
done. As stated above there have been regular visits
to Rhigos Primary School by RCTCBC’s Corporate
Maintenance Team and its contractors, and it also
undertakes cyclical maintenance checks and surveys
of its mechanical and electrical equipment.

All schools in RCTCBC buy into a building
maintenance SLA and work is undertaken and
managed through this SLA. On many occasions
RCTCBC has paid for works at Rhigos Primary School
that have been the responsibility of Rhigos Primary
School’'s Governing Body, due to the school not having
the required budget for the works to be undertaken.

Why is one of the
buildings at Rhigos
Primary School
deemed ‘end of its
life / beyond
economical repair'?

The term ‘beyond economical repair’ is a classification
given to an asset where that asset requires repairs
likely to be more expensive than its replacement value.
It does not mean that the building is unsafe.

Tudalen 44




Summary of Written Responses

Theme

Clarification

What
mean?

does this

Why was permission
denied for a member
of the Action Group
to undertake their
own survey?

RCTCBC has 116 school sites to manage and as such
it is important that there is consistency in the way
surveys are undertaken so that it can appropriately
manage its education estate and prioritise works. A
third party looking at one particular school would not
be comparable with our in-house procedures given the
subjectivity of the survey process.

The survey undertaken in 2019 was free from
prejudice.

How does Rhigos
Primary School not
comply with the
Equality Act 2010

In terms of the physical site and the school buildings at
Rhigos Primary School these are largely inaccessible,
however, there is scope for improvement. Looking just
at the protected characteristic ‘disability’, the school
site is largely non complaint. Given the topography and
the age of the buildings there will inevitably be some
areas of the school and site that are inaccessible for
those with mobility difficulties or for wheelchair users.
In addition, there is no hygiene room available at the
school.

Building Bulletin 99 (BB99): Briefing Framework for
Primary School Projects, is what all local authorities in
Wales use as a guide to build new schools. BB99
states the following:

In the context of classroom layouts ‘fully inclusive’
means that which enables a pupil using a wheelchair
to access all areas of the room, and therefore, all
activities easily, without any disruption to classroom
layouts.

Community
Impact

The Community
Impact Assessment
is lacking in
information.

To confirm, what has been included within the
Community Impact Assessment is in line with the
requirements of the WG’s School Organisation Code
2018 (011/2018).

However, as advised in the published Community
Impact Assessment, this document has been revisited
and updated following a review of the comments
received throughout the duration of the consultation
process. The updated version of the Community
Impact Assessment will be available on RCTCBC's
website once the Consultation Report is formally
published.

10

Tudalen 45




Summary of Written Responses

Theme

Clarification

What will happen to
the Rhigos Primary
School site? It's
mentioned in the
Consultation

Document that it
could be used for the
community.

Considerations and options of any potential future use
of the Rhigos Primary School site will be consulted
upon separately.

Should the proposal go ahead, colleagues in
RCTCBC’s Community Development Team will work
with the local community of Rhigos to identify any
viable and sustainable options for a community use.
RCTCBC’s Community Development Team will also
be able to support any potential community groups to
identify and apply for any funding that may be available
to secure to develop any provision.

The children will lose
their cultural identity
if the school closes;
their 'Cynefin’.

There will be many opportunities for all pupils to learn
about their local area and cultural identify as they
navigate the curriculum for Wales and develop their
enquiry based learning.

Hirwaun is only approximately 2 miles from the village
of Rhigos, and so the expectation is that this will not be
lost for any pupils.

Will the parent and
toddler group
currently running at
Rhigos be moved to
Hirwaun?

RCTCBC are aware that there is a parent and toddler
group running at Rhigos Primary School for a day a
week. There is a dedicated community room available
at Hirwaun Primary School so should the group leader
want to establish a parent and toddler group at
Hirwaun then this can easily be accommodated.

Educational
Outcomes

Pupils from Rhigos
Primary School will
not have the same

educational
experience at
Hirwaun Primary
School.

Both schools should
be reinspected by

Estyn prior to a
decision being
reached.

In compliance with the WG’s School Organisation
Code 2018 (011/2018) the response to the proposal
from Estyn has been provided in full at Appendix One.

Estyn is not a body which is required to act in
accordance with the WG’s School Organisation Code,
statutory document 011 / 2018 and the School
Standards and Organisation Act 2013 places no
statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school
organisation matters. However, Estyn are a statutory
consultee in such matters and as such have provided
their opinion on the overall merits of the school
organisation proposals.

Estyn have considered the educational aspects of the
proposal and their conclusion is that the proposal is
likely to, at least, maintain the standard of education
provision and outcomes for pupils in this area.

Why close a ‘good’
school to one that
required ‘Significant
Improvement’.

The consultation document acknowledges that Rhigos
Primary School is a good school. That is not disputed.

11

Tudalen 46




Summary of Written Responses

Theme

Clarification

Hirwaun Primary School’s inspection was undertaken
in 2018 and the following year, in 2019, a follow up visit
was undertaken by Estyn which judged that sufficient
progress had been made in relation to the
recommendations.

As a result, Estyn removed Hirwaun Primary School
from the list of schools requiring ‘Significant
Improvement’ with no further visits required. An
inspection provides a snapshot of the school at that
moment in time, Hirwaun Primary School would not
have been removed from the category should any of
Estyn’s concerns remained.

It is important to note that school performance and
improvement is not static and this does fluctuate over
time. At the time of writing, both schools are accessing
core support from Central South Consortium school
improvement services. Neither school is deemed to be
in need of enhanced support due to presenting issues.

Ability to
successfully deliver
the Curriculum for

The Consultation Document acknowledges that the
teachers at Rhigos are providing pupils with a great
education, however it also sets out the challenges in
delivering the (CfW) in a small and aging school.

At no point does it state within the Document that staff
at Rhigos Primary School are not delivering upon their
obligations in terms of delivering the CfW, the
Consultation Document highlights the difficulties of
doing so within the defined parameters at the school in
relation to its size and age, and the ongoing challenge
this will create in view of the projected falling numbers
at the school. The possibilities for more distributed
models of leadership are inevitably more restricted in
smaller schools due to the smaller size of the
workforce.

Wales (CfW).
Teacher/parent
interactions will be
lessened, and
relationships will be
diminished as a

result of the pupils
being transported to
school on a bus.

There are already children from the community of
Penderyn who travel to Hirwaun Primary School on
home to school transport and so the school has well
established systems in place to ensure that parents
and carers are kept fully informed of any issues that
have arisen during the school day, and should the
proposal go ahead this communication will continue in
order to support both the new pupils joining the school
and their families.

Pupil
Numbers and
Capacity

How are the pupil
projections
calculated?

In terms of pupil projections, RCTCBC collects birth
data from Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health
Board covering the Rhondda, Cynon and Taf Ely

12

Tudalen 47




Summary of Written Responses

Theme

Clarification

areas. This provides the births and postcode for each
child. There is also an allowance for new housing
developments and existing pupils on roll allowing for
predictions to be accurate.

In relation to the pupils already in school the cohort
survival method is utilised, where the number of pupils
in each year group is assumed to be the number in the
preceding year group during the previous academic
year multiplied by a constant.

Why was Hirwaun
Primary School built
with SO much
capacity?

RCTCBC’s current Local Development Plan (LDP),
adopted in 2011, has a significant housing allocation
identified as part of a strategic site within the current
Hirwaun Primary School catchment area. In addition,
at the time the new school in Hirwaun was being
developed there was tourism and commercial
opportunities being designed as well as the plans for
the dualling of the A465. Given the attention that was
and still is focussed upon this specific area on a
regional scale, it would have been remiss of us not to
include additional capacity at that juncture.

RCTCBC’s Revised LDP is currently being prepared
and so we do not know what, if any, new housing
allocations will be included within the new LDP for this
area, however, should the same housing allocation be
identified within the new LDP then the surplus capacity
at Hirwaun Primary School will be sufficient to cater for
the number of pupils the development will generate.

Comments made in relation to the size of Hirwaun
School being anything other than to plan for the pupil
places required for the potential new development are
refuted.

There is surplus
capacity in a lot of
schools across RCT,
why is just Rhigos
affected.

There is a statutory duty placed on Councils to
effectively manage its school places. All school places,
capacities, admissions and projections are kept under
constant scrutiny. RCTCBC has implemented
reorganisation proposals affecting over 40 schools
over the last 10 years and all schools will continue to
be reviewed.

Information on the capacity of all schools affected by
proposals must be included within all school
organisation documents in compliance with the WG’s
School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018). Without
the inclusion of this information the consultation would
not be valid.

13

Tudalen 48




Summary of Written Responses

Theme

Clarification

This proposal has been prepared for consultation for a
number of reasons, the rationale for closure is not
purely based on one thing alone. The capacity of the
school is included for information, amongst many other
data sets, as it provides stakeholders with a wider
picture of the proposal presented.

Rural

School
Categorisatio
n

Why isn't Rhigos
Primary School
classed as a rural
school?

The WG’s School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018)
contains a list of rural schools for the procedural
presumption against the closure of rural schools. As
such, it is specified within the WG’s School
Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018) that The National
Statistics Urban Rural classification has been used as
the basis of the designation of rural schools for this
purpose.

The rural schools listed were identified as being
located within villages in the sparsest context, other
(hamlet or dispersed) in sparsest context and other
(hamlet or dispersed) in less sparse context. There are
no schools in RCT on the list of rural schools as there
are no schools that meet the above classifications for
this singular purpose.

For clarification, on the Office of National Statistics
website, Rhigos itself does have a rural classification,
as in fact does Hirwaun, but neither meet the specified
criteria to be included on the list as defined above.

The Council was in
receipt of a Small
and Rural School
Grant from the
Welsh Government
that was allocated to
Rhigos Primary, this
demonstrates  that
the Council
acknowledges its
rural status.

This is correct. Rhigos Primary School was one of the
schools in receipt of funding awarded via this grant.
Since 17/18 there have been 13 schools across RCT
that have been a recipient of this grant.

Transport and
Travel

The home to school
transport costs have
not been made
available.

There will inevitably be a cost for home to school
transport and this has been acknowledged in the
Consultation Document and listed as a disadvantage
in the assessment of the proposal.

Should the proposal go ahead, any new home to
school transport contract will be competitively
tendered. As the number of pupils attending Hirwaun
Primary School will factor into the size of the transport

14

Tudalen 49




Summary of Written Responses

Theme

Clarification

required and consequently have an impact upon the
service costs, this financial information remains
unavailable.

There will be no
active travel
opportunities for
those pupils who
currently walk to
school.

RCTCBC acknowledges that pupils living in Rhigos will
need to travel to Hirwaun Primary School either by bus
or by car. This information is included within the
Community Impact Assessment and is not in dispute,
however what is also included within the Assessment
is how this will be partly mitigated by the opportunities
the new school will provide given the many outdoor
facilities at Hirwaun Primary School.

The Community Impact Assessment states ‘Those
pupils that will be travelling by bus or car under the new
arrangements will still have the opportunity to
experience the outdoors and gain plenty of fresh air
given the plentiful opportunities on the Hirwaun
Primary School site. External canopies, the outdoor
classroom, the spacious yard, the MUGA, the sports
field, gardens etc all present multiple opportunities to
support and nurture health and well-being for pupils
and staff..

Hirwaun Primary
School is further
away than Rhigos
Primary School so
the carbon footprint
will be increased.

Given the distance between Hirwaun Primary School
and Rhigos Primary School, all pupils residing in the
current Rhigos Primary School catchment area will
qualify for home to school transport, therefore negating
the need for numerous car journeys to the school.

If the proposal were to go ahead, RCTCBC will close
an energy inefficient building with pupils moving to an
existing energy efficient building, so implementing this
proposal will have an overall positive impact upon the
carbon footprint.

If there is an
emergency, how will
my child get home if
| don’t have a car?

There are already children from the community of
Penderyn who travel to Hirwaun Primary School via
home to school transport and so Hirwaun Primary
School has well established systems in place to ensure
that parents / carers are kept fully informed of any
issues that have arisen during the school day. Should
the proposal go ahead this communication will
continue in order to support both the new pupils joining
the school and their families.

Hirwaun Primary School, as do all schools, have a duty
of care to look after the care and wellbeing for all
pupils. If any issues or emergencies arise during the
school day, as is currently the case, the staff at
Hirwaun Primary School will ensure that they do all

15

Tudalen 50




Summary of Written Responses

Theme

Clarification

they can to support any families that cannot attend
Hirwaun Primary School.

The traffic outside
Hirwaun Primary
School is already
busy.

Hirwaun Primary School has been built with a
dedicated staff and visitor car park, as well as an onsite
bus drop off facility. As part of the planning obligations
for the project, an off-site school drop off / community
car park was constructed. This additional parking has
significantly reduced the congestion outside Hirwaun
Primary School at the start and end of the school day.
To note Rhigos Primary School has neither a
dedicated staff nor community car park within the
vicinity.

Since this work has been undertaken, neither
RCTCBC or the Hirwaun Primary School have
received any recent complaints in relation to parking
and traffic congestion.

Given that all pupils currently residing in the Rhigos
Primary School catchment will qualify for home to
school transport, there is an expectation that the
impact upon the traffic, as a result of the proposal, is
minimal.

I’m not happy for my
child to travel
unaccompanied on
a school bus.

RCTCBC’s Integrated Transport Unit successfully
transports thousands of children a day to schools
throughout RCT from the ages of 3 to 19.
Understandably there can be a great deal of anxiety for
all parents when their child travels on a school bus for
the first time, this can also be the case for pupils
travelling for the first time, however there is strict
criteria in place that transport providers must adhere to
in order to ensure the safety and safeguarding of the
pupils, which is of paramount importance to us.

The cost and
frequency of public

transport from
Rhigos to Hirwaun is
prohibitive for
regular use.

Unfortunately, the cost and operation of the public
transport in the area is not within the remit of RCTCBC
to manage.

As all pupils living in Rhigos will have the opportunity
to utilise the home to school transport provision we
anticipate that the number of journeys required on
public transport to be minimal.

Should the pupils
numbers attending
Hirwaun be lower

than expected,
would the home to
school transport

No, in compliance with distance criteria contained
within Welsh Government’s Learner Travel Measure,
this transport provision would remain in place
regardless of the numbers of pupils transported.

16

Tudalen 51




Summary of Written Responses

Theme Clarification

provision be

cancelled?
Impact on | Transition If the proposal were to go ahead, there will be targeted
Pupils arrangements. support for all pupils from Hirwaun Primary School and

Rhigos Primary School. Meaningful and positive
transition is an integral part of ensuring that pupils
settle into their new school setting with little disruption
to their well-being and education. This is supported by
providing effective pastoral and academic support and
structured opportunities for learners to become familiar
with the new school environment and staff.

Advice and support will be provided by RCTCBC to
both schools involved to ensure that the transition
process is as smooth and seamless as possible.

Pupil well-being has
not been
considered.

The well-being of all pupils has been considered and
is paramount. The transition arrangements that will be
delivered, as noted above, ensure there will be lots of
opportunities to help the pupils navigate the change
and happily settle into their new school as quickly as
possible.

Further information is included within the Equality
Impact Assessment, in addition RCTCBC considers
that the proposal benefits the children and young
people in accordance with the seven core aims set out
within the United Nations Convention on the Rights of
the Child.

The children from
Rhigos will feel like

outsiders as they
attend a school
outside of their
community.

Hirwaun Primary School already welcomes children
from other communities, the catchment area was
extended to include pupils from Penderyn in 2021 and
there are also a number of pupils that attend from
outside the current catchment area. The new pupils
from Penderyn were welcomed into the Hirwaun
Primary School family and they have successfully
settled into their new school. To provide reassurance
we can confirm that they are not treated any differently
which I’'m sure will also be the case for any pupil from
Rhigos wishing to attend Hirwaun.

17

Tudalen 52




Summary of Written Responses

Theme Clarification
Impact on | What support is | RCTCBC has well established Human Resource (HR)
Staff available for staff? policies and procedures that give reassurance to staff

and employers about the of

organisational change.

management

HR Council officers have already visited all staff in
Rhigos Primary School, and all are aware of the
processes that may follow and the operational and
personal support that is on offer.

Legitimacy of
the
Consultation
Process

The consultation
period was too short.

The WG’s School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018)
sets out the parameters for the consultation. It states
that consultees must be given at least 42 days to
respond to the document. For this consultation,
consultees were given 47 days which exceeds the
statutory obligation placed upon us in this regard.

The information
presented in the
documentation is

biased in favour of
Hirwaun Primary.

The purpose of the Consultation Document is to
present a proposal, and the fact that this is just a
proposal at this point in time is clearly referenced
throughout all documentation made available during
this period. To confirm, all information presented has
been done in accordance with the WG’s School
Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018).

Some responses specifically question the choice of the
images used in the documentation. To clarify, the
same data for both schools has been included in the
‘Where we are now’ section of the Consultation
Document, with external images of both schools
included. Further information and images on Hirwaun
Primary School were included within the “‘Where we’d
like to be’ section as this sets out the perceived
benefits of moving pupils from Rhigos to Hirwaun.
There is no bias intended, merely the logical and
coherent setting out of the proposal.

RCTCBC refutes this comment.

The data presented
within the
documentation is out
of date.

The data presented within the report is in compliance
with the WG’s School Organisation Code 2018
(011/2018).

All data sets provided were the most up to date at the
time of writing. Those included are in accordance with
the information prescribed within the Code. To clarify,
in terms of the pupil numbers reported, there is a
distinction made between statutory aged pupils and
non-statutory aged pupils.

18

Tudalen 53




Summary of Written Responses

Theme

Clarification

The Estyn information included in the report is taken
from the most recent inspections undertaken in
Hirwaun and Rhigos Primary Schools respectively in
2018 and 2019. This is in accordance with the Code
where it states consultation document must contain
'information from the most recent Estyn reports for
each school.’

The Condition Survey information included in the
report is taken from the most recent survey undertaken
in 2019. This is in accordance with the WG’s School
Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018) where it states
that ‘information about the quality of accommodation at
all existing schools likely to be affected by the
proposals including reference to RCTCBC’s most
recent condition survey’.

In accordance with the Welsh Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015 and in compliance with
RCTCBC'’s statutory obligations, the consultation included the following questions:

1. Do you think the proposal could impact opportunities for people to use and promote the
Welsh Language (Positive or Negative)?
2. Do you think the proposal in any way treats the Welsh Language less favourably than

the English Language?

3. How positive effects on the Welsh Language could be increased, or negative effects be

decreased?

The table that follows provides a summary of the responses received from those
respondents that answered the questions. As a result of the responses received, the Welsh
Language Impact Assessment accompanying the proposal will be updated accordingly.

Welsh Standards (No.1) Regulations 2015: Summary of Consultation Responses

Questions Responses

No Yes Not Sure

Number % Number % Number | %
Do you think the proposal could | 43 293 |24 16.3 | 80 54.4
impact opportunities for people
to use and promote the Welsh
Language?
Do you think the proposal in | No Yes Not Sure
any way treats the Welsh | Number % Number % Number | %
Language less favourably than | 42 26.6 | 20 13.6 | 85 57.8
the English Language?
How positive effects on the | Positive Effects | Negative Effects | Not Sure
Welsh Language could be | Increased Decreased

19

Tudalen 54




increased, or negative effects
be decreased.

e Welsh Medium
Schools - The
only way it will
increase the
positive effects of
the Welsh
language is to
send children to a

Welsh  medium
school.

e Teach More
Welsh —
Teaching more

Welsh in schools
will increase the
positive effects of
the Welsh
language.

e Transferring to
Welsh Medium
Schools - The

proposal may
result in
additional

children

transferring to the
neighbouring

Welsh  medium
primary,  Ysgol
Gynradd
Gymraeg
Penderyn.

e Smaller Classes —

Teachers in a
larger class will
have more
responsibility and
less time to focus

on every puplil,
therefore the
Welsh language be
negatively
affected.

Number

%

140

95.2

In accordance with the Equality Act 2010 and the Public Sector Equality Duties, RCTCBC
has a legal duty to look at how its decisions impact on people because they may have
particular characteristics. So as part of seeking views on the proposal, the consultation also

included the following question:

1. How would the proposal affect you because of your:

Sex.

Age.

Ethnicity.

Disability.

Sexuality.
Religion/Belief.
Gender Identity.
Relationship Status.
Pregnancy.
Preferred Language.

20

Tudalen 55




Of those respondents that answered this question, the majority, 136 (92.5%), gave no
answer to this question. However, 4 (2.7%) commented that the proposal could negatively
impact them due to their age whilst 7 (4.8%) commented that the proposal could negative
impact them due to their disability. As a result of responses received, the Equality Impact
Assessment accompanying the proposal will be updated accordingly.

6. Response from Estyn

In compliance with the WG’s School Organisation Code, statutory document 011 /2018 the
response to the proposal from Estyn has been provided in full at Appendix 1. Estyn is not a
body which is required to act in accordance with the WG’s School Organisation Code 2018
(011/2018) and the School Standards and Organisation Act 2013 places no statutory
requirements on Estyn in respect of school organisation matters. Therefore, as a body being
consulted, Estyn will provide their opinion only on the overall merits of school organisation
proposals.

Estyn considered that the proposal is likely to, at least, maintain the standard of education
provision and outcomes for pupils in this area. The response states that the ‘local authority
has set out a clear rationale for its proposal. It outlines strongly the many advantages of
closing Rhigos Primary School, with all pupils transferring to Hirwaun Primary school’.

In accordance with the WG’s School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018), the areas of the

response from Estyn that require clarification are documented in the table that follows.

Response from Estyn

Estyn Response

Clarification

The proposal has also considered the
impact of the proposal on the quality and
standards in education including separate
sections on  outcomes, provision,
leadership, and management. While the
sections on outcomes and provision
appear to be fair and reasonable, the
section on leadership and management is
too generic and doesn’t focus specifically
enough on the implications of the proposal
on leaders in both schools. The proposal
identifies that transferring pupils from
Rhigos Primary School to the newly built
Hirwaun Primary School would provide
extensive outdoor space, including green
space, for pupils to learn and play. It
assumes fairly that pupil wellbeing and
attitudes to learning would benefit from a
diverse and engaging outdoor space. It
further notes that a fit-for-purpose school
building would help create a better learning

There will be staffing implications for those staff
employed at Rhigos Primary School. For example,
there will be certain roles that are currently
replicated in Hirwaun Primary School’s staffing
structure. Staff will be concerned about the
security of their jobs which is why these concerns
will be addressed as soon as possible during the
statutory consultation process, consulting with
staff and utilising RCTCBC’s ‘Managing Change
Policy’ to explore options for staff affected.

21

Tudalen 56




Response from Estyn

Estyn Response Clarification

environment. The proposer identifies that if
the proposal comes about it is likely to
have a positive impact on the delivery of
the curriculum at the school.

7. Assessment of Consultation

There were a lot of highly emotive and passionate responses received during the
consultation period which is important to note. Correspondence was received from staff,
pupils, parents/carers, past pupils, members of the communities and from those elected
locally and regionally. Rhigos Primary School is clearly a much loved school, and should a
decision be made to close; it is recognised that there would be a feeling of loss by the
community. This is acknowledged within this report, as it is within the Community Impact
Assessment.

In accordance with WG’s School Organisation Code 2018 (011/2018), a further assessment
of the proposal has been undertaken. This involved a review of the same matters assessed
in formulating the proposal, in conjunction with giving due consideration to the responses
and comments received during the consultation period. The proposal was reassessed
against:

e the likely impact on quality and standards in education,
¢ the likely impact on the community, and
o the likely effect of different travelling arrangements.

After further consideration of the proposal, and consciously considering the responses
received to the proposal, the conclusion reached is that the proposal remains to be the most
appropriate and as such no amendments to the proposal have been made.

8. Conclusion

No information that has been presented during the consultation is deemed to necessitate a
change to the Consultation Document, as such the information contained within it remains
unchanged. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal should be wholly implemented with
no amendments.

The recommendation of this report is that a Statutory Notice be published, to reflect the
proposal as consulted upon with no modifications, in order to progress the implementation
of this proposal.

22

Tudalen 57




Tudalen wag



Estyn’s response to the proposal to close Rhigos Primary School with pupils
transferring to Hirwaun Primary School

This report has been prepared by His Majesty’s Inspectors of Education and
Training in Wales.

Under the terms of the School Standards and Organisation (Wales) Act 2013 and its
associated Code, proposers are required to send consultation documents to Estyn.
However, Estyn is not a body which is required to act in accordance with the Code
and the Act places no statutory requirements on Estyn in respect of school
organisation matters. Therefore, as a body being consulted, Estyn will provide their
opinion only on the overall merits of school organisation proposals. Estyn has
considered the educational aspects of the proposal and has produced the following
response to the information provided by the proposer.

The proposal is the closure of Rhigos Primary School with pupils transferring to
Hirwaun Primary School.

Summary/ Conclusion

Estyn considers that the proposal is likely to, at least, maintain the standard of
education provision and outcomes for pupils in the area.

Description and benefits

The local authority has set out a clear rationale for its proposal. It outlines strongly
the many advantages of closing Rhigos Primary School, with all pupils transferring to
Hirwaun Primary School. It is proposed that pupils who are in the Rhigos Primary
School catchment area will instead go to Hirwaun Primary School, where there is a
brand new 21st Century building and new facilities. Hirwaun Primary School's
catchment area would extend to include the current catchment area of Rhigos
Primary School and would therefore cater for pupils aged 3 and 11 years of age
requiring English medium education in both communities.

The local authority provides a suitably detailed description of the proposal. This
includes a background to the proposal and an estimated timetable for statutory
procedures. It is proposing that Rhigos Primary School will close resulting in pupils
transferring to Hirwaun Primary School no later than September 2024.

The proposer identifies clearly and fairly the expected benefits and disadvantages
when compared with the status quo and how they will manage any risk. One of the
main advantages detailed in the proposal is that the pupils of Rhigos Primary School
will benefit from the fully accessible, brand new primary school in Hirwaun, which
would provide an improved learning environment with first class facilities. Most of the

Tudalen 59



risks are deemed as low impact. One risk is deemed as having medium impact
following implementation of the proposal which is that existing Rhigos Primary
School staff may not be retained.

The local authority has considered four alternative options, including maintaining the
status quo. It lists the advantages and disadvantages of each option and these
appear to be fair and reasonable.

The proposer has considered the impact of the changes on learner travel
arrangements. The proposal sets out that the local authority has exercised
discretionary powers afforded to it under the provisions of the Learner Travel (Wales)
Measure 2008 to make a more generous provision to pupils. The eligibility criterion
for walking distance for pupils at their nearest suitable school has been set at 1.5
miles, instead of 2 miles as required by the measure. This is provided to pupils who
meet the 1.5 mile eligibility criterion from the start of the foundation phase (the start
of the school term after their third birthday), which seems reasonabile.

The local authority has usefully demonstrated the impact of the proposal on surplus
places. The projected pupil numbers at Rhigos Primary School over the next five
academic years for statutory schocl aged pupils falls consistently year on year, from
51 pupils in 2023 to a projected 36 pupiis in 2028. The projected pupil numbers for
Hirwaun Primary School for the next five years demonstrates that there is capacity
for all current and future pupils of Rhigos Primary School to attend.

The proposal takes a detailed account of the impact of the proposal on Welsh
medium provision within the local authority and the extent to which the proposal
supports the targets in the local authority’s Welsh in Education Strategic Plan
(WESP). The local authority aims to embed positive habits and attitudes towards the
Welsh language through purposeful planning to promote the informal use of the
Welsh language amongst pupils inside and outside schools. Hirwaun Primary School
will continue to be encouraged and supported to do this through the achievement of
the ‘Cymraeg Campus’ Welsh Language Charter, a framework to promote and
increase the use of Welsh.

The local authority has appropriately considered the financial implications of the
proposal. It states that there is no need to invest additional capital as Hirwaun
Primary School is a new build. If the proposal progresses, Hirwaun Primary School
will receive an increase on their funding formula as a result of the additional pupils
on roll. In addition, the modern building design and fabric at Hirwaun Primary School
is more energy efficient which also has a positive impact upon the running costs of
the school, as well as delivering benefits in terms of sustainability and reducing
carbon emissions.

Educational aspects of the proposal

Tudalen 60



The local authority has considered the quality of outcomes, provision and leadership
and management at the school which include the outcomes of the last Estyn
inspection report for both schools. Rhigos Primary School was inspected by Estyn in
February 2019 and the outcomes in the five inspection areas were judged to be
good. Hirwaun Primary School was inspected by Estyn in 2018. The care, support
and guidance area was judged to be good, three other inspection areas were
adequate whilst teaching and learning experiences was unsatisfactory. As a result of
the inspection in 2018, Estyn placed Hirwaun Primary School in the reported
category of ‘Significant Improvement.’ In response to the outcome of the core
inspection, Hirwaun Primary School was required to draw up an action plan to
address the recommendations, subject to review by Estyn. In July 2019, Estyn
removed Hirwaun Primary School from the list of schools requiring ‘Significant
Improvement’.

The proposal has also considered the impact of the proposal on the quality and
standards in education including separate sections on outcomes, provision and
leadership and management. While the sections on outcomes and provision appear
to be fair and reasonable, the section on leadership and management is too generic
and doesn’t focus specifically enough on the implications of the proposal on leaders
in both schools. The proposal identifies that transferring pupils from Rhigos Primary
School to the newly built Hirwaun school would provide extensive outdoor space,
including green space, for pupils to learn and play. It assumes fairly that pupil
wellbeing and attitudes to learning would benefit from a diverse and engaging
outdoor space. It further notes that a fit-for-purpose school building would help
create a better learning environment. The proposer identifies that if the proposal
comes about it is likely to have a positive impact on the delivery of the curriculum at
the school.

The proposal considers the impact of the proposal on vulnerable groups, including
children with Additional Learning Needs. It does note that moving pupils to Hirwaun
Primary School from Rhigos will result in greater capacity and space for additional
needs intervention and support. In terms of accessibility, Hirwaun school is fully
accessible and compliant with the Equality’s Act 2010.

The proposal takes a detailed account of the impact of the proposal on the
community. These considerations include the positive impact of additional facilities
on the Hirwaun site for community use and that the current Rhigos site is not
compliant with the Equalities Act 2010. The proposal also considers the ‘out of hours’
support for pupils. For example, breakfast club and private after school care will be
provided on the new site if the proposal materialises.

Tudalen 61



Tudalen 62



Appendix 2 (A) - Minutes of Meeting with Governing Body and Staff Members

of Hirwaun Primary School

Date 26 October 2023

Time 15:30

Venue | Hirwaun Primary School, Hirwaun

Attendance

Name Initials | Title

Catrin Edwards CE Head of Service Transformation, Data Systems, Admissions and
Governors

Nicola Goodman | NG Lead for Strategic Planning and MIM

Kylie Lewis KL 215t Century Schools Officer

Bethan Davies BD Human Resources Manager

Bethan Hill BH Headteacher of Hirwaun Primary School

N/A N/A Governing Body and Staff Members of Hirwaun Primary School

1. Welcome and Introductions

CE welcomed everyone and thanked them for attending the meeting. Introductions
were made.

2. Consultation Overview

CE provided the meeting with an overview of the proposal being made and the
consultation process to be followed, as set out in the Consultation Document.

3. Staff and Governor Questions

The Governing Body and staff members of Hirwaun Primary School were invited
to ask questions. The questions raised from the Governing Body and staff
members and the responses provided are summarised in the table that follows.

Number

Question/Comment

Response

1.

BH noted that Hirwaun Primary staff
have been through this process
previously with the changes to
Penderyn Primary School. BH stated
Hirwaun Primary School staff are
neutral in this process; should Rhigos
Primary School close and pupils
transfer to Hirwaun Primary School,
staff will endeavour to work hard to
welcome pupils and ensure pupils settle
quickly.

Noted.

If Rhigos Primary School were to close,
how would this impact on pupil numbers
at Hirwaun Primary School?

BH explained Hirwaun Primary School has
the capacity for future growth and could
accommodate additional pupils in the
future.

Tudalen 63




Number

Question/Comment

Response

3.

If pupils from Rhigos Primary School
moved to Hirwaun Primary School,
what impact would this have on class
sizes?

BH explained this would depend on how
many pupils transferred to Hirwaun
Primary School should the proposal
proceed, and in which year group they join.
It is difficult to predict at this stage.

Would Hirwaun Primary School receive
funding for any additional pupils?

Yes. CE duly explained that following the
consultation process, if it is agreed that the
proposal is to proceed to close Rhigos
Primary School, and if pupil numbers
increase in Hirwaun Primary School, the
school would receive additional funding.

What would the impact be on
lunchtimes, in terms of numbers of
lunchtime staff etc?

CE duly explained if it is agreed that the
proposal is to proceed to close Rhigos
Primary School, and if pupil numbers
increase in Hirwaun Primary School, the
school would receive additional funding for
additional lunchtime staff.

Would only current Rhigos Primary
School pupils be entitled to school
transport to Hirwaun Primary School, or
future pupils also?

CE explained any current, and future
pupils from Rhigos, who live a specified
distance from Hirwaun Primary School, or
for whom there is no safe available walking
route, would be entitled to free school
transport as per the Welsh Government'’s
Learner Travel Policy.

Would pupils from Aberdare Town
Church in Wales Primary Schoaol still be
at Hirwaun Primary in September
20247

NG explained that pupils from Aberdare
Town Church in Wales Primary School are
temporarily sited at Hirwaun Primary
School whilst works are ongoing at their
school. Those works are progressing well
as such that pupils will return to Aberdare
Town Church in Wales Primary School by
September 2024.

Would staff from Rhigos Primary School
be guaranteed employment elsewhere?

BD informed the meeting that should the
decision be made to close Rhigos Primary
School, those staff members would be
under a notice of redundancy. Under the
Management of Change Policy, staff
would be eligible to seek redeployment.
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough
Council (RCTCBC) works hard to secure
the redeployment of staff and has positive
previous experiences of this happening.

BH stated that staff from other schools
have previously been redeployed to
Hirwaun Primary School.

BD explained RCTCBC would consult with
Trade Unions and all staff of Rhigos

Tudalen 64




Number

Question/Comment

Response

Primary School to achieve the desired
outcome.

CE stated redundancy packages would be
available for those staff who may choose
that option.

Staff and governors present
acknowledged this is an emotional time for
everyone at the school, and the whole
community of Rhigos.

What have the residents of Rhigos said

about the proposals?

CE explained that as part of the
consultation process, drop-in sessions
have been arranged at both schools for
members of the public to talk to RCTCBC
Officers and voice their opinions. For those
who are not able to join in person, they
could participate in the consultation
process by completing the online survey.

10.

Staff and governors stated if Rhigos
Primary School were to close and pupils
transferred to Hirwaun Primary School,
it would have an impact on current
Hirwaun Primary School pupils;
therefore, parents should be kept

informed of discussions.

BH explained it is difficult to plan anything
at present until we know the outcome of
the proposals.

CE reiterated that the proposal to close
Rhigos Primary School has not been
decided upon at this stage, however, if the
decision at the end of the process is to
close Rhigos Primary School, RCTCBC
would support with the transition of pupils.

11.

If it is decided that Rhigos Primary
School will close, will RCTCBC Officers
return to Hirwaun Primary School to
explain the next steps of the process?

CE confirmed that if required, RCTCBC
could arrange further meetings to discuss
the next steps.

12.

Would there be a change to the
Governing Body of Hirwaun Primary

School?

CE explained should the number of pupils
in Hirwaun Primary School increase, the
composition of the Governing Body would
need to be looked at to see if any changes
needed to be made. This could be
reviewed at a later date.

4. Closing Remarks

The Governing Body and staff members were informed that they will be offered the
opportunity over the coming weeks to reflect on the questions and responses provided
and submit additional questions where required.

Tudalen 65




The Governing Body and staff members were encouraged to participate in engaging
in the consultation process through completing the online survey or putting comments
in writing to schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk.

All attendees were thanked for participating in the meeting.

Meeting closed at 16:30.

Tudalen 66


mailto:schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk

Appendix 2(B) - Minutes of Meetings with Governing Body and Staff Members

of Rhigos Primary School

Date 26 October 2023

Time 15:30

Venue | Rhigos Primary School, Rhigos

Attendance
Name Initials | Title
Gaynor Davies GD Director of Education and Inclusion Services

Andrea Richards | AR Service Director 215t Century Schools and Transformation

Lisa Howell LH 218t Century Schools Business and School Organisation
Manager

Tim Britton B Head of Achievement RCT (Primary Sector)

Anneli Hunt AH Governor Support Officer

Sarah Nicholls SN 21st Century Schools Assistant Project Officer

Ellen Williams EW Human Resources Manager

Mrs J Mundy JM Headteacher of Rhigos Primary School

N/A N/A Governing Body and Staff Members of Rhigos Primary School

1. Welcome and Introductions

GD welcomed everyone and thanked them for attending the meeting. Introductions

were made.

2. Consultation Overview

GD provided the meeting with an overview of the proposal being made and the
consultation process to be followed, as set out in the Consultation Document.

3. Staff and Governor Questions

The Governing Body and staff members of Rhigos Primary School were invited to
ask gquestions. The questions from the Governing Body and staff members and the
responses provided are summarised in the table that follows.

Tudalen 67




Number

Question

Response

Can you explain why the Consultation
Document wused information from
surveys carried out in 2019?

The information from the 2019 condition
surveys is the most current data available
and is valid in line with industry standards.

Why was the backlog maintenance not
addressed by Rhondda Cynon Taf
Cunty Borough Council (RCTCBC)?

The condition surveys represent a point in
time and help to establish if the buildings
are safe, watertight and warm. Some
repairs and improvement works have been
carried out at Rhigos Primary School by
RCTCBC.

RCTCBC have a duty to maintain the
building.

The maintenance of the school building
must work on a partnership approach with
the Governing Body as they have a
responsibility under Local Management of
schools to undertake repairs and
maintenance.

The Early Years building was
constructed in 1950, why did RCTCBC
not address the issue when it came to
its ‘end of life’ (after 20 years)?

The 2019 condition survey outlines the
condition of the building and suggests that
the school building has reached the end of
its life. The building is not worth further
investment from RCTCBC due to the age,
condition and type of structure. There are
115 schools in Rhondda Cynon Taf (RCT)
and RCTCBC is currently working through
its School Modernisation Programme of
investment. It is a challenge to prioritise
invest in all schools in RCT and RCTCBC
must prioritise schools that cause the most
concern. Though the Early Years building
is safe, it would not benefit from further
investment.

Too much investment is being put into
schools that are not full. Money was
recently invested into Rhigos Primary
School by the community, not by
RCTCBC.

Noted. The Council has invested in the
school and also undertaken repairs and
maintenance with the co-support of the
Government Body, due to the costs of the
work.

Consultation Document is not accurate.
The details of the building are not
correct.

Details of the building were drawn from the
2019 condition survey, which is the most
current information available.

Tudalen 68




Number

Question

Response

Why is Rhigos Primary School not a
rural school?

Rural schools are a Welsh Government
classification. RCTCBC do not have the
power to designate schools as rural
schools.

Why are there no rural schools in RCT?

This is a Welsh Government designation.
All rural schools are listed in the Welsh
Government’s School Organisation Code
(2" Edition) (011 / 2018).

The school building must be safe as
pupils are still being allowed to use it.
Where do the pupil figures and pupil
projections come from? The nursery
figures are not accurate.

The buildings are ‘safe, watertight and
warm’ and perfectly safe due to planned
maintenance works identified. Pupil
projections come from live birth data from
school catchment areas. There is a trend of
declining data. Pupil projection figures are
not guaranteed, however, that is the data
that is available currently.

10.

How can we believe that the pupll
numbers are correct?

RCTCBC must look at predictions and
trends based on the data that is available.
RCTCBC has to make efficient use of
resources to make difficult decisions based
on the data.

11.

The Hirwaun Primary School pupil
numbers in the report are incorrect.

We must work with the data given to us and
look at the Local Development Plan to take
into account housing in the catchment
areas.

The numbers are correct, the data used is
the most accurate taken from the PLASC
data sets. The projections and future
capacity include information from the Local
Development Plan to take into account of
housing in the catchment area.

12.

What happens if pupils from Rhigos
Primary School go to Hirwaun Primary
School, as well as pupils who will come
from the new houses?

There is currently enough space for both.
RCTCBC is currently drafting the new
Local Development Plan, which is a plan
for 10 years. If there are more housing
developments allocated, and there is not
enough capacity at Hirwaun Primary
School, then the Local Development Plan
will reflect this demand.

Tudalen 69




Number

Question

Response

13. When did RCTCBC start to write the | The decision to write the Consultation
Consultation Document? Report was recent. No definitive date can
be given, however, work on the report

began late in the last academic year.

14. Why did RCTCBC allow two permanent | Proposals are highly confidential and
members of staff to be taken on at | cannot be shared with stakeholders before
Rhigos Primary School if the|they have been shared with elected
consultation was a recent decision? No | Members and the wider community. HR do
support given to staff. provide support to our employees during

management of change  process.
Occupational Health have offered and will
continue to offer support to staff. RCTCBC
cannot assume that the proposal would be
agreed, and so must go through the
consultation process.

15. RCTCBC could have looked at a school | This was a confidential proposal; no
restructure — there are no |information could have been shared
contingencies. widely. These proposals are highly emotive

and RCTCBC has been successful in the
past at supporting staff who need to find
new roles.

16. Concerns over pupils when moving | The process of change is managed and
schools pupils will receive supported transition if

the proposal goes ahead.

17. Concerns over wellbeing of pupils and | Noted.
staff had no time to process the news.

Staff should have had training and
support when dealing with pupils after
the Consultation Document came out.
18. Don’t believe staff will be supported. Noted.
19. How can RCTCBC say that Rhigos | The Consultation Document states that a

Primary School can’t deliver the New
Curriculum for Wales? The statements
in the Consultation document are open
to challenge. While RCTCBC does
recognise that Rhigos Primary School
is a good school, some of the
statements made are hurtful.

bigger school will assist with the delivery of
the new Curriculum for Wales. The
information in the report is factual.
Comments can be fed back to RCTCBC as
part of the consultation.

Tudalen 70




Number

Question

Response

20.

Is RCTCBC promoting failure? Good
schools are not receiving investment
while other schools are. If we were a
failing school, would we have had
investment?

It is good that Rhigos Primary School has
done well, and Estyn will also feed into the
consultation. Any comments can be fed
back to RCTCBC as part of the
consultation and the transition process.

21.

Is the decision already made?

No it has not. RCTCBC’s Cabinet will see
all comments that are submitted as part of
the consultation process and the meetings
taking place.

22.

If we waited, would Rhigos get a new
school?

RCTCBC must look at the cost of
investment against pupil numbers and
demonstrate value for money. The
Consultation Document is looking at all
points and aspects that form part of this
case.

23.

You are using Rhigos Primary School
as a plaster for Hirwaun Primary
School.

Noted.

24,

Rhigos Primary School currently get
EP visits, as does Hirwaun Primary
School. These visits would be lost if
pupils go to Hirwaun Primary School.

The number of sessions for each school is
taken into account, and applications for
further visits can be made if necessary. No
EP visits will be lost.

25.

There will be more additional learning
needs demand on the staff of Hirwaun
Primary School.

It is likely that there will be more capacity
for resources to provide for ALN pupils at
Hirwaun Primary School as it is a bigger
school. All Hirwaun Primary School staff
have a duty to ensure that the needs of
pupils are met and provision made.

26.

How will pupils access breakfast club in
Hirwaun Primary School? Pupils of
Rhigos Primary School currently walk
to breakfast club.

Yes, there is a breakfast club at Hirwaun
Primary School. There may be some
flexibility with the timing of breakfast club at
Hirwaun Primary School, and in our
experience, there could be capacity to
access breakfast club in time at Hirwaun
Primary School (before the school day
begins) from using school transport.

27.

Will there be any transport for after
school clubs?

There will be no extra transport for after
school clubs. The management of after

Tudalen 71




Number

Question

Response

school clubs are decisions of the

Governing Body.

28.

No transport for after school clubs will
reduce the number of extra-curricular
activities for pupils of Rhigos Primary
School. Currently, around 70.0% of
Rhigos Primary School pupils attend
extra-curricular activities and
opportunities.

Noted.

29.

What if pupils don’t go to Hirwaun
Primary School?

RCTCBC cannot regulate where parents
send their children to school. This is a
matter of parental choice out of the
available schools.

30.

How much would a bus cost to
transport pupils to Hirwaun Primary
School?

This would depend on the number of pupils
that would require transportation.

31.

It is chaos at Hirwaun Primary School
during pick-up time, there were
cameras there last week to look at
traffic congestion.

Concerns can be put down as part of your
response to the consultation.

32.

Is this already a ‘done deal’ or not?

The decision has not been made yet — this
is a proposal. Any parents who don’t want
to send their children to Hirwaun Primary
School would have to make arrangements
to apply to other available schools if the
proposal to close is approved.

33.

Applications to RCTCBC to admit
pupils to Rhigos Primary School are
already being directed to Hirwaun
Primary School.

This is not the case.

34.

This process undermines parents.
There is an obligation to parents, pupils
and staff — the process should reassure
parents that it is only a proposal
currently.

The community will have an opportunity to
voice concerns at the drop-in sessions
arranged.

35.

Parents are happy with the mixed
classes at the school, and RCTCBC
should respect that.

The wider school community will have an
opportunity to voice concerns at the drop-
in sessions arranged.

Tudalen 72




Number

Question

Response

36.

What is happening to parents who are
looking into applying for a school place
at Rhigos Primary School but are being
directed to Hirwaun Primary School?

This shouldn’t be happening. Parents can
apply for a place in both schools.

37.

How will parents be reassured that this
is only a proposal?

The Council recognises that this is a
complex process and that there is a lot of
information to go through that form part of
the consultation. Assurances were given
than this is a proposal.

38.

The image of Rhigos Primary School in
the Consultation Document is not
representative of the school and gives
a bad impression. There are no internal
images of the school used (like there
are with Hirwaun Primary School) — this
makes Rhigos Primary School look bad
when next to the images of the new
school at Hirwaun.

Noted.

39.

When will the report be published and
when will the decision be made?

The report will go to RCTCBC’s Cabinet in
December or January. The decision will be
made to move on with the process and
start the statutory notice period. All dates
and information will be shared as soon as
it is available to all stakeholders. Any
comments to the consultation can be used
as an objection if the individual wishes.

40.

How will pupils of Rhigos Primary
School learn about the community of
Rhigos, instead of learning about
Hirwaun? Concerns over the loss of
heritage.

The schools are not that far away from
each other. Please make any comments
known as part of the consultation process.

4. Closing Remarks

The Governing Body and staff members were informed that they will be offered the
opportunity over the coming weeks to reflect on the questions and responses provided
and submit additional questions where required.

Tudalen 73




The Governing Body and staff members were encouraged to participate in engaging
in the consultation process through completing the online survey or putting
comments in writing to schoolplanning@rctcbce.gov.uk.

All attendees were thanked for participating in the meeting.

Meeting closed at 17:00.

Tudalen 74


mailto:schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk

Appendix 3 (A) - Minutes of Meetings with School Council of Hirwaun Primary

School
Date Tuesday 7" November 2023
Time 13:50
Mode Face to Face
Attendance
Name Initials | Title
Andrea Richards AR Service Director 215t Century Schools and Transformation
Gaynor Davies GD Director of Education and Inclusion Services
Grace Zecca-Hanagan | GZH 215t Century Schools Project Officer
Lisa Howell LH 218t Century Schools Business and School Organisation
Manager
Tim Britton TBC Head of Achievement (Primary Sector)
Mrs Bethan Hill JM Headteacher at Hirwaun Primary School
N/A N/A School Council of Hirwaun Primary School

1. Welcome and Introductions

Officers in attendance introduced themselves to the School Council and thanked
them for attending the meeting. The School Council introduced themselves.

2. Consultation Overview

GD provided the School Council with an overview of the proposal being made and
the consultation process to be followed, as set out in the Consultation Document.
It was also confirmed that the pupils had all received a hard copy of the children’s
version of the Consultation Document.

3. School Council Questions

The School Council of Hirwaun Primary School were invited to ask questions and
makes comments. The questions and comments made are summarised in the
table that follows along with their response, where necessary.

Number | Question Response

1. | think we should go ahead with the proposal | Hirwaun Primary School will try to
but the children from Rhigos Primary School | keep friendship groups together.
may want to stay with their friends.

2. It would be good to make more friends. Noted.

4. It is nice for children from Rhigos Primary | Noted.
School to have more space.

5. It would be a pleasure to have the children | Noted.
from Rhigos Primary School with us at
Hirwaun Primary School.

6. It is nice for the children at Rhigos Primary | Noted.

School to experience some of the facilities

Tudalen 75




Number

Question

Response

that we have here at Hirwaun Primary
School.

What would happen to the teachers at Rhigos
Primary School.

It is too early to say what changes
may happen as the proposal is yet to
be decided.

The children talked about some of the clubs
that take place at Hirwaun Primary School
including:

Choir.

Football.

Gardening.

Rugby.

Netball.

Fitness.

Coding.

French.

Art and craft.

Beat ball.

Year three children also take part in
swimming lessons.

Noted.

The children at Hirwaun Primary School
talked about their vision. They explained that
this is revisited periodically.

Noted.

10.

The children at Hirwaun Primary School
talked about enquiry based learning and the
benefits that this has on their learning.

Noted.

11.

The children at Hirwaun Primary School
commented that they would welcome the
children of Rhigos Primary School visiting.

The children at Hirwaun Primary School
commented that they would show the
children of Rhigos Primary School:

The Chrome books.

Learning tools.

How kind the school community is.
Where all the toys are.

The after school clubs.

The art pieces that they have worked on.
The sports facilities.

The school layout and how the school day
operates.

e The multi-use games area.

The children commented that a good
transition event would include:

Noted.

Tudalen 76




Number

Question

Response

e Making craft activities and posters to
welcome the children of Rhigos Primary
School.

e Friendly activities to get to know each
other.

e Different work stations.

e Circle time.

e Playtimes, at Hirwaun Primary School
there is one playtime and a lunch time.

12.

The headteacher explained that Hirwaun
Primary School is open to the local
community at certain times of year celebrate
with the community, such as Harvest and
Christmas.

The children at Hirwaun Primary School also
go out to the community and they
commented that they would be exited to
extend this to the community of Rhigos.

Noted.

13.

The children at Hirwaun Primary School also
commented that they have a book fayre
every year. Year six pupils are given the
opportunity to help work at the book fayre.

Noted.

14.

The children at Hirwaun Primary School said
that they have fun events like school discos.

Noted.

15.

There are lots of committees at Hirwaun
Primary School such as:

e School Council.

Rights Respecting Schools Committee.
Eco Committee.

Sports Leaders.

Criw Cymraeg.

These are appointed to every September, so
if the proposal goes ahead the children of
Rhigos Primary School would be welcome to
participate.

Noted.

16.

What do the children at Rhigos Primary think
about moving schools?

They are a bit worried about change.
The children at Rhigos Primary
School love their school and don’t
want it to close. However, we are
listening to all of your views, and they
will form part of any decision made.

17.

We will be opening a clothes sale as part of
the Eco Club.

This is a great idea to be renewable.

18.

What colour school uniform do the children at
Rhigos Primary School wear?

The children at Rhigos Primary
School wear burgundy jumpers.

Tudalen 77




Number

Question

Response

19.

How long have you all worked at the Council
for?

All of the officers gave an outline of
how long they work at the Council for
and what job they do.

20.

The children at Hirwaun Primary School
talked about their school trips that they have
been on including:

e Pantomime.

Heatherton.

Caerphilly Castle.

Santa’s Toy Mine.

Cantref Farm.

Gruffalo Tralil.

Dare Valley Country Park.

Teddy Bears Picnic.

Visitors also come into the school including:
e Animated dinosaurs.
e World War Two exhibition.

Noted.

4. Closing Remarks

The School Council were informed that they will be offered the opportunity over the
coming weeks to reflect on the questions and responses provided and submit
additional questions where required.

The School Council were encouraged to participate in engaging in the consultation
process through completing the online survey or putting comments in writing to
schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk.

All attendees were thanked for participating in the meeting.

Meeting closed at 14:45.

Tudalen 78



mailto:schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk

Appendix 3 (B) - Minutes of Meetings with School Council of Rhigos Primary
School

Date Monday 6" November 2023

Time 13:45

Mode Face to Face

Attendance

Name Initials | Title

Andrea Richards AR Service Director 215t Century Schools and Transformation

Gaynor Davies GD Director of Education and Inclusion Services

Grace Zecca- GZH 215t Century Schools Project Officer

Hanagan

Lisa Howell LH 215t Century Schools Business and School Organisation
Manager

Sarah Corcoran SC Head of Achievement and Wellbeing

Mrs Janine Mundy JM Headteacher at Rhigos Primary School

Mrs Rebecca Murphy | RM Deputy Headteacher and School Council Lead at Rhigos
Primary School

N/A N/A School Council of Rhigos Primary School

1. Welcome and Introductions

Officers in attendance introduced themselves to the School Council and thanked
them for attending the meeting. The School Council introduced themselves.

2. Consultation Overview

The children presented a PowerPoint presentation entitled ‘Save our School’. The
pupils were thanked and officers confirmed that this would be shared with the
Council’s Cabinet.

GD provided the School Council with an overview of the proposal being made and
the consultation process to be followed, as set out in the Consultation Document.
It was also confirmed that the pupils had all received a hard copy of the children’s
version of the Consultation Document.

Tudalen 79




3. School Council Questions

The School Council of Rhigos Primary School were invited to ask questions and
make comments. The questions and comments made are summarised in the table
that follows along with their response, where necessary.

Number

Question

Response

1.

What if your parents don’t drive and you
miss the school bus?

If you miss the bus, you will have to
arrange your own transport.

We would hope that you wouldn’t miss the
bus, as most parents are very organised
and would help you catch the school bus
on time.

What will you do with Rhigos Primary
School if it closes?

If the proposal goes ahead, we will work
with the community of Rhigos to see if the
school building could be used within the
community.

Will there be buses for breakfast and
after school clubs?

There will be one bus for the school at the
start and end of the school day, depending
on the time of breakfast club and the home
to school transport, you may be able to
attend breakfast club.

| have moved school lots and it is not
nice. Some schools don’t have as many
play times as we do at Rhigos Primary
School, and they have classes that are
bigger.

Most schools have three play times, but
we will check how many play times they
have at Hirwaun Primary School.

Why do you want to close Rhigos
Primary School?

We clarified the points already discussed
in the children’s version of the
Consultation Document

What about our siblings?

Parents will have the option about what
primary school they would like their child to
attend. If you have siblings, there will be
plenty of space for them to attend Hirwaun
Primary School.

Would we all be able to go on the yard
at play time at the same time, like at
Rhigos Primary School?

We will check how play times at Hirwaun
Primary School operate.

When Penderyn Primary School
became a Welsh medium primary
school, I had to leave and attend Rhigos
Primary School, an English medium
school. If Rhigos Primary School
closes, that would mean | will have to
change schools again.

We are sorry to hear this.

When will we find out if Rhigos Primary
School will close.

The consultation timeline was provided,
and it was explained that if the proposal is
approved it would go ahead by September
2024.

Tudalen 80




Number

Question

Response

10.

Will you set up days when we can visit
Hirwaun Primary School.

Absolutely, this is an incredibly good idea,
and we will make arrangements for all
pupils of Rhigos Primary School to visit
Hirwaun Primary School if they wish.

11.

Will a year six pupil have to move to
Rhigos Primary School before starting
comprehensive school?

No, if agreed these proposals is approved
it would go ahead by September 2024. By
this date, pupils who are currently in year
six would become year seven pupils and
would be in secondary school.

12.

If we make a friend and they don'’t live
in Rhigos, could they play in our park.

I’'m sure these arrangements could be
made with your parents.

13.

It would be nice to go to a newer school.

It is often the people that make a place,
and we understand how important Rhigos
Primary School is to you all.

14.

Why are you taking the proposal further
if we are saying that we do not want
Rhigos Primary School to close.

This is part of the process. We clarified the
points already discussed in the children’s
version of the Consultation Document.

15.

Rhigos Primary School is still in quite
good condition.

We can see that you have made a
wonderful environment.

16.

Will we still get to learn through the
enquiries that we have picked?

The new Curriculum for Wales started last
year, in many schools its taught through an
enquiry based approach. We will check
what approach is used at Hirwaun Primary
School.

17.

If Rhigos Primary School closes, will we
have to change our school uniform?

Hirwaun Primary School has established
its school uniform. We cannot confirm that
the school uniform at Hirwaun Primary
School would be changed immediately,
however, this may happen in time.

18.

How will you help us fit into a different
school’s vision.

Any school’s vision is about ensuring the
best teaching and learning for children,
and we would hope that Hirwaun Primary
School is an inclusive school that will help
you fit in.

In addition, transition events will be
arranged for you to visit Hirwaun Primary
School.

19.

If we move schools, will we be able to
have school discos and assemblies?

We are sure that these will be offered at
Hirwaun Primary School.

20.

Will all our teachers and friends be able
to come with us?

It is too early to say what changes may
happen as the proposal is yet to be
approved.

21.

Are you going to bring the oldest lady in
Rhigos to Hirwaun Primary School?

Potentially, Hirwaun Primary School is a
community school, and they would
welcome members of the community
visiting.

Tudalen 81




Number

Question

Response

22.

Will the School Council change?

Hirwaun Primary School has many clubs,
offering lots of opportunities for those who
wish to take part.

23. Why did you pick Hirwaun Primary | We looked at many things, including pupil
School? numbers, how close Rhigos Primary
School is to another school. Hirwaun
Primary School has lots of space and is
close to Rhigos Primary School.
Change can be very worrying; however, it
can be positive as it gives you lots of
opportunities.
24. | Will there be a football team at Hirwaun | We will check with the school but we do
Primary School? know they patrticipate in lots of sports and
activities.
25. Are there breakfast clubs at Hirwaun | Yes, Hirwaun Primary School has a
Primary School? breakfast club.
26. My  headteacher is the best| We are all pleased that you feel happy with
headteacher. your headteacher.
27. | don’t want to change schools because | We are all pleased that you feel happy with

we think Rhigos Primary School is the
best school.

your school.

4. Closing Remarks

The School Council were informed that they will be offered the opportunity over the
coming weeks to reflect on the questions and responses provided and submit
additional questions where required.

The School Council were encouraged to participate in engaging in the consultation
process through completing the online survey or putting comments in writing to
schoolplanning@rctcbe.gov.uk.

All attendees were thanked for participating in the meeting.

Meeting closed at 14:50.

Tudalen 82



mailto:schoolplanning@rctcbc.gov.uk

1.1

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

Agendwm 5
/

&

RHONDDA CYNON TAF
—E—

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2023-24
EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
14™ DECEMBER 2023

ANNUAL SCHOOL EXCLUSION PERFORMANCE REPORT
FOR THE ACADEMIC YEAR 2022/23

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SERVICES

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with an analysis of school exclusion
performance for the academic year 2021/22 and a comparison of performance over
the last five years where appropriate.

RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Members:
Scrutinise and comment on the information contained within this report.

Consider whether they wish to scrutinise in greater depth any matters contained in
the report.

BACKGROUND TO THE REPORT

Schools must have policies and procedures in place that promote good behaviour
and prevent poor behaviour. A school’s behaviour and attendance policy should be
seen as an integral part of its curriculum, as all schools teach values as well as skills
and knowledge. The policy must be based on clear values such as respect, fairness
and inclusion, and reflect the school’s overall aims and its social, moral and religious
education programmes.

These values should be the basis for the principles underlying the school’s behaviour
and attendance policy. The principles should include promoting self-discipline and
respect for others, and the importance of listening to all members of the school
community, including the learners. They should be relevant to every member of the
school community, including staff, governors and parents/carers.

A decision to exclude a learner should be taken only:
e inresponse to serious breaches of the school’s behaviour policy; and
¢ if allowing the learner to remain in school would seriously harm the education
or welfare of the learner or others in the school.

Tudalen 83



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Only the headteacher or teacher in charge of a PRU can exclude a learner. If they
are absent from school, the most senior teacher may exercise the power of exclusion,
though they should make clear that they are acting in the headteacher’s absence.
The headteacher or teacher in charge cannot routinely, or on an ad hoc basis,
delegate the power to exclude to another teacher.

A decision to exclude a learner permanently is a serious one. It will usually be the
final step in a process for dealing with disciplinary offences following a wide range of
other strategies, which have been tried without success. It is an acknowledgement
by the school that it has exhausted all available strategies for dealing with the learner
and should normally be used as a last resort.

There will, however, be exceptional circumstances where in the headteacher’'s
judgement it is appropriate to permanently exclude a learner for a first or one-off
offence. These might include:

e serious actual or threatened violence against another learner or a member of

staff;

e sexual abuse or assault;

e supplying an illegal drug;

e use or threatened use of an offensive weapon.

In most cases it would be appropriate for schools to inform the police if they believe
such a criminal offence has taken place. There may be cases where this approach
is appropriate for learners excluded for a fixed term. Schools should also consider
whether or not to inform other agencies, e.g. Youth Offending Team, Children’s
Services etc.

These instances are not exhaustive but indicate the severity of such offences and the
fact that such behaviour can affect the discipline and well-being of the school
community.

Exclusion should not be used for:

e minor incidents such as failure to do homework;

e poor academic performance;

e lateness or truancy;

e breaches of school uniform rules or rules on appearance (including jewellery
and hairstyle), except where these are persistent and in open defiance of such
rules and where all other avenues for resolving the uniform dispute have been
exhausted.

Exclusion should not be used if alternative solutions are available. Examples include
the following.

e Pastoral Support Programmes (PSPs) for learners who are not responding
to schools’ general actions to combat disengagement and disaffection and are
in need of longer-term intervention. PSPs are plans for learners to better
manage their behaviour and should be drawn up using a multi-agency
approach (including the learner and parents/carers) and reviewed on a regular
basis;

o Restorative approaches, which gives offending learners the opportunity to
redress the harm that has been done to a victim and enables all parties with a
stake in the outcome to participate fully in the process. All professionals need
to be involved in the process and all parties must consent to participate;

¢ Internal exclusion (also known as internal seclusion), which can be used to
diffuse situations that occur in school that require a learner to be removed from
class but may not require exclusion from the school premises. The exclusion

Tudalen 84



could be to a designated and supervised area within the school, with
appropriate support, or to another class on a temporary basis, and may
continue during break periods;

Managed move: if a school feels that it can no longer manage the behaviour
of a particular learner, the school may arrange, normally through the local
authority (LA), for another school to take over the learner’s education. This
should only be done with the full knowledge and cooperation of all parties
involved, including the parents/carers and the LA, and in circumstances where
itis in the best interests of the learner concerned. Parents/carers should never
be pressured into removing their child from school under threat of a permanent
exclusion, nor should learners be deleted from the school roll to encourage
them to find another school place.

4, SUMMARY OF EXCLUSIONS

4.1  This report provides an analysis and evaluation of exclusion data over a 5-year
period. Due to the fact that rates of exclusion during the pandemic were affected by
significant school closures during this period, rates of exclusion during the pandemic
are not directly comparable with typical academic years, hence the inclusion of
comparators with pre-Covid data in relation to specific data sets throughout the

report.

4.2 Table 1 shows the number of permanent and fixed term exclusions and the number
of days lost for the academic years 2021/22 and 2022/23.

Table1a: Summary of Exclusions within RCT in 2021/22 — 2022/23

Percentage
2021/22 2022/23 difference between
2021/22 & 2022/23
Permanent Exclusions 18 31 72.22%
Reinstated from Permanent Exclusion 3 9 200.00%
Number of Fixed Term Exclusions 2436 2927 20.16%
Number of Days Lost 4446.5 5516 24.05%
Average length of exclusion (days) 1.83 1.88 3.24%

Table 1b: Breakdown of Overall Summary Detailed in Table 1a for 2022/23

Primary | Secondary | PRU/Special Total
Phase Phase School
Permanent Exclusions 0 30 1 31
Number of Fixed Term Exclusions 369 2418 140 2927
Number of Days Lost 490 4775 251 5516

4.3 The above data demonstrates a significant increase in the number of permanent
exclusions, fixed term exclusions and the number of days lost within RCT schools
when comparing academic years 2021/22 and 2022/23.

4.4 Graphs 1 and 2 highlight the fluctuating trends evident within RCT for both permanent
and fixed term exclusions over the past 5 academic years:

Tudalen 85




Graph 1: Permanent Exclusions within RCT over 5 years

Number of Exclusions

35

30

25

20

15

10

(€]

Permanent Exclusions 2018/2019 - 2022/2023

2018/2019 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

M Permanent Exclusions

Graph 2: Fixed Term Exclusions and the number of days lost within RCT over

5 Years

5000

3000

Mumber

2000

1000

=== Mumber of Exclusions

e UM ber of Days Lost

Fixed Term and Total Number of Days Lost

2018/2019 - 2022/2023

2018/1% 2018/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
2686 1490 1432 2439 2027
53655 2695 2537.5 44465 5516

4.5 The number of pupils subject to an exclusion has also fluctuated over the past five
academic years with a dip during the Covid period. However, it is concerning that the

Tudalen 86




5.1

5.2

number of pupils incurring a fixed term exclusion in 2022/23 exceeded the number
excluded in 2018/19 prior to the pandemic:

Table 2: Number of pupils excluded 2018/19 — 2022/23

2018/19 2019/20 | 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

Pupils excluded 1118 756 864 1203 1220

NATIONAL BENCHMARKING DATA

The national context with regards to pupil exclusions is highlighted using the Welsh
Government’s Statistics. The latest comparison data available at the time of writing
relates to 2021/22 data sets (First Release: Permanent and Fixed Term Exclusions
for Schools in Wales 2021/22) which was published on the 9" November 2023.
Therefore, the national benchmarking data relates to previous academic years
2017/18 - 2021/22 and the local data sets relate to 2022/23.

Table 2 below highlights the trend data for RCT compared to other local authorities.
RCT’s national ranking remains the same as 2020/21 at 15" for permanent
exclusions. Despite this there was a significant increase in the number of incidents
from 8 in 2020/21 to 18 in 2021/22. Slight improvements are noted when comparing
rate of exclusions per 1000 pupils with RCT’s ranking improving from 10 in 2020/21
to a ranking of 9'" in 2021/22.

Table 3: Permanent exclusions in Wales, by local authority, 2021/22

Number of exclusions Rate of exclusions

Local Authority 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22
Isle of Anglesey 5 9 13 5 6 0.5 0.9 1.3 0.5 0.6
Gwynedd * 13 12 7 15 * 0.8 0.7 0.4 0.9
Conwy * 5 * 6 * 0.3 * 0.4
Denbighshire * 6 * * 9 * 0.4 * * 0.6
Flintshire 26 26 19 9 27 1.1 1.1 0.8 0.4 1.2
Wrexham 10 20 23 5 20 0.5 1.0 1.2 0.3 1.0
Powys 7 5 * * 7 0.4 0.3 * * 0.4
Pembrokeshire 7 5 * * * 0.4 0.3 * * *
Carmarthenshire * * * * * * * * * *
Swansea 17 25 15 18 22 0.5 0.7 0.4 0.5 0.6
Neath Port Talbot 8 16 13 8 19 0.4 0.8 0.6 0.4 0.9
Bridgend 12 8 * 13 0.5 0.3 * 0.6
Do s 2] -

Rhondda Cynon Taf 8 24 18 8 18 0.2 0.6 0.5 0.2 0.5
Merthyr Tydfil * * * 10 * * * 1.1
Caerphilly 26 18 31 13 36 0.9 0.6 1.1 0.5 1.3
Blaenau Gwent 12 * 8 6 5 1.3 * 0.9 0.6 0.5
Torfaen 6 10 7 * * 0.4 0.7 0.5 * *
Monmouthshire * * 6 5 5 * * 0.5 0.4 0.4
Newport 11 16 8 15 9 0.4 0.6 0.3 0.6 0.3
Cardiff 10 30 41 14 73 0.2 0.5 0.7 0.2 1.3

Source: Pupil level annual school census (PLASC), Welsh Government

Tudalen 87




Graph 3: Rate of Permanent Exclusions across Wales

Rate of Exclusion (per 1,000 pupils)

0.5

0.45

0.4

0.35

0.3

0.25

0.2

0.15

0.1

0.05

o I 1 l 1 l 1 l 1 l 1 l 1 l 1 l 1
2011/12 2013/14 2015/16 2017/18 2019/20 2021/22

Source: Pupil Level Annual School Census (PLASC) the shaded areas show years affected by the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

5.3

54

Graph 3 is an extract from the Welsh Government Exclusions from Maintained
Schools: September 2021 to August 2022 Report (published November 2023) and
reports a line graph showing the rate of permanent exclusions between 2011/12 and
2021/22 across Wales. It is evident the rate increased steadily from 0.1 per 1,000
pupils in 2011/12 to 0.4 per 1,000 pupils in 2018/19. It dropped to 0.2 per 1,000
pupils in 2020/21 during the coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic. In 2021/22 it
increased to 0.5 per 1,000 pupils. The graph highlights the significant increasing
trend across Wales.

Table 4 records the number of fixed term exclusions (5 days or less). There was no
change in RCT’s ranking of 22" in relation to the number of fixed term exclusions
issued for 5 days or less in RCT schools in 2020/2021 and 2021/22. Despite there
being an increase in the rate of exclusions per 1000 pupils from 35.5 in 2020/2021 to
60.3 in 2021/22, RCT’s ranking is now 15" compared to 17" in 2020/2021 for rate of
exclusions per 1000 pupils.

Tudalen 88



Table 4: Fixed-term exclusions (5 days or less) in Wales, by local authority, 2021/22

Number of exclusions Rate of exclusions
Local Authority 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22
Isle of Anglesey 213 369 353 242 461 21.9 38.0 36.4 24.6 47.0
Gwynedd 287 380 422 445 575 16.9 22.4 24.8 26.0 33.7
Conwy 475 491 494 341 635 29.9 30.9 31.2 21.4 40.2
Denbighshire 1481 1193 697 770 1710 94.4 75.7 441 479 | 106.2
Flintshire 1215 1437 1069 995 1650 51.7 61.2 45.7 422 70.5
Wrexham 818 1040 752 732 1275 41.8 53.0 38.7 37.7 66.1
Powys 454 503 321 307 576 26.3 29.3 18.8 17.7 33.5
Ceredigion 145 203 123 165 217 15.1 21.1 12.8 17.0 22.7
Pembrokeshire 702 718 354 223 380 40.4 414 20.6 12.6 21.9
Carmarthenshire 754 797 531 525 1046 27.7 29.1 19.4 18.8 38.1
Swansea 897 1262 742 727 1608 24.9 35.0 20.7 20.0 44.6
Neath Port Talbot 870 1075 1021 649 1110 415 50.9 47.9 30.0 52.2
Bridgend 693 953 793 792 1324 30.1 412 34.3 33.8 57.1
-(ET:n:/oarIgazf 557 610 416 328 584 24.8 27.0 18.2 14.0 25.1
Rhondda Cynon Taf 1887 | 2493 1387 1387 | 2352 48.6 64.1 35.5 35.3 60.3
Merthyr Tydfil 446 304 276 258 638 50.2 33.5 30.7 27.9 69.4
Caerphilly 1103 1132 935 974 1718 38.7 39.9 33.4 34.3 61.6
Blaenau Gwent 601 617 400 349 819 64.4 66.0 42.8 36.7 87.3
Torfaen 591 652 431 539 939 39.3 43.6 29.1 37.3 65.8
Monmouthshire 542 707 402 381 588 46.5 61.5 34.9 32.8 51.0
Newport 964 948 654 757 1468 37.5 36.1 24.6 27.9 53.7
Cardiff 1451 1368 923 1138 | 2224 26.5 24.8 16.6 20.0 39.1

Source: Pupil level annual school census (PLASC), Welsh Government

5.5 Table 5 highlights fixed term exclusions of over 5 days and reports a significant
increase in the number of incidents between 2020/21 and 2021/22 from 40 to 71.
There was also an increase in the rate of exclusions per 1000 pupils between these
years. RCT’s ranking is 19" which is a slight improvement compared to 2020/2021
ranking of 20" in relation to the number of exclusions. RCT’s national ranking of 11t
in 2021/22 compared to the 2020/21 ranking of 12" in relation to the rate of
exclusions per 1000 pupils is also positive

Table 5: Fixed-term exclusions (over 5 days) in Wales, by local authority, 2021/22

Number of exclusions Rate of exclusions
Local Authority 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22
Isle of Anglesey * 23 16 14 44 * 24 1.6 1.4 45
Gwynedd 18 45 33 31 62 1.1 2.6 1.9 1.8 3.6
Conwy 19 22 23 14 29 1.2 1.4 1.5 0.9 1.8
Denbighshire 27 20 21 30 53 1.7 1.3 1.3 1.9 3.3
Flintshire 52 32 22 34 81 22 1.4 0.9 1.4 3.5
Wrexham 107 101 66 76 91 5.5 5.1 34 3.9 4.7
Powys 32 31 37 21 23 1.9 1.8 22 1.2 1.3
Ceredigion 8 * * 7 6 0.8 * * 0.7 0.6

Tudalen 89




Pembrokeshire 31 32 7 9 17 1.8 1.8 0.4 0.5 1.0
Carmarthenshire 26 31 29 23 32 1.0 1.1 1.1 0.8 1.2
Swansea 58 41 51 36 65 1.6 1.1 14 1.0 1.8
Neath Port Talbot 40 58 27 30 59 1.9 2.7 1.3 1.4 2.8
Bridgend 37 37 33 21 56 1.6 16 14 0.9 2.4
I;Taerr\frlga?]f 34 43 26 12 27 15 1.9 1.1 0.5 1.2
Rhondda Cynon Taf 60 109 39 40 71 1.5 2.8 1.0 1.0 1.8
Merthyr Tydfil * 5 * * 17 * 0.6 * * 1.8
Caerphilly 125 81 55 64 118 4.4 2.9 2.0 2.3 4.2
Blaenau Gwent 19 16 14 7 15 2.0 1.7 15 0.7 16
Torfaen 19 7 21 9 13 13 0.5 14 0.6 0.9
Monmouthshire 7 15 9 16 13 0.6 1.3 0.8 1.4 1.1
Newport 24 23 * 11 21 0.9 0.9 . 0.4 08
Cardiff 56 24 26 20 22 1.0 0.4 0.5 0.4 0.4

Source: Pupil level annual school census (PLASC), Welsh Government

Graph 4: Rate of Fixed Term Exclusions 5 Days or Less

55

50

45

40

35

30

25

Rate of Exclusion (per 1,000 pupils)

20

15 I T T T T T T T
2011/12 201314 2015/16 2017/18 2019/20 2021/22

Source: Pupil Level Annual School Census (PLASC) the shaded areas show years affected by the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

5.6 Graphs 4 & 5 are further extracts from the Welsh Government Exclusions from
Maintained Schools: September 2021 to August 2022 Report. Both graphs indicate a
significant increase in the rate of fixed term exclusions since the pandemic to a level
which is notably higher than pre-pandemic levels of exclusion in 2018/19. Graph 4 is
a line graph reporting the rate of fixed term exclusions of up to 5 days between

Tudalen 90




2011/12 and 2021/22 across Wales. The rate increased slowly from 28.0 exclusions
per 1,000 pupils in 2013/14 to 39.0 exclusions per 1,000 pupils in 2018/19. During
the coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic the rate dropped to 2013/ 14 levels. In the most
recent year for which there is data, 2021/22, the rate has increased to 50.6 per 1,000

pupils.

Graph 5: Rate of Fixed Term Exclusions Over 5 Days

Rate of Exclusion (per 1,000 pupils)

2.5

1.5

0.5

0
2011/12

2013/14 2015/16 2017/18 2019/20 2021/22

Source: Pupil Level Annual School Census (PLASC) the shaded areas show years affected by the
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

5.7

6.1

Graph 5 reports the rate of fixed term exclusions of more than 5 days between
2011/12 and 2021/22 across Wales. The rate is low. It started at 2.3 exclusions per
1,000 pupils in 2011/12 and steadily decreased to 1.1 per 1,000 pupils in 2020/21. In
the most recent year for which there is data, 2021/22, the rate has increased to 1.9
exclusions per 1,000 pupils.

LOCAL CONTEXT: AN ANALYSIS OF PERMANENT EXCLUSIONS

Table 6 shows the number of permanent exclusions in Rhondda Cynon Taf during
2021/22 and 2022/23 academic years:

Table 6: Year Groups of Permanently Excluded Pupils over last 2 years.

Year Group 2021/2022 2022/2031
Year 7 1 3
Year 8 0 3
Year 9 5 10
Year 10 9 13
Year 11 3 2
Total 18 31

Tudalen 91



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

7.1

There has been a 72.22% increase in the number of permanent exclusions in schools
within RCT during 2022/23 compared to 2021/22. This is a 34.78% increase
compared to 2018/19 (pre-pandemic) and an 55.00% increase compared to 2019/20
(pandemic period).

Of the 31 pupils permanently excluded in 2022/23, 12 were female and 19 were male.

The permanent exclusions for the academic year 2022/23 were in the following
schools.

5 (16.13%) Hawthorn High School
4 (12.90%) Pontypridd High School
2 (6.45%) Aberdare Community School
2 (6.45%) Bryncelynnog Comprehensive School
2 (6.45%) Cardinal Newman R C Comprehensive School
2 (6.45%) Ferndale Community School
2 (6.45%) Mountain Ash Comprehensive School
2 (6.45%) Y Pant Comprehensive School
2 (6.45%) Ysgol Garth Olwg
2 (6.45%) Ysgol Nantgwyn
1 (3.23%) Porth Community School

1 (3.23%) St John Baptist C in W High School
1 (3.23%) Tonyrefail Community School

1 (3.23%) Treorchy Comprehensive School

1 (3.23%) Ty Gwyn Education Centre

1 (3.23%) Ysgol Gyfun Rhydywaun

There were no permanent exclusions in our primary schools in 2022/23.

The 31 permanent exclusions imposed related to serious breaches of behaviour
including: 20 cases of incidents of physical assault against a pupil, 4 in relation to
physical assault against staff, 3 for verbal abuse/threatening behaviour towards an
adult, 2 for substance misuse, 1 for persistent disruptive behaviour and 1 for verbal
abuse/threatening behaviour towards a pupil. Serious cases of physical assault
against a pupil that were considered of such a serious nature to impose a permanent
exclusion have increased dramatically over the past academic year.

Should a parent/carer have significant concerns regarding the Governing Body’s
decision to uphold the headteacher’s permanent exclusion they are able to formally
appeal to a panel of independent professionals. Four cases were referred to an
Independent Appeal Panel (IAP) in 2022/23 of which; one resulted in the decision to
permanently exclude being overturned with reinstatement of the pupil back into the
excluding school, one resulted in the decision being overturned but not to reinstate
the pupil back into the excluding school and two decisions to permanently exclude a
pupil was upheld by the IAP.

LOCAL CONTEXT: AN ANALYSIS OF FIXED TERM EXCLUSIONS OF MORE
THAN 5 DAYS

Table 7 details the number of incidents of more than 5 days and duration of exclusion.
Fixed term exclusions of more than 5 days have fluctuated over the last 5 years, but
despite an increase in the number of incidents incurred in 2021/22 and 2022/2023, it
is positive to note that the number of incidents in these years are lower than in
2018/19 prior to the pandemic.

Tudalen 92



7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

Table 7: Number and Duration of Fixed Term Exclusions of more than 5 days
within RCT over 5 years

More than 5 days 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
Incidents 113 44 40 74 106 377
Duration 1006.5 439.5 317 803 1029 3595

*please note that slight variations in local and nationally reported datasets are evident.

Over the last 5 years the most common reason for a fixed term exclusion of over 5
days has been physical assault against a pupil at 22.87% of the total incidents,
followed by verbal abuse/threatening behaviour towards an adult at 18.62%. Of the
other 58.51% of incidents, 15.96% was as a result of physical assault against staff,
15.43% persistent disruptive behaviour, 13.03% other, 6.12% substance misuse,
3.46% verbal abuse/threatening behaviour towards a pupil, 2.13% damage, 1.60%
sexual misconduct, 0.53% bullying and 0.27% racial abuse. The highest reason for
over 5 days exclusion in 2022/23 was verbal abuse/threatening behaviour towards
an adult with 31.13% of the incidents.

In 2022/23 of the 106 incidents of fixed term exclusions of more than 5 days: 102
pupils were excluded of which 1 pupil had 3 exclusions and 2 pupils had 2 exclusions
within the academic year.

AN ANALYSIS OF FIXED TERM EXCLUSIONS 5 DAYS OR LESS

There has been a 19.28% increase in fixed term exclusions of 5 days or less in
2022/23 compared to 2021/22 and a 9.64% increase when comparing 2018/19 and
2022/23 data sets. There has also been a 22.85% increase in the number of days
lost when comparing the 2021/22 and 2022/23 data sets and a 2.94% increase when
comparing 2018/19 and 2022/23 data sets.

Table 8: Number and Duration of exclusions 5 days or less within RCT over 5
year period

5 days or less 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 Total
Incidents 2573 1446 1392 2365 2821 10597
Duration 4359 2255.5 2220.5 3652.5 4487 16974.5

*please note that slight variations in local and nationally reported datasets are evident.

When excluding pupils, schools are required to record the reason for the exclusion
(e.g. disruptive behaviour, substance misuse etc.). Persistent disruptive behaviour is
cited as the most frequent reason for fixed term exclusions (5 days or less) with
32.29% of the total incidents followed closely by verbal abuse/threatening behaviour
towards an adult with 22.76%. Of the other 44.95% incidents, 11.66% was a result
of other, 14.21% Physical Assault against a pupil, 8.37% physical assault against
staff, 2.30% substance misuse, 2.55% damage, 3.23% verbal abuse/threatening
behaviour towards a pupil, 1.21% racial abuse, 0.35% theft, 0.57% sexual
misconduct and 0.50% bullying. The most common reason for fixed term exclusion
prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, 2018/2019 was also persistent disruptive behaviour.
Furthermore, the two most prevalent reasons above reflect national data whereby
persistent disruptive behaviour and verbal abuse / threatening behaviour towards an
adult are cited as the two most common reasons for exclusions in 2021/22, and also
2018/19 pre-Covid.

Tudalen 93



8.3

8.4

9.1

Table 9 highlights that in 2022/23 of the 2821 incidents of fixed term exclusions of 5

days or less 1191 pupils were excluded.

summarised as follows:

Table 9: Number of repeat exclusions of 5 days or less 2022/23

The number of repeat exclusions is

Number of Number of Percentage of Number of Days
Exclusions Pupils Pupils Lost

1 Exclusion 674 56.59% 1049.5
2 Exclusions 167 14.02% 505.5
3 Exclusions 114 9.57% 576.5
4 Exclusions 75 6.30% 483.5
5 Exclusions 52 4.37% 400

6 Exclusions 35 2.94% 335

7 Exclusions 19 1.60% 206

8 Exclusions 15 1.26% 202.5
9 Exclusions 10 0.84% 150
10 Exclusions 10 0.84% 140

11 Exclusions 6 0.50% 122.5
12 Exclusions 3 0.25% 65

13 Exclusions 3 0.25% 70.5
14 Exclusions 5 0.42% 118
15 Exclusions 1 0.08% 18.5
16 Exclusions 2 0.17% 44
Grand Total 1191 100.00% 4487
Repeatedly excluded pupils are closely monitored by the Exclusion

Intervention/Prevention Officer to ensure schools are following Welsh Government
Guidance on the reporting of these pupils. The LA is supporting and challenging
schools who are repeatedly excluding pupils to ensure that appropriate support is
being provided at School Action Plus/Early Years Action Plus in accordance with the
requirements of the outgoing SEN Code of Practice for Wales or in relation to the
Additional Learning Provision (ALP) outlined in their Individual Development Plans
(IDP) under the new ALN Code for Wales.

AN ANALYSIS OF PRIMARY PHASE FIXED TERM EXCLUSIONS

Since academic year 2020/21 primary fixed term exclusions have been analysed as
‘primary phase’ exclusions to incorporate exclusions incurred by primary aged pupils
in our through schools. Prior to this, data relating to primary schools was analysed
separately from all-through schools data. Primary phase exclusions have seen a
notable increase in the past academic year. Table 10 below shows the overall primary
school exclusions rates (including both 5 days or less and 5 days or more) in RCT
over the last five years:

Table 10: Fixed Term Exclusions within the Primary Phase between 2018/19 —
2022/23

Tudalen 94



Pri difference | difference
rimary 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | between | between
Phase Data
2018/19 & | 2021/22 &
Incidents
of 370 208 174 269 369 -0.27% 37.17%
exclusions
Total
number of 657.5 280 250.5 352 490 -25.48% 39.20%
days lost
Average
length of o
exclusion 1.78 1.35 1.44 1.31 1.33 -25.28% 1.48%
(days)
Number of
pupils 179 96 97 122 155 -13.41% 27.05%
excluded
9.2 A breakdown of school performance on incidents of exclusions, number of days lost
and per 1000 pupil rates are detailed at Appendix 1.
9.3 Primary Phase with the highest rate of exclusions per 1000 pupils in 2022/23 are as
follows:
Trerobart Primary 216.22 per 1000 pupils
Cwmbach C in W Primary 174.31 per 1000 pupils
Penrhys Primary 141.31 per 1000 pupils
Ynysboeth Primary 128.05 per 1000 pupils
The primary phase with the highest number of incidents of exclusions were:
Trerobart Primary 40 (10.84%) incidents (6 pupils who lost 76 (15.51%) days)
Heol Y Celyn Primary 26 (7.05%) incidents (6 pupils who lost 26.5 (5.41%) days)
Cymmer Primary 23 (6.23%) incidents (8 pupils who lost 34 (6.94%) days)
Ynysboeth Primary 21 (5.69%) incidents (5 pupils who lost 16 (3.27%) days)
The primary phase with the highest number of incidents of 5 days or less exclusions
were:
Trerobart Primary 39 (10.63%) incidents (6 pupils who lost 68 (14.41%) days)
Heol Y Celyn Primary 26 (7.08%) incidents (6 pupils who lost 26.5 (5.61%) days)
Cymmer Primary 23 (6.27%) incidents (8 pupils who lost 34 (7.20%) days)
Ynysboeth Primary 21 (5.72%) incidents (5 pupils who lost 16 (3.39%) days)
The primary phase with the highest number of incidents of more than 5 days
exclusions were:
Trerobart Primary 1 (50.00%) incidents (1 pupil who lost 8 (44.44%) days)
Aberdare Park Primary 1 (50.00%) incidents (1 pupil who lost 10 (55.56%) days)
10. AN ANALYSIS OF ALL-THROUGH SCHOOLS FIXED TERM EXCLUSIONS
10.1 Despite a significant increase in fixed term exclusions in 2021/22 following pandemic

related decreases between 2019/20 and 2020/21, it is evident that the number of

Tudalen 95



exclusions issued in 2022/23 has risen to almost pre-pandemic levels. It is positive
however, that there has been a notable decrease in the number of pupils excluded.
Nearly all exclusions within the all-through schools are issued to pupils in the
secondary phase.

Table 11: Fixed Term Exclusions within All Through Schools 2018/19 -

2022/2023
Percentage Percentage

All difference | difference
Through 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | between between
Phase Data 2018/19 & | 2021722 &
Incidents
of 585 418 291 545 580 -0.85% 6.42%
exclusions
Total
number of 1188 670.5 395 830.5 877.5 -26.14% 5.66%
days lost
Average
length of 2.03 1.6 177 | 152 | 151 | -25.62% -0.66%
exclusion
(days)
Number of
pupils 225 189 194 312 239 6.22% -23.40%
excluded

10.2 The all through schools with the highest rate of exclusions per 1000 pupils were:

Ysgol Garth Olwg 186.89 per 1000 pupils
Porth Community 135.56 per 1000 pupils
Tonyrefail Community 102.28 per 1000 pupils

The all through schools with the highest number of incidents of exclusions were:

Ysgol Garth Olwg 228 (39.31%) incidents

(79 pupils who lost 301.5 (34.36%) days)
Tonyrefail Community 166 (28.62%) incidents

(69 pupils who lost 266.5 (30.37%) days)

The all through schools with the highest number of incidents of 5 days or less
exclusions were:

Ysgol Garth Olwg 226 (39.79%) incidents

(79 pupils who lost 282.5 (36.66%) days)
Tonyrefail Community 163 (28.70%) incidents

(69 pupils who lost 243.5 (31.60%) days)

The all through schools with the highest number of incidents of more than 5 days
exclusions were:

Ysgol Nantgwyn 4 (33.33%) incidents

(4 pupils who lost 43 (40.19%) days)
Tonyrefail Community 3 (25.00%) incidents

(1 pupils who lost 23 (21.50%) days)

Tudalen 96



11.

AN ANALYSIS OF SECONDARY PHASE FIXED TERM EXCLUSIONS

11.1 Since academic year 2020/21 secondary fixed term exclusions have been analysed
as ‘secondary phase’ exclusions to incorporate exclusions incurred by statutory
secondary aged pupils in our all through schools. Prior to this, data relating to
secondary schools was analysed separately from all-through schools’ data. Having
taken this into account, exclusions within the secondary phase have exceeded pre-
pandemic levels.
Table 12: Fixed Term Exclusions within the Secondary Phase 2018/19 — 2022/23
Percentage | Percentage
Secondary difference | difference
Phase Data 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23 | between between
2018/19 & 2021/22 &
2022/23 2022/23
Incidents
of 1467 753 1133 1987 2412 64.41% 21.39%
exclusions
Total
number of 3010 1490.5 | 2053.5 | 3756.5 4766 58.33% 26.87%
days lost
Average
lengthof | 505 | 198 | 157 | 189 | 198 | -3.41% 4.52%
exclusion
(days)
Number of
pupils 649 431 716 1014 1010 55.62% -0.39%
excluded

11.2 A breakdown of school performance on incidents of exclusions, number of days lost

and per 1000 pupil rates are detailed at Appendix 1.

11.3 Secondary Phase with the highest exclusions per 1000 pupils are as follows:

Mountain Ash Comp

351.91 per 1000 pupils

Ferndale Community

327.73 per 1000 pupils

Cardinal Newman RC

273.09 per 1000 pupils

YG Cwm Rhondda

249.30 per 1000 pupils

The secondary phase with the highest number of incidents of exclusions were:

Mountain Ash Comp

360 (14.93%) incidents
(117 pupils who lost 541 (11.35%) days)

Cardinal Newman R C

275 (11.40%) incidents
(94 pupils who lost 741 (15.55%) days)

227 (9.41%) incidents
(78 pupils who lost 298.5 (6.26%) days)

Ferndale Community

195 (8.08%) incidents
(69 pupils who lost 394.5 (8.28%) days)

Tudalen 97




The secondary phase with the highest number of incidents of 5 days or less

exclusions were:

Mountain Ash Comp

349 (15.08%) incidents
(117 pupils who lost 468.5 (12.23%) days)

Cardinal Newman R C

257 (11.10%) incidents
(88 pupils who lost 569 (14.86%) days)

Ysgol Garth Olwg

225 (9.72%) incidents
(78 pupils who lost 279.5 (7.30%) days)

Ferndale Community

186 (8.03%) incidents
(65 pupils who lost 294.5 (7.69%) days)

The secondary phase with the highest number of incidents of more than 5 days

exclusions were:

Cardinal Newman RC

18 (18.56%) incidents
(18 pupils who lost 172 (18.38%) days)

YG Cwm Rhondda

17 (17.53%) incidents
(16 pupils who lost 160.5 (17.15%) days)

Mountain Ash Comp

10 (11.34%) incidents
11 (10 pupils who lost 72.5 (7.75%) days)

Ferndale Community

9 (9.28%) incidents
(9 pupils who lost 100 (10.68%) days)

11.4 Significant improvements have been evident in several schools when comparing the
number of incidents per 1000 pupils between 2021/22 and 2022/23 data sets. These

include:

Table 13: Schools showing significant improvements: number of incidents of
exclusion per 1000 pupils

2021/22 | 2022/23 | Decreasein | Fercentage
. . . Decrease in

School Incidents | Incidents | Incidents per Incidents per

per 1000 | per 1000 1000 1000 P
Ty Gwyn Education Centre 3,638.89 | 3,272.73 -366.16 -10.06%
Ysgol Gyfun Rhydywaun 164.04 39.89 -124.15 -75.68%
Ysgol Nantgwyn 147.30 23.36 -123.94 -84.14%
Cwmbach C in W Primary School 279.66 174.31 -105.35 -37.67%

11.5 Concerning data trends have been evident in several schools as noted in Table 14
when comparing the number of incidents per 1000 pupils between 2021/22 and

2022/23 data sets.

Table 14: Schools showing concerning data trends: number of incidents of
exclusion per 1000 pupils

2021/22 | 2022/23 | Increase in Ipne:f:a"st:?ﬁ
School Incidents | Incidents Incidents Incidents

per 1000 | per 1000 per 1000 per 1000
Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhondda 81.66 249.3 167.64 205.29%
Mountain Ash Comprehensive School 194.31 351.91 157.6 81.11%
Trerobart Primary School 77.32 216.22 138.9 179.64%
Ysgol Garth Olwg 69.9 186.89 116.98 167.36%
gg;‘i‘gla' Newman RC Comprehensive 157.68 | 273.09 115.41 73.20%

Tudalen 98




12.

121

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

12.7

EXCLUSION RATES OF SPECIFIC OR VULNERABLE GROUPS IN RHONDDA
CYNON TAF

Exclusions are analysed by fixed term 5 days or less, fixed term more than 5 days,
permanent exclusions, by school phase and individually. A further analysis is
completed of vulnerable groups to monitor the rates of exclusion for our most
vulnerable pupils.

Of the 2927 total number of incidents of fixed term exclusions in 2022/23, 1220 pupils
were excluded of which 449 (36.80%) were female and 771 (63.20%) were male.
The number of females has remained the same when compared with 2021/2022 data
with 449 (37.42%) excluded. There has been a slight increase of 2.66% in the
number of males when compared with 2021/2022 data when there were 751
(62.58%) excluded. Over the last 5 years male pupils have generally been excluded
more than their female counterparts.

The year groups with the highest fixed exclusion rates in 2022/23 were:

Year 10 with 684 (23.37%) exclusions
Year 9 with 653 (22.34%) exclusions
Year 8 with 540 (18.48%) exclusions

Over the past 5 academic years there has been a decrease in the number of pupils
with a Special Educational Need (SEN) or an Additional Learning Need (ALN) being
excluded from 479 in 2018/19 to 306 in 2021/22 and a further decrease to 287 in
2022/23. The percentage of pupils with a SEN / ALN incurring exclusions of the total
cohort of excluded pupils significantly decreased from 42.84% in 2018/19 prior to the
pandemic to 25.5% in 2021/22 and 23.5% in 2022/23. This is against a backdrop of
a general increase in the number of pupils being excluded. The increase in the
number/percentage of pupils with no SEN/ALN incurring exclusions during 2022/23
continues to reflect concerns raised by schools regarding an overall deterioration of
behaviour within the school population following the pandemic and reflects the
national picture.

The percentage of eFSM learners being excluded was 43.11% in 2022/2023.
Table 15 data relates to the exclusion rates of children and young people who are
looked after (CLA) for the last 5 years. Despite a fluctuating trend in performance

overall, data for the past two academic years shows a more stable trend.

Table 15: Children and young people who are looked after and have been
excluded over the last 5 academic years

Total number | Total number RCT Rate per 1000

Academic Year | of incidents of | of excluded exclusion .

exclusions CLA pupils cohort pupils
2018/19 109 40 1118 35.78
2019/20 119 41 756 54.23
2020/21 50 22 864 25.46
2021/22 137 55 1203 45.71
2022/23 153 54 1220 44.26

During 2022/23, 2 CLA pupils were subject to a permanent exclusion, one due to
physical assault against a member of staff and one substance misuse. 153 incidents

Tudalen 99



12.8

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

of fixed term exclusion were related to 54 children and young people who were looked
after at the time of their exclusion and accounted for a loss of 270.5 school days. It is
concerning that levels of exclusion for CLA during 2022/23 were above pre-pandemic
levels in 2018/19.

The number of exclusions issued in relation to protected characteristics remains low.
There has been a slight increase in the percentage of exclusions relating to racial
incidents over the past five academic years but this remains low at 34 incidents in
2022/23 (1.16%). 16 (0.55%) pupils were excluded for bullying and 17 (0.57%) for
sexual misconduct in 2022/2023.

ADDRESSING RISING DATA TRENDS

The report details both the national and local data sets. In a national context,
performance in RCT showed a slight improvement in All Wales rankings when
comparing its rate of permanent exclusions per 1000 pupils with other local
authorities in 2021/22. Likewise, despite an increase in the number of fixed term
exclusions in RCT in 2021/22 compared to 2020/21, RCT’s ranking on an all-Wales
basis relating to rates per 1000 pupils excluded was more positive in 2021/22 for both
its fixed term exclusions of over 5 days and 5 days or less compared to the previous
academic year. Local data sets for 2021/22 and 2022/23 are concerning with
significant increases in all but one measure of exclusions for the second consecutive
academic year, now exceeding the last recorded pre-pandemic figures in 2018/19.
Data for the current academic year 2023/24 is also currently demonstrating a further
increase in both fixed term and permanent exclusions as seen in Table 16 below.
However, it is important to consider local data against the backdrop of the significant
increase in all measures of exclusion on a national basis in 2021/22 as shown in the
Welsh Government Exclusions from Maintained Schools: September 2021 to August
2022 Report (published November 2023) whereby both permanent and fixed term
exclusions rose to levels considerably higher than pre-pandemic levels. In addition,
school leaders are reporting increased levels of challenging behaviours amongst a
larger cohort of pupils.

Table 16: Summary of Exclusions within RCT in Autumn Terms 1

Autumn Term 1 Number of Exclusions
2020/21 455
2021/22 316
2022/23 542
2023/24 588
Grand Total 1901

The Education Directorate acknowledges the need to have a continued focus upon
reducing exclusions. This was recognised by Estyn during the RCT Local
Government Education Services (LGES) inspection in January 2023 with the
following recommendation:

R3 Work closely with schools, pupil referral units and the regional consortium
to build on the local authority’s work to further improve attendance and reduce
exclusions.

The Team Around the School (TAS) Protocol, a more collaborative framework for
addressing school improvement concerns involving schools, Central South
Consortium Improvement Partners and LA Inclusion Officers, was established last
academic year with the aim of providing support and challenge to schools where

Tudalen 100



13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

significant concerns had been identified in relation to behaviour management and
exclusions. Despite encouraging early indications of improved exclusion data for
some schools engaged in the TAS process, overall impact of this approach to date
is limited and will need further consideration. There is, however, an escalation
process built in to the TAS Protocol where there has been limited progress made by
schools in reducing their exclusions and addressing behavioural concerns over time.
From Spring Term 2024, schools will be required to set specific targets to reduce
exclusions in their settings. Communication will be sent to schools and Governing
Bodies in relation to the above in January 2024.

Access and Inclusion Services continue to implement a range of wellbeing and
behaviour initiatives with the support of Welsh Government grant funding. In
acknowledgment of the link between wellbeing and behaviour, grant funding has
been used to roll out training to schools by Nurture UK on diagnostic assessment of
behaviour through Boxall Profiling and the implementation of nurture approaches in
schools at both an accredited and non-accredited level. The six principles of Nurture
underpin the training as follows and provide schools with a relevant clear basis upon
which to build their behaviour and wellbeing approaches:

All behaviour is communication

Language is a vital means of communication

The importance of nurture for the development of wellbeing
The classroom offers a safe base

Children’s learning is understood developmentally

The importance of transition in children’s lives.

The Boxall profile is an evidence-based assessment tool which is used to assess
the social, emotional and mental development of pupils aged 4-18. By adopting
this as an authority wide approach it has provided a common language for all schools
to use and is a core focus of the work of the Behaviour Support Team.
Feedback from workshops provided to schools on Boxall assessment in Summer
2023 demonstrated that staff felt more confident in administering the assessment,
analysing outcomes and planning intervention for pupils.

All secondary and through schools were offered the opportunity to participate in the
two-year accredited National Nurturing Schools Programme together with those
primary schools that host a Learning Support Class for Nurture or Social, Emotional
and Behavioural Difficulties (SEBD). Delivery and implementation of the programme
was significantly impacted by the pandemic resulting in an agreement with Nurture
UK to extend the timescale for schools to undertake training and gain accreditation
into this academic year. One primary school has successfully completed
accreditation, reporting positive impact of the nurturing approach upon the whole-
school approach to behaviour and wellbeing. A case study is provided in Appendix 2
with a link to a video that provides a flavour of the assessment process. In addition,
six secondary schools, two through schools and two primary schools are on course
to gain accreditation this academic year, with an additional secondary school awaiting
the outcome of their formal assessment. It is disappointing that four secondary
schools have declined the offer of training. In addition, 26 school-based delegates
accessed non-accredited Theory and Practice of Nurture Groups training which
has resulted in nine participants setting up a nurture group for pupils in their schools
and a further eight implementing nurture approaches within the wider school
provision. At this stage it is not possible to evaluate the impact of this
approach in schools as it will need time to embed.

As part of the Education Directorate’s Wellbeing strategy to support the
implementation of the Welsh Government’s statutory guidance ‘Framework on

Tudalen 101



13.7

14

14 .1

15.

15.1

16.

16.1

17.

171

18.

18.1

19.

19.1

20.

embedding a whole-school approach to emotional and mental health wellbeing’, a
range of projects and training opportunities to address issues such as healthy
relationships through theatre workshops and R-Time group work continue to be
funded via the Whole School Approach Funding together with further training for
school staff on Trauma Informed Approaches so that they develop a deeper
understanding of pupil behaviour and the implementation of supportive, non-punitive
approaches as alternatives to exclusion.

Based on the evaluation of Tranches 1-3 of the Step 4 Programme and following
proposals received from schools in Summer Term 2023 additional funding of
approximately £900k has been agreed to establish a further 8 school-based Step 4
SEBD provisions in secondary/through schools in Tranche 4 of the Step 4 programme
between September 2023 and August 2025 to strengthen the continuum of
SEBD provision in RCT. The Step 4 programme provides enhanced funding to
mainstream schools to develop their own school-based wellbeing and behaviour
provisions to provide effective support and intervention for pupils with significant
wellbeing needs and SEBD within their local school communities and without the
need to access LA specialist provision. Overall, feedback from schools demonstrates
positive outcomes for pupils accessing Step 4 provisions in relation to improved
attendance, reduced exclusions and academic attainment.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS

An Equality Impact Assessment is not required as the contents of this report are for
information purposes only.

CONSULTATIONS

No consultation exercises have been undertaken.

WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS

There are no Welsh Language implications as a result of the recommendations of
this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

There are no financial implications contained within this report.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED

There are no legal implications aligned to this report.

LINKS TO THE COUNCILS CORPORATE PLAN/CORPORATE PRIORITIES/SIP

Supporting learners who experience significant social, emotional and behavioural
difficulties to achieve the best possible educational outcomes supports the priorities
within the Council’s Corporate Plan 2020-2024 ‘Making a Difference’ to promote
independence, healthy and successful lives for all and to enable them to fulfil their
potential and prosper. This also supports the Sustainable Development principle and
the Wellbeing Goals of the Wellbeing for Future Generations Act (Wales) that
underpin the vision and working practices of the service.

CONCLUSION

Tudalen 102



20.1

Reducing school exclusions is a key priority for the local authority. However, it is
evident from both local and national exclusion data that there will be clear challenges
for local authorities and schools in addressing the significant social, emotional and
behavioural needs of pupils in the post-Covid pandemic era. This will require
commitment, creativity and a shared ambition to improve the life chances of our most
vulnerable and challenging learners to ensure that we work collectively to achieve
our mission as set out in the Education Strategic Plan 2021-2024 ‘To deliver equity
and excellence in Education and enhanced well-being for all’.

Tudalen 103



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972
AS AMENDED BY
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
EDUCATION & INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
14™ DECEMBER 2023

ANNUAL SCHOOL EXCLUSION PERFORMANCE REPORT
FOR THE ACADEMIC YEAR 2022/23

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION
AND INCLUSION SERVICES

Tudalen 104



GOT usfepnl

Comparison Information of Fixed Term Exclusions 2022/23 — Primary Phase Appendix 1
2022/23
Autumn Spring Summer 2022 PLASC NOR
School Actual Number | Average Actual Number Average Actual Number | Average Number Total Incidents Average
Duration .Of Length Duration .Of Length Duration .Of Length NOR .Of Duration | per 1000 Length
Incidents | (Days) Incidents (Days) Incidents | (Days) Incidents (Days)
Abercynon Community Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 1.5 1 1.50 3 2 1.50 888 3 4.5 9.01 1.50
Aberdare Park Primary School 5 1 5.00 15 2 7.50 15 1 1.50 319 4 215 12.54 5.38
Alaw Primary School 0.5 1 0.50 0.0 0 0.00 0.5 1 0.50 197 2 1 10.15 0.50
Blaengwawr Primary School 2 2 1.00 1 1 1.00 2 1 2.00 216 4 5 18.52 1.25
Bodringallt Primary School * 3 2 1.50 0.5 1 0.50 0.0 0 0.0 87 3 35 34.48 117
Caradog Primary School 2 1 2.00 1 1 1.00 2 1 2.00 212 3 5 14.15 1.67
Cefn Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 15 1 1.50 139 1 1.5 7.19 1.50
Coedpenmaen Primary School 5 6 0.83 1.5 2 0.75 0.5 1 0.50 266 9 7 33.83 0.78
Craig Yr Hesg Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 1 1 1.00 6 2 3.00 165 3 7 18.18 2.33
Cwmaman Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 15 1 1.50 208 1 15 4.81 1.50
Cwmbach C in W Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 5.5 4 1.38 13.5 15 0.90 109 19 19 174.31 1.00
Cwmbach Community Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 2 3 0.67 268 3 2 11.19 0.67
Cwmclydach Community Primary School * 2 2 1.00 3 2 1.50 0.0 0 0.0 205 4 5 19.51 1.25
Cymmer Primary School * 13 8 1.63 55 4 1.38 15.5 11 1.41 238 23 34 96.64 1.48
Darran Park Primary School 1.5 1 1.50 0.0 0 0.00 0.5 1 0.50 350 2 2 5.71 1.00
Darrenlas Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 2.5 1 2.50 226 1 2.5 4.42 2.50
Dolau Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 115 5 230 520 5 11.5 9.62 2.30
Ffynnon Taf Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 1 2 0.50 201 2 1 9.95 0.50
Glenboi Community Primary School * 0.5 1 0.50 0.0 0 0.00 2.5 2 1.25 140 3 3 2143 1.00
Gwauncelyn Primary School 6 4 1.50 3 3 1.00 0.0 0 0.0 406 7 9 17.24 1.29
Hafod Primary School 1.5 1 1.50 1 1 1.00 2 4 0.50 118 6 4.5 50.85 0.75
Hawthorn Primary School 7.5 4 1.88 1.5 1 1.50 8 5 1.60 231 10 17 43.29 1.70
Heol Y Celyn Primary School 10.5 6 1.75 5 4 1.25 11 16 0.69 325 26 26.5 80.00 1.02
Llanharan Primary School 7.5 3 2.50 0.0 0 0.00 5 3 1.67 149 6 12.5 40.27 2.08
Llanhari Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 7 5 1.40 179 5 7 27.93 1.40
Llwydcoed Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 4 2 2.00 134 2 4 14.93 2.00




90T usfepnl

Llwynypia Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 15 2 0.75 0.0 0 0.0 220 2 15 9.09 0.75
Maesybryn Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 35 1 3.50 375 1 35 2.67 3.50
Parc Primary School 0.5 1 0.50 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.0 218 1 0.5 4.59 0.50
Pengeulan Primary School 1 1 1.00 0.0 0 0.00 4 5 0.80 124 6 5 48.39 0.83
Penrhys Primary School 6 5 1.20 45 3 1.50 5.5 6 0.92 99 14 16 141.41 1.14
Penygawsi Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 0.5 1 0.50 240 1 0.5 417 0.50
Penyrenglyn Community Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 0 1 0.00 188 1 0 5.32 0.00
Penywaun Primary School 9 5 1.80 4.5 4 1.13 12 8 1.50 187 17 255 90.91 1.50
Pontrhondda Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 1 1 1.00 156 1 1 6.41 1.00
Porth Community School 2 1 2.00 0.0 0 0.00 0.5 1 0.50 218 2 2.5 9.17 1.25
Ton Infants School 35 7 0.50 0.0 0 0.00 1 1 1.00 169 8 45 47.34 0.56
Ton Pentre Junior School 1 1 1.00 7.5 6 1.25 6.5 4 1.63 187 11 15 58.82 1.36
Tonyrefail Community School 0.0 0 0.00 1 1 1.00 0.0 0 0.0 281 1 1 3.56 1.00
Tonysguboriau Primary School 0.0 0 0.00 1.5 1 1.50 2 1 2.00 238 2 35 8.40 1.75
Trallwng Infants School 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 1 1 1.00 92 1 1 10.87 1.00
Trealaw Primary School 1 1 1.00 0.0 0 0.00 1 1 1.00 131 2 2 15.27 1.00
Tref Y Rhyg Primary School 5.5 3 1.83 8 6 133 45 5 0.90 111 14 18 126.13 1.29
Treorchy Primary School 15 1 1.50 1 1 1.00 7 1.40 429 7 9.5 16.32 1.36
Trerobart Primary School 445 24 1.85 8.5 6 142 23 10 2.30 185 40 76 216.22 1.90
Tylorstown Primary School 7.5 8 0.94 4 3 133 7 5 1.40 155 16 18.5 103.23 1.16
Williamstown Primary School 1.5 3 0.50 3 4 0.75 1 2 0.50 341 9 5.5 26.39 0.61
Ynysboeth Primary School 85 10 0.85 2 4 0.50 5.5 7 0.79 164 21 16 128.05 0.76
Ynyshir Community Primary School 6.5 4 1.63 5.5 3 1.83 0.5 1 0.50 255 8 12.5 31.37 1.56
Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Castellau 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 15 2 0.75 239 2 15 8.37 0.75
Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Llwyncelyn 45 2 2.25 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.0 328 2 45 6.10 2.25
Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Llyn Y Forwyn 1.5 1 1.50 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.0 180 1 1.5 5.56 1.50
Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Pontsionnorton 5 4 1.25 2.5 1 2.50 0.0 0 0.0 263 5 7.5 19.01 1.50
Ysgol Gynradd Gymraeg Ynyswen 1.5 1 1.50 5 5 1.00 45 4 1.13 277 10 11 36.10 1.10
Ysgol Llanhari 25 2 1.25 1 1 1.00 15 2 0.75 164 5 5 30.49 1.00
Ysgol Nantgwyn 0.0 0 0.00 0.0 0 0.00 2 1 2.00 389 1 2 2.57 2.00
Total 182 128 1.42 107 79 1.35 201 162 1.24 19082 369 490 19.34 1.33

* Represents schools that have a Learning Support Class for pupils with Social, Emotional and Behavioural Difficulties




Comparison Information of Fixed Term Exclusions 2022/23 — All Through Schools — Whole school Data

2022/23
Autumn Spring Summer 2022 PLASC NOR
School Actual Number | Average Actual Number | Average Actual Number | Average Number Total |Incidents Average
Duration of Length Duration of Length Duration of Length | NOR of Duration er 1000 Length
Incidents | (Days) Incidents | (Days) Incidents | (Days) Incidents P (Days)
Porth Community School 54.5 32 1.70 515 42 1.23 79.5 48 1.66 900 122 185.5 135.56 1.52
Tonyrefail Community School 134 72 1.86 93 61 1.52 395 33 1.20 1623 166 266.5 102.28 1.61
Ysgol Garth Olwg 74 61 1.21 1395 98 142 88 69 1.28 1220 228 301.5 186.89 1.32
Ysgol Llanhari 9.5 9 1.06 25 19 1.32 10 11 0.91 694 39 44.5 56.20 1.14
Ysgol Nantgwyn 61 12 5.08 5 3 1.67 13.5 10 1.35 1070 25 79.5 23.36 3.18
Total 333 186 1.79 314 223 1.41 230.5 171 1.35 5507 580 877.5 105.32 1.51
* Represents schools that have a Learning Support Class for pupils with Social, Emotional and Behavioural Difficulties

E' Comparison Information of Fixed Term Exclusions 2022/23 — Secondary Phase

o

D

D Comparison Information of Fixed Term Exclusions 2022/23 -Secondary Phase

5

[N

S)‘ 2022/23

Autumn Spring Summer 2022 PLASC NOR
- Number Average Number Average Average Total . Average
Dﬁ::ttliaol n of Length Dﬁ::l::)ln of Length Dﬁ:::ia;n ":::::; t‘:f Length NOR Incidents Durati In::c:e()r:; Days
Incidents (Days) Incidents (Days) (Days) on P Length

Aberdare Community School 325 18.00 1.81 72 33.00 2.18 1315 42.00 3.13 1318 93 236 70.56 2.54
Bryncelynnog Comprehensive School 116.5 59.00 1.97 108 53.00 2.04 58 29.00 2.00 1319 141 282.5 106.90 2.00
Cardinal Newman RC Comprehensive 289 118.00 245 242 79.00 3.06 210 78.00 2.69 1007 275 741 273.09 2.69
School
Ferndale Community School 155 71.00 2.18 92 53.00 1.74 147.5 71.00 2.08 595 195 394.5 327.73 2.02
Hawthorn High School 111 58.00 1.91 96.5 60.00 1.61 57 35.00 1.63 697 153 264.5 219.51 1.73
Mountain Ash Comprehensive School 129 83.00 1.55 227 129.00 1.76 185 148.00 1.25 1023 360 541 351.91 1.50
Pontypridd High School 146.5 69.00 2.12 35 28.00 1.25 68.5 47.00 1.46 849 144 250 169.61 1.74
Porth Community School 52.5 31.00 1.69 515 42.00 1.23 79 47.00 1.68 674 120 183 178.04 1.53




80T usfepnl

St John Baptist C in W High School 65.5 34.00 1.93 75 44.00 1.70 39 27.00 144 964 105 179.5 108.92 1.71
Tonyrefail Community School 132 71.00 1.86 92 60.00 1.53 395 33.00 1.20 940 164 263.5 174.47 1.61
Treorchy Comprehensive School 46 13.00 3.54 35 8.00 4.38 35 11.00 3.18 1559 32 116 20.53 3.63

Y Pant Comprehensive School 108.5 35.00 3.10 112.5 43.00 2.62 94.5 46.00 2.05 1434 124 315.5 86.47 2.54
Ysgol Garth Olwg 74 61.00 1.21 139.5 98.00 142 85 68.00 1.25 707 227 298.5 321.07 1.31
Ysgol Gyfun Cwm Rhondda 135 62.00 2.18 148 54.00 2.74 209.5 62.00 3.38 714 178 4925 249.30 2.77
Ysgol Gyfun Rhydywaun 25 12.00 2.08 26 13.00 2.00 40 18.00 2.22 1078 43 91 39.89 2.12
Ysgol Llanhari 7 7.00 1.00 24 18.00 133 8.5 9.00 0.94 451 34 39.5 75.39 1.16
Ysgol Nantgwyn 61 12.00 5.08 5 3.00 1.67 11.5 9.00 1.28 625 24 71.5 38.40 3.23
Total 1686 814.00 2.07 1581 818.00 1.93 1499 780.00 1.92 14496 2412 4766 166.39 1.98

Comparison Information of Fixed Term Exclusions 2022/23 — Sixth Form in Secondary Schools
2022/23
Autumn Spring Summer 2022 PLASC NOR
School Actual Number | Average Actual Number | Average Actual Number | Average ; Total Incidents Average
Duration .of Length Duration .of Length Duration .of Length | NOR | Incidents Duration | per 1000 Length
Incidents (Days) Incidents (Days) Incidents (Days) (Days)

Bryncelynnog Comprehensive School 4 4 1.00 0 0 0.00 0 0.00 185 4 4 21.62 1.00
Tonyrefail Community School 2 1 2.00 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.00 357 1 2 2.80 2.00
Ysgol Garth Olwg 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.00 3 1 3.00 132 1 3 7.58 3.00
Total 6 5 1.20 0 0 0.00 3 1 3.00 2367 6 9 2.53 1.50




60T usfepnl

Comparison Information of Fixed Term Exclusions 2022/23 — Special Schools/PRU

2022/23
Autumn Spring Summer 2022 PLASC NOR
Actual Number | Average Actual Number | Average Actual Number | Average . Total Incidents Average

School Duration of Length Duration of Length Duration of Length | NOR | Incidents Duration | per 1000 Length

Incidents | (Days) Incidents | (Days) Incidents | (Days) P (Days)
Maesgwyn Special School 20 9 2.22 10 9 1.1 18 11 1.64 125 29 48 232.00 1.66
Tai Education Centre 0 0 0.00 2 1 2.00 0 0 0.00 39 1 2 25.64 2.00
Ty Gwyn Education Centre 78.5 60 1.31 100.5 41 2.45 20 7 2.86 33 108 199 3,272.73 1.84
Ysgol Hen Felin 1 1 1.00 0 0 0 0 0.00 194 1 1 5.15 1.00
Ysgol Ty Coch 0 0 0.00 0 0 1 1 1.00 192 1 1 5.21 1.00
Total 99.5 70 1.42 112.5 51 2.21 39 19 2.05 693 140 251 202.02 1.79




Appendix 2

Case study: Extract from Cwmclydach Primary School Assessment Report

This report cannot reflect the hard work that goes on at the school each and every day. A
very comprehensive and highly creative evidence file and related documents have been
provided as part of the assessment process. They created a website to showcase their
evidence which exemplified the standards. This includes attendance and exclusion data and
Case Studies for Partnership, Community and The Boxall Profile along with a clear
understanding of the 6 Principles of nurture, evidenced in the application and Principles into
Practice report. It is reflective of their commitment and determination to provide fun,
engaging experiences that enable their pupils to enjoy learning and achieve their potential
and develop resilience to respond to a diverse and ever-changing society.

It is very clear that there is a whole school approach to nurture at Cwmclydach Primary
School The NNSP is strongly led by Alanco, Jan Edwards and head teacher Linsey Owens.
There is a longstanding nurturing ethos at Cwmclydach School. The NNSP has helped
formalise nurture and provide a common language for staff and children.

‘We were doing so much already but it signposted us to areas we could develop such as the
Boxall and the classroom environments.”

‘It has given the children a common language —e.g. safe space, quiet room, sensory room,
happy place, comfort zone and regulate my emotions.”

Moreover, it has been credited with the improvements of wellbeing in staff and pupils alike.
‘There have been significant improvements in the wellbeing of both staff and pupils. This is

demonstrated through the dramatic reduction in pupil incidents. It is also reflected in the staff
comments on assessment day.”

"We feel supported as a staff team, by each other and by SLT — there is equity of staff.”

Tudalen 110



"We are looked after and nurtured by each other”.

There is no doubt Jan has created a nurturing legacy which has become woven into the
fabric and ethos of the school.

Linsey’s commitment and vision for the school remains clear and unwavering. Her desire to
create a school that is transparent and nurturing is achieved through high levels of
communication with all stakeholders. It is inspiring and actually tangible. It is reflected in the
comments of her staff. “There is now a high level of communication between us all. We even
have a staff calendar so we all know exactly what is going on.”

Senior Leader’s encourage, believe, support, nurture and empower their staff within a
nurturing, highly communicative approach and as a result it was clear it permeates every
aspect of school and community life. One parent said, “Communication is the highest it's
ever been.”

It was a privilege to assess this very nurturing school who actively seek to nurture and
enrich the lives of the children in their care on a daily basis.

Thank you Cwmclydach Primary School for a fabulous assessment visit and | wish you
every success in the future.

Examples of excellent practice include:

Parental work — this is excellent and interviews showed obvious impact for the pupils and
their families. Linsey explained “Building relationships with our parents is a priority for us.”
Parents explained “| feel listened to and welcome. My child is made to feel important.”

“It is home from home, everybody is welcoming. Staff go above and beyond. The school is a
huge part of our life, they are like our extended family.”

“The school is accommodating to my son’s needs, there is no judgement”.

“There is a real warmth to the school, you have a lovely feeling from the minute you enter.
The reception staff are very welcoming.”

Community links are also a real strength, particularly through the work done with local
schools. The school hosts cluster meetings bringing together other educationalists to
cement relationships.

The school is at the heart of the community. It has forged very strong community links and
successfully maintained this despite a global pandemic. Examples include: Lakeside, the
church, the community centre and sporting marvels to name but a few. Furthermore,
community members are frequent visitors within the school to enrich the experiences of the
pupils. A parent explained “The school is the beating heart of the community.”

The pupils expressed their thoughts, “We love it when people come into our school to talk to
us, they motivate us.”

See link for video of assessment process. https://sites.google.com/hwbcymru.net/cwmclydach-
primary-school/home

Tudalen 111


https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/Eh5WCoQlxHl8OlPU1cyBq
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/Eh5WCoQlxHl8OlPU1cyBq

Tudalen wag



Agendwm 6

RHONDDA CYNON TAF
B

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Ve

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022-23
EDUCATION AND INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
14t DECEMBER 2023
SCHOOL ATTENDANCE DATA
Author(s): Daniel Williams, Head of Attendance and Wellbeing

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide Members with an update on
school attendance data across the local authority and the actions of the
Attendance and Wellbeing Service and wider Education and Inclusion
Services to increase attendance levels.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that the Members:
2.1 Scrutinise and comment on the information contained within this report.

2.2  Consider whether they wish to scrutinise in greater depth any matters
contained within the report.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 Prior to the pandemic, annual figures were brought before the
committee ordinarily during Spring Term, however there were no
reports that focused solely on this area between February 2020 and
March 2023. The report brought in March 2023 focused on the need, as
we move beyond the Covid-19 pandemic, to increase the focus on
ensuring learners attend school when they can.

3.2 The Welsh Government revoked the School Performance and Absence
Targets (Wales) Regulations 2011 (in force from 7" August 2020). As a
result, there has been no statutory requirement for schools to set
targets for future years or report on those previously set for 2019 to
2020 onwards. This arrangement continues for 2023 to 2024 although
schools have been asked to set targets on a non-statutory basis.
Annual statutory data collections were also halted during the pandemic
but were reintroduced in the 2022/23 academic year.

Tudalen 113



4. AN ANALYSIS OF SCHOOL PHASE ATTENDANCE
4.1 The tables below show the overall school attendance rates broken
down by phase for the last four academic years. These figures are for
statutory school age only across mainstream and special schools (pupil
referral units are not included). Primary data is full academic year and
secondary data is shown up to the end of Summer 1 in line with Welsh
Government data collection dates even though this did not take place
in all of these years as outlined in 3.2.
Rhondda Cynon Taf Primary Phase Attendance
Gypsy,
Academic - Persistent Roma Service
Year All Pupils Non FSM FSM EAL SEN Absence and/or Family
Traveller
2019/20 93.0% 94.0% | 90.1% | 92.2% | 90.1% | 5.4% 86.8% 93.7%
2020/21 91.1% 93.1% | 86.4% | 92.1% | 87.6% | 11.7% 61.8% 93.3%
2021/22 89.8% 91.2% 85.4% 91.1% | 85.6% 10.8% 69.0% 92.0%
2022/23 91.0% 92.3% | 86.8% | 91.2% | 86.6% | 9.3% 75.7% 92.8%
Rhondda Cynon Taf Secondary Phase Attendance
Gypsy,
Academic - Persistent Roma Service
Year All Pupils Non FSM FSM EAL SEN Absence and/or Family
Traveller
2019/20 92.1% 93.4% | 88.0% | 95.1% | 88.0% 7.9% 75.2% 95.3%
2020/21 85.5% 88.6% | 76.7% | 91.7% | 81.8% | 23.2% 53.3% | 89.9%
2021/22 85.2% 87.6% 76.8% 91.5% | 81.4% 22.3% 69.9% 88.1%
2022/23 85.8% 88.3% | 77.0% | 91.7% | 82.4% | 21.0% 67.1% 88.2%

Table 1. All data presented above is reflective of PLASC data taken during January of the academic
year. Persistent Absence is the % of all learners who have below 80% attendance. SEN attendance
does not currently include ALN.

4.2

4.3

As shown in the tables above, we can see the significant impact the
Covid-19 pandemic had on attendance levels across RCT with a drop
in primary attendance of 3.2 percentage points at primary phase
between 2019/20 and 2021/22 and a 6.9 percentage point drop at
secondary phase across the same timeframe. We have however seen
encouraging signs at primary schools last year, with a 1.2 percentage
point increase between 2021/22 and 2022/23 although still down 2
percentage points when compared to 2019/20; secondary schools with
a 0.6 percentage point increase between 2021/22 and 2022/23
although still significantly below 2019/20 levels.

However, Table 1 must be taken into a wider context around
attendance coding at this time. As a result of the pandemic, for the
academic years 2020/21 and 2021/22 there were additional temporary
attendance codes introduced by Welsh Government. These were for
confirmed Covid cases and for those isolating/accessing remote

Tudalen 114




4.4

4.5

4.6

learning. The confirmed case code was statistically an authorised
absence and mapped back to illness coding. However, the code for
isolation/remote learning was statistically a 'not required to attend’ mark
and therefore does not appear in attendance data collection figures
presented above. Similarly, the existing Y code usually reserved for
partial or full closures of schools was also utilised during these years
when cohorts were forced to isolate and again, these are also ‘not
required to attend’ marks and do not appear in attendance data
percentages as a result. Physical absence for these academic years is
therefore higher than percentage figures alone would suggest which
again provides some reassurance in the rising attendance marks in
2022/23 which is from a lower benchmark than the percentage figures
alone may show.

From the data presented above, we can see that improvements have
been made across all but one group of learners in 2022/23 compared
to the previous academic year. However, there remains considerable
challenge particularly at secondary phase and for eligible Free School
Meal learners. Secondary phase attendance was 1.7% below the
Welsh average of 87.5% in 2022/23 (gap was 1.0% in 2018/19), 21t
position across Wales and therefore is a central focus for continued
improvement.

RCT and Welsh Government Comparisons

(mainstream secondary only)

Secondary RCT Welsh | Difference
Average

Overall Attendance 85.8% 87.5% -1.7%

FSM 76.8% 79.4% -2.6%

Non-FSM 88.3% 89.8% -1.5%

FSM Gap 11.5% 10.4% +1.1%

Although we do not yet have primary figures from Welsh Government,
we can analyse some overall data from the regular Welsh Government
data releases. The last release of the 2022/23 academic year
(available here: Attendance of pupils in _maintained schools: 5
September 2022 to 24 July 2023 | GOV.WALES) suggests the All
Wales attendance rate is lowest at year 11 which is reflected in RCT,
and the gap between learners aged 5-15 who are eligible for Free
School Meals and those who are not was 7.3%. Our internal data
suggests the gap in RCT was slightly wider at 7.7%.

Welsh Government continues to provide data on attendance at regular
intervals although these are not classed as National Statistics or
verified data. The latest figures at time of writing cover the current
academic year and are available here Attendance of pupils in
maintained schools: 4 September to 10 November 2023 |

Tudalen 115


https://www.gov.wales/attendance-pupils-maintained-schools-5-september-2022-24-july-2023
https://www.gov.wales/attendance-pupils-maintained-schools-5-september-2022-24-july-2023
https://www.gov.wales/attendance-pupils-maintained-schools-4-september-10-november-2023
https://www.gov.wales/attendance-pupils-maintained-schools-4-september-10-november-2023

4.7

4.8

5.1

5.2

GOV.WALES. This data shows that currently RCT attendance for
learners aged 5 - 15 is 90.8% (our own data for the same period last
year shows attendance at 90.6%) which is 0.5 percentage points
behind the Welsh average of 91.3%. This would place RCT as the 17
highest local authority attendance.

The table below shows the overall pupil referral unit (primary and
secondary) attendance rate in RCT over the last three years; these
figures include the attendance of education other than at school
learners (EOTAS), including those on home, group and individual
tuition, who are some of the most vulnerable and hard to engage
learners in RCT. As this includes secondary pupil data, the parameters
used are the same as secondary attendance in table 1 and include up
to the end of Summer Term 1.

Academic Year 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2021/22 | 2022/23
% Attendance RCT 68.8% 65.9% 69.0% 63.5%

Table 2. PRU Attendance across the last 4 academic years

PRU attendance has been separated from the data presented in Table
1 as Welsh Government has historically not held a statutory
requirement for PRU attendance to be submitted. Across similar lines
to mainstream and special school attendance, PRU and EOTAS
attendance is stronger at primary phase than secondary phase (88.0%
and 53.4% respectively in 2022/23) but the overall figure remains a
concern particularly for some of our learners accessing EOTAS
provision who can be heavily disengaged.

ATTENDANCE AND WELLBEING SERVICE

The local authority has a statutory legal duty to ensure that every child
of compulsory school age is getting the education required by law,
either at home or at school. In RCT this statutory legal duty is devolved
to the Attendance and Wellbeing Service who act as the Council’s
enforcement agency in ensuring that parents/carers and schools carry
out their legal responsibilities as set out in the following legislation:

Education Act 1996;

Children Act 1989;

Crime and Disorder Act 1998;
Registration Regulations, 2010;

Education and Inspections Act 2006;
Children and Young Person’s Act 1963;
Children (Performance) Regulations 2015.

The RCT Attendance and Wellbeing Service undertake the following
statutory duties on behalf of the Council:

Tudalen 116


https://www.gov.wales/attendance-pupils-maintained-schools-4-september-10-november-2023

5.2.1

5.2.2

523

5.2.4

Prosecution for non-school attendance - Where there is sufficient
evidence that parents are not fulfilling their legal duty to ensure regular
school attendance (section 7 of the Education Act 1996) court
proceedings may be instituted under Section 444 (1) and/or (1a) of the
Education Act 1996.

At the start of the pandemic, all prosecution cases were withdrawn but
these were reintroduced during the 2021/22 academic year. This
remains a ‘last resort’ option and will only be considered if a
parent/carer does not effectively engage with the process to secure the
learner’s attendance. In the 2022/23 academic year 121 prosecutions
were pursued (120 successfully). 91 of these formed part of the Single
Justice Procedure as a result of escalation following non-payment of a
fixed penalty notice (FPN). The remaining 30 were progressed
following attendance referrals to the service. In total, 971 monitoring
period were set in relation to FPNs for non-attendance. Of these 466
were not issued after the warning due to improved attendance. A
further 161 were also not issued for other reasons. 207 FPN’s were
issued and paid.

Formal Register Inspections — Duty to ensure clear and efficient
registration practices are in place in all schools (the Education (Pupil
Registration) (Wales) Regulations 2010).

The service proactively inspects each school’s register every term via a
formal Registration Compliance Check process (345 per annum).
These may result in action plans for schools to improve their practices,
which are reviewed by the Attendance and Wellbeing Service’s
management team on a regular basis. If necessary, they will be fed
into the School Improvement process. Escalation processes are in
place for any school who continually perform poorly in this area.

Education provision in place for vulnerable children — Duty to
ensure the local authority are responsible for Gypsy Traveller children
receive suitable education (section 437 of the Education Act 1996).

There are currently 12 Gypsy, Roma and Traveller children and young
people that have declared their ethnicity status to the local authority
residing in Rhondda Cynon Taf. This number of pupils has remained
consistent over recent years but may be underreported as we rely on
notification from the family during school admission phases.

Children Missing Education — Duty to establish the identities of
children not receiving suitable education by identifying, investigating,
locating and tracking children (section 436A of the Education and
Inspections Act 2006).

Tudalen 117



5.2.5

5.2.6

5.3

5.4

There were 120 ‘Children Missing Education’ referrals made to the
Attendance and Wellbeing Service during 2022/23 compared to 104 in
2021/22. 111 children were located with 9 ongoing cases. Where the
children resided in RCT, support was given to enrol the child into an
appropriate education setting.

Issuing entertainment licences and work permits - Risk assess
employers to protect children from being exploited and harmed and
ensure their health and safety (Children and Young Person’s Act 1963;
Children (Performance) Regulations 2015.

During 2022/23, the Attendance and Wellbeing Service issued 201
child performance licences (up from 120 in 2021/22) and 5 work
permits for child of statutory school age (up from 4 in 2021/22). In
addition, 48 chaperones have been licensed to accompany and support
children and young people whilst performing (up from 29 in 2021/22).

Truancy — Arrangement and co-ordination of formal truancy operations
with Police and return them to school when truanting (section 16 Crime
and Disorder Act, 1998).

Truancy operations did not place throughout the pandemic but
restarted in targeted areas in the 2022/23 academic year in line with
the Attendance Strategy.

The Attendance and Wellbeing Service provides support to schools,
pupils and their families to address any difficulties that are affecting
regular attendance at school. They work in partnership with a range
of support services and agencies to provide an essential link between
home and school to ensure that pupils benefit fully from the educational
opportunities available to them.

During the academic year 2022/23 the Council’'s Attendance and
Wellbeing Service performance includes the following:

e 978 Education Appraisals for families in receipt of support from
the Resilient Families Service (942 in 2021/22).

e 773 new open case referrals received (841 in 2021/22).

e 7,135 Wellbeing Response Visits undertaken (6,802 in 2021/22)
for 3,826 learners. 3,690 visits (51.7%) resulted in improved
attendance when comparing the 40 days prior to visit, and 40
days afterwards.

e Prosecuted 30 parents for non-attendance of their children
following open case work (28 in 2021/22).

e 18 schools received additional support for attendance via
Progress Meetings, Team Around the School or single-agency
response. 11 of the 18 (61.1%) have improved their attendance
when comparing Autumn Term 1.

Tudalen 118



5.5

5.6

5.7

6.1

6.2

6.3

An attendance event for Headteachers and Attendance Leads was held
in Hawthorn Leisure Centre in July 2023 with over 80 school
representatives. The session covered LA expectations, Estyn
processes and good practice sharing from RCT and out-of-county
schools. A maintained focus on attendance practices and processes
will continue in the 2023/24 academic year and beyond.

Additional support has also been provided to schools since early 2020
in the form of Family Engagement Officers. Funding has been provided
via RCT Cabinet, and later through Welsh Government, with match-
funding in 29 schools. These schools were identified through a
combination of attendance and deprivation data in order to support
some of the most vulnerable learners across RCT. Termly monitoring
reports are submitted from each of these schools. More information on
Family Engagement Officers was presented to Members as part of the
Community Focused School and Child Poverty report on 16" October
2023.

Additional funding was received from Welsh Government for the
2022/23 financial year for Education Welfare services. RCT has utilised
this funding to employ three additional temporary Attendance and
Wellbeing Officers, a Targeted Support Officer, and Educational
Psychology support for the service for the most difficult and entrenched
cases and/or those with Emotionally Based School Avoidance (EBSA).
This will be coupled with a pilot this academic year for multi-agency
EBSA forums in secondary schools to discuss learners facing these
difficulties and the support that can offered by school and partners.

WELSH GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE

Additional attendance guidance was published by Welsh Government
in October 2023 in the form of the ‘Belonging, Engaging and
Participating’ guidance document which can be found here:
gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-10/improving-school-
attendance-guidance 0.pdf

This guidance document will have implications for future reports to
Scrutiny committee as well as implications for comparative data via the
school half termly reports. Most notably the definition of persistent
absence previously used in Wales, and used in this report in table 1,
covered learners with absence over 20% (below 80% attendance). The
latest guidance revises this figure to over 10% absence (below 90%
attendance) and brings the Welsh definition of persistent absence in
line with England.

The Head of Attendance and Wellbeing will also form part of the Welsh
Government national attendance taskforce to look at the strategic

Tudalen 119


https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-10/improving-school-attendance-guidance_0.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-10/improving-school-attendance-guidance_0.pdf

6.4

7.1

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

1.

11.1

11.2

12.

direction and priorities for driving further improvement in attendance
and re-engaging learners.

On release of the guidance document outlined in 6.1, the Minister for
Education and the Welsh Language also outlined activity underway to
review exclusions guidance, the development of referred and
commissioning guidance for EOTAS provision and to develop school
behaviour guidance. We hope this documentation will also strengthen
our approaches moving forward to enhance our support to learners
across RCT.

WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS

There are no Welsh Language implications as a result of the
recommendations of this report

CONSULTATION /INVOLVEMENT

There has been no consultation to inform this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)

There are no financial implications as a result of this report

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED

There are no legal implications as a result of the recommendations set
above

LINKS TO THE COUNCIL’S CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER
CORPORATE PRIORITIES / THE WELL-BEING OF FUTURE
GENERATIONS ACT

The Attendance Strategy is aimed at meeting the objectives of the
Council’'s Corporate Plan for People by ‘ensuring People are
independent, healthy and successful’ through improving services for
children and young people as well as their families. It will also meet the
Prosperity target by ensuring we have good schools with improved
attendance, so all children have access to a great education.

The processes and interventions directed by AWS meet the
requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
by fostering effective school and community relations via Cluster based
officers to create a Wales of cohesive communities while improving the
prosperity and resilience of our children, young people and families.

CONCLUSION

Tudalen 120



121

12.2

Improving school attendance remains a priority for the local authority
and its schools and formed part of one of the recommendations by
Estyn following this year’s LA inspection. Whilst the pandemic has had
a considerable impact on attendance, there are some improvements in
the 2022/23 academic year, and we are hopeful the Strategy and focus
on attendance will support continued improvement in the coming years.

Excellent school attendance is key to raising educational outcomes. In
addition, schools play a pivotal role in safeguarding children and young
people ensuring their positive social and emotional wellbeing, which
would not be possible without their engagement in education. We will
continue to liaise with all stakeholders to ensure that attendance
remains a priority at local, regional, and national level. We will also
continue to implement our Attendance Strategy to drive forward our
ambitions to increase attendance via close working relationships with
our schools and school communities.

Tudalen 121



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972
AS AMENDED BY
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985
RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
EDUCATION & INCLUSION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
14™ DECEMBER 2023
SCHOOL ATTENDANCE DATA

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF EDUCATION
AND INCLUSION SERVICES

Tudalen 122



	Agenda
	GWŶS I GYFARFOD O'R CYNGOR

	2 COFNODION
	4 Trefniadau cyn y cam craffu ar adroddiad drafft o'r Cabinet
	RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
	REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & COMMUNICATIONS
	Adroddiad
	Atodiad a
	Atodiad 1
	APPENDIX 2A, 2B, 3A, 3B

	5 ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL – GWAHARDDIADAU O'R YSGOL YN YSTOD Y FLWYDDYN ACADEMAIDD 2022/23
	RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
	Graph 3: Rate of Permanent Exclusions across Wales
	Graph 4: Rate of Fixed Term Exclusions 5 Days or   Less
	Graph 5: Rate of Fixed Term Exclusions Over 5     Days

	6 DATA PRESENOLDEB MEWN YSGOLION



